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Wholesale financial
markets play a vital
role in global economic
development and the
real economy
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ICAP is a leading markets
operator and provider of
post trade risk mitigation IMAGE REMOVED
and information services.

We are an integral part Of Our business model
the global financial system pige 08

and are well positioned to
benefit from the changing

market landscape. IMAGE REMOVED
These changes play to our
St_rengths and prOVI.d.e us Regulatory landscape and market trends
with new opportunities peoe 14
to thrive.
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Directors’ report

ICAP plc 15 ncorporated as a public rited company and is registered in England and Wales with the registered number 3611426 ICAP

plc’s registered office 1s 2 Broadgate, London EC2ZM 7UR The directors present the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013

References to ICAP*, the ‘Group’, the “Company’, ‘we', or ‘our’ are to ICAP plc or to ICAP plc and rts subsidiary comparies where
appropriate Pages 02 to 79, inclusive, of this Annual Report compnise the directors’ report that has been drawn up and presented
in accordance with English company law and the liabilities of the directors in connection with that report shall be subject to the
Iimrtations and restnctions provided by such law
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Business review

ICAP in brief

Ourrolein

the markets

IMAGE REMOVED

Efficient financial markets are vital

to global and national econormies

As a leading markets operator ICAP
provides a wide variety of electronic
execution, nisk mitigation, messaging,
broking and information services for
wholesale market particpants

ICAP facilitates the flow of caprtal
and investment through the financial
system and supports government
and corporate borrowing

Our business segments

Global
Broking

Market participants can use ICAP s broking
services to assess trading avalability and
successfully execute trades Our brokers
locate and identify potentidl trading mterest
and in so doing create transparency liquidity
and facitate the price discovery process
This 15 particularly important in markets
where there 18 a wide range of potential
transaction types and the number of parties
willing o enter certain transactions at any
moment may be imited

We offer broking services for a wide range
of asset classes including rates FX
commodities emerging markets credit and
equities For each of these asset classes
ICAP has electronic capability which gives
customers the choice to enter prices and
execute trades electronically directly via
one of ICAP's electronic trading systems
and/or to engage with a broker todentify
and help negotiate irades

Customers range from nvestment banks
inour fixed Income products to end-user
corporates and industrials in commodities

Electronic
Markets

Markets that are mere lquid and have a
high degree of consistent buying and seling
interest are most efficiently traded on
electronic platforms Automated platforms
allow users to execute large volurmes of
deals quickly and easily with greater
transparency We operate a number of
electronic platforms in a range of asset
classes and nstrurnents The largest of
these are the EBS Market for spot FX
currencies NDFs and precious metals and
the BrokerTec platform for G7 public debt
secunties including US and European
government debt and US and EU repo

and CDS

In addition we also operate a number of
other platforms ncluding MyTreasury which
15 ICAP s fully automated electronic trading
platform for corporate treasury investors
and 150X an exchange providing small

and medium-sized companies access to
equity capital to finance the development
of ther businesses

Post Trade Risk
and Information

Qur post trade nisk and information
services help users of financial products to
reduce operational and system-wide risks
This increases the efficiency of trading
clearing and settlement and lowers costs
Qur information business empaowers
customers to make trading decisions

with market information across key

asset classes

The post trade risk and nformation
business comprses

— the portfolio risk services businesses
Reset ReMatch and TnOptima which
identify remove neutralise and reconcile
risk within por tfokas of denvatives
transactions

— the transaction processing business
Traiana and

~ the infermation and data sales business

More than 500 customers use our post
trade rsk services
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Our scale and diversity

Two thirds of our operating profit* comes from our electronic markets
and post trade risk and information services

GRAPH REMOVED GRAPH REMOVED

GRAPH REMOVED GRAPH REMOVED

Before acqusiton and dsposat costs
and exceptonal dems

GRAPH REMOVED GRAPH REMOVED

Our geographic reach

We have a strong presence i all the major financial centres — with a local
footprint n 32 countrres and more than 70 focations worldwide

IMAGE REMOVED
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Business review

Group CEQ’s review

Group Chief Executive

Officer’s review of

the year

Michael Spencer
Group Chief
Executive Officer

IMAGE REMCVED

The wholesale financial markets are facing a number of cyclical

and structural challenges Against this backdrop we have kept our
focus While taking a tough stance on costs we are managing and
re-engineenng the business for the long term delivering on our
strategic goals and pnonties We continue to invest innovate and
adapt 10 ensure the business will thrive in the new financial landscape
that 15 being shaped by regulatory reform With these changes come
new opportunities for ICAP Our business has and will continue to
evolve We have a diversified business global reach and proven ability
to respond to changing customer needs ICAP remains a profitable
and very cash generative business with a strong balance sheet Today
we are a more efficient and collaborative business than a year ago
This will stand us i good stead for the future

Macroeconomic context

Dunng the past year the growth in global trade has decelerated
significanily as a result of private sector deleveraging and
government fiscal constrant Whie US economic growth has been
resfient and Japan has expenenced some modest recovery, n China
and Europe there has been a marked slowdown with many pernpheral
EUrozone economies expenencing deepening recession

This has been the toughest trading
environment n my nearly 40-year career
in the wholesale financial markets ICAP's
performance during 2012/13 reflects
these extraordinanly difficult market
conditions but also the dversity and
reshence of the Group we have built

The Eurozone continues to present the most sugmﬁcant threat to
the global economy although policy intiatives have lessened the nisk
of a major crisis

Against this backdrop interest rates in many advanced economies
have remamed at or close to their histonc Jows and quantitative
easing nits vanous forms, has been widely employed

Changing market landscape

As an indusiry leader, ICAP continues to benefit from greater scale
and diversity than many of our competitors Our perspectve helps
inform requlators and policy makers as they implernent reform

The competitrve landscape in which we operate 5 changing
Regulation s redefining certain aspects of our business and cur
customers needs As capital requirements drive banks to deleverage
and standardised denvatives are pushed towards central dearing, the
markets are developing in response even though the final shape of
some aspects of regulatory reformremans uncertain
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ICAP 15 well positioned to take advantage of these changes The

reguiatory push towards electronic trading plays to our strengths and

provides us with new epportunities for growth We have nvested
across all our businesses in pecple technology and product
innevation mamntaning our competitive advantage In our newly
created Global Broking business (formed by amalgamating the three
regionally-managed voice broking businesses) every assat class has
electronic capability and we are already the world s leading provider
of electronic platforms for the trading of spot FX and fixed income
We believe there are significant opportunities to expand {urther our
electronic offerng and plan to leverage owr existing platforms and
connecivity 1o meet the needs of aur evolving custemer base

Last year saw the conversion of s5waps Into futures contracts in

the US energy market While we anticipate that there may be further
futunsation’ in certain asset classes we believe there will be a strong

and continued demand for swaps par ticularly in rates which provide

the custornised hedaing solutions that our custorners want and need

As aleading provider of post trade and risk mitigabion services,
the regulatory focus on better nsk management will also benefit
our business We are seeing increasing demand for our pest trade
services and expect this to continue as firms seek to comply with
new regulatory requrements

A stronger ICAP

We intend to build on our market leading positions and leverage
our assets to deliver sharehalder value We have made significant
changes to our Group structure our products and our services to
ensure we emerge from this market downturn in a strong position

In September we created a new Global Broking division under the
leadership of Dawid Casterton We previously operated our broking
business on a regional basis n EMEA the Americas and Asia Pacific
This reorganisation mirrors the way we manage our electronic
markets and post trade businesses and enables us to execute

a global broking strategy and better serve our customers

EBS our market leading electronic spot FX platform has been
strengthened and repesitioned under the leadership of 1is new
Chief Executive Officer, G1 Mandelzis Following a wide-ranging
review of the business and extensive consultation with customers
EBS announced new dealing rules i July These new rules promote
greater transparency, fairness and executable liquidity for

& participants This was the beginning of a set of enhancements for
EBS which continued throughout the year including a move away

from decimalisation in some currency pairs These changes have been

well recerved by our customers

In Novemnber 2012 we announced our intention to faunch EBS Dwect,
anew relationship-based disclosed iquicity service which gives users
the choice of trading in the main markets or abtaning quotes from
their relationshup banks

Before acqusibon and dsposal costs and exceptional items
Statutory profit for t-e cenod aner acqusition and disposal
COsts ang exceptional items

Adusted basis EPS 15 based on earrings before acqusition
and disposal costs and exceptional ierms

Financial performance

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group reported revernue
of £1 472 millon 12% below the prior year Trading actmity
across all asset classes was negatively impacted by a combination
of facters including the depressed global economy a low interest
rate environment and regulatory uncertamty

Group net operating expenses* of £1164 milkon were 11% lower
than the previous year In response to the challenging market
conditions a comprehensive review of the cost base was undertaken
This imtizlly klentified total cost savings of £50 mullion for the year
annualsed at £60 milion, from a reduction in overall headcount
renegotiation of broker contracts and compensation rates and the
consobdaton and rationalisation of nfrastructure support Excellent
progress was made and the mitial targets were exceeded with
total cost savings of £60 million delvered during the year annualised
at £80 milion (£20 millcn higher than nitial estimates) The cost
saving initatves have improved the ongong flexibdity of the cost base

The additional annualised cost savings of £20 millon are expected to
be renvested n a number of initiatives across the business ICAP has
continued to mvest for future growth ncluding the development of
EBS Direct expansion by Traana nto new products and asset classes
and ongoing product nnovation within TrOptima

By the year end the number of employees had declined from
512310 4976 The overallnet reduction of 147 employees
reflects the departure of 344 voice brokers partly offset by
197 new hires principally In tugh growth areas

The Group reported an operating profit* of £308 mikon down
17% on the prior year The Groups operating profit* margin for the
year ended 31 March 2013 decreased to 21% In the year ended
31 March 2013 the proportion of Group operating profit*
generated from Global Broking Electronic Markets and Post Trade
Risk and Information was 34% 37% and 29% respectvely

Profit before tax* of £284 million was down 20% on the prior
year Profit before tax on a statutory* * basis fell by £451 million

to £66 midlon reflecting the dechne n operating profit™ and the
recognition of £60 millon of excepiional costs of which £30 million
was incurred in delivening the cost saving programme

Financial summary
Year ended Year ended
I March 2013 31 Mach 2012 Change
£m £m %
Revenue 1,472 1681 12
Operating profit™ 308 372 an
Profit before tax* 284 354 (20)
Profit before tax (statutory)** 66 217 7o
Cuee
pence perce %

EPS (adjusted basic)™** 330 401 (18)
EPS (basic) 67 211 (68)
Dridend per share 220 220 -

Read more on our Fnanca results on page 20
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Business review

Group CEO'’s review continued

Our award-winning rading platform, i-Swap, which aliows brokers

to trade euro IRS electronically has seen trading activity grow
significantly since its launch in Septermber 2010 In February we
launched 1-Swap in the US in anticipation of the publication of the final
rules for SEFs under the Dodd-Frank Act Today arcund a third of all
ICAPs 1-30 year euro IRS trades are executed through 1-Swap and
we aim o replicate this success nUS dollars and other currencies

in June we acquired Plus Stock Exchange plc one of only six RIEs

in the UK it was relaunched in October as ISDX The core offering

for 1SDX 15 1ts Growth Market which is dedicated to helping
entrepreneunal companies access equity capital to finance therr
businesses ICAP s well positioned to leverage ISDX s exchange status
to offer new products and salutions for its customers including
ume listed dervatives

We have continued to develop our nsk mitigation businesses which &re
now a core and embedded part of our customers processes and
infrastructure Duning the year TnCpama completed the largest tnReduce
compression cydle in Japanese yen IRS and its first portfolio compression

cydle at the Sngapore Exchenge

TriOptima continues toinnovate and provide 1ts customers with new
solutions triBalance which s expected to be launched towards the
end of 2013 15 a new service designed to reduce systemic nsk and
improve counterparty nsk management Since not al trades by banks
are eligible for cleanng triBalance wik provide a solution for firms to
maniage bilateral nsk for ther uncleared partfolios Tri0ptimars also
working with customers to pilot a new counterparty credit sk
anafytics service for OTC denvatives called tnQuantify

Key developments

Ihis year we have demonstrated that we have the appetite and the
ability to nnovate, nvest and develop new products and services

Global Broking

— creation of Global Broking dnvision enabling the Group to execute
a global strategy for all broking services

— acquisition of CTI Shipbrokers (india) Pvt

— expansion of global financial futures and options team

Electronic Markets

Transformation of EBS

- management structure strengthened

- undertock an extensive custamer consultation and business
review

- published new dea'ing rules

- unvelled significant changes to the EBS Market platform ncluding
a move away from deamalisation in most currency pairs

Both ReMatch and Reset launched new products including a new cross
currency basis service from Reset and a new product to help traders
manage nsk in the index market from Repatch

Traiana Is a key infrastructure provider within the global FX industry
Eight of 1ts customers have Investad N approximately 13% af the
company aligning our mterests and solidifying our partnership with
the leading players in the industry Aspartners they will assist us in
developing new inmatives as Traiana expands into other asset classes
Traianas Harmony network which has become an integral part of
FX trarsaction processing, 1S now connected to nine of the top ten
futures brokers posttioning it well to expand further its services nto
that asset dass

Our information services dwvision has an unnvalled pertfolio of
authoritative and independent OTC data services We increased our
product offerng by 15% this year toncorporate new and nnovative
data solutions as the market demands greater transparency and
accuracy These new products incdlude a series of trade-backed
volume-weighted indices based on real market transactions that

we have launched with partners including RepoFunds Rate for the
Furopean repo market and the Tankard Index for European natural gas

We continue to co-operate with international regulators as they further
investigate the banks that set Libor ad other international benchmarks
ICAP clearly does not have any direct role in the setting of Libor nor
does 1t profit from the level at whichitis set The Company 1s aware
however that one of its Global Broking entities 1s under investigation
Any allegation of wrongdoing by any of our employees s an extremely
senous matter for us and one that we continue to Mvestigate it 15

- announced EBS Direct a relationship-based platform that allows
users to choose the counterparties they trade with and provides
talored pnang

- acquired Clentknowledge a leading iquidity optimisation adwvisory
frm specialsing n FX

Acquisition and launch of 1ISDX

- one of only six RIEs in the UK, the others baing LSE LIFFE LME,
ICE and BATS Chi-X Europe

- am to expand our business n the capital-rasing market space and
look for opportunities to leverage ICAP's dervatives expertise

Launch of i-Swap in the US

- replicating the successfut electrong euro IRS trading platform
i US dollars
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essential that there 1s confidence in inancial markets and we support
the objectves of regulators and market participants themselves as
they seek to restore trust

Charity Day

We believe it 1s important that we make a positive contribution to the
communities n which we operate On one day each year afl of our
revenue and brokers’ comimussions are donated to chanty On

5 Decernber 2012 we celebrated ICAP s 20th Chanty Day This year
we rased £17 millen bringing the cumulative total that we have raised
in the past 20 years to more than £100 million benefiting 1,400 charies
around the world This momentous rmilestane would not have been
possibte without the ncredible and ongomng support of cur customers
suppliers and employees | am extremely proud of what we have been
able to achieve together and genumnely betieve it reflects the culture
and spint of the Company more accurately than anything else

Dividend

The directoss recormimend a final dividend of 15 4p per share The
full-year dvidend will be 22 Op (2011/12 — 22 Op) This reflects the
Groups continuing ablity to fund this level of dividend as a result of its
strong cash generation and the board s conbdence in the medium-
term prospects for the business

The final dividend is lower than the prior year of 16 Opwhich s smply
aresult of this year s mtenm dwidend being slightly higher at 6 6p
compared with 6 Op The full-year dividend per share of 22 Op1s
covered 15 tmes (2011/12 - 18 times} by adusted basic EPS of

33 Op If approved the final dwvidend will be pad on 19 July 2013 to
shareholders on the register on 28 June 2013 The shares will be
quoted ex-divdend from 26 June 2013

Post Trade Risk and Information

Customer investment in Tralana

— eight of sts customers invested n approxmately 13% of the
company aligning our interests and solidifying our partnership with
the leading players i the FX industry

TnOptima risk elmination and clearing

- completed s first portfolio compression cycle at the Singapore
Exchange

- completed the largest ever triReduce compression cycle n
Japanese yen [RS 271 & triflion ($3 trikon} in cleared
IRS notionat prinaipal cutstandings

Extended product offering from ICAP Information Services

- RepoFunds Rate launched with BrokerTec and MTS 1s the first
index to reflect the effective cost of secured funding in key
Eurgzone countries

— Tankard a series of indices for UK and European natural gas hubs
15 calculated from trades arranged by ICAP Marex Spectron and
Tullett Prebon The trades are physically-settled naturat gas
forwards transacted between utilities, natural gas producers
hedge funds banks and trading houses

Interm dridends are calculated as 30% of the prior year s full-year
dwidend This approach s expected to conunue for the 2013/14
financal year

Outlook

The new financial year has started encouragingly with an upturnin
trading activity seen in Aprii Market conditions however reman
fragle and unpredictable In the short term this situation is unlikely
te change until greater confidence in the markets is re-established
and there is more clarity around regulatary reform ICAP s one of
the world s leading financial market operators and our platforms
and services are centra to the daly needs of the wholesale financial
markets We are working dosely with our customers to ensure we
can take full advantage of the evolving market landscape and the
improvement In financial markets when it comes

We cantinue to drive efficiencies within the organisation and improve
the ongoing fiexibility of the cost base That sad investment for
future growth remains a key priority financed by the strong cash
generation of the business and the delivery of cost savings

Iwould ke to take this opporturity to thank Doug Rhoten who has
decided to retire after 14 years of service to ICAP Doug has made an
enormous contribution to ICAP's development especially to our North
Amencan business He has been a longstanding and valuable member
of our senior executive team and we wish bim welt for the future

Finally 1 would also ke to thank every ICAP employee for therr focus
hard work and commitment It has not been an easy year for any of
us and | have as always been impressed by ther professionalism

Muchael Spencer
Group Chief Executive Officer

- ajoint company credit rating servce with Rapid Ratings an
alternative rating, research and analytics firm Bringing together
two independent sources of market-leading information, this
product delvers a unique view of the credit dervatives market

— hazard rates and survival probabilities added to CDS pricing service
to create an expanded version of this end-of-day product which
enables customers to manage issuer credit risk efficiently

- ICAP Contaner Forward Freight Agreements a nsk management
tool that enables third party logistics and beneficial cargo owners
to fix their contawensed freight cash flows up to two years
In advance

— executed benchmark prang from Reset a leading global risk
mibgation service enabling banks and thewr traders to transaci a
varety of nterest rate dervatives to offset rermove or reduce the
outstanding reset {or fixing) nsk from thexr tradng portfolios
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Business review

Our business model

How we create
value for our
customers

ICAP plays a pivotal role n bringing buyers and
sellers together In the global wholesale financial
markets We help our customers manage and
mitigate therr nisks and provide them with a
choice of trading venues and methods ranging
from fuly electronic to broker assisted trades

Transparency and
market information

Live trading data and
IMAGE buds/offers displayed on (_
REMOVED ICAP propnetary systems

Live trading data, indicative
IMAGE | data and analysis via ICAP é‘
REMOVED| proprietary systems

Transaction-based indices, (_
IMAGE | yndicative and trading data
REMOVED| distnbuted wia third party
datavendors

Transparency

Market participants access hve and historic trading and indicative data
tomform therr trading decisions and assess market levels and actvity
ICAP displays ive and indicative data and prowides price transparency
to users of its systems by aggregating bids and offers and indications
of trading interest ICAP sells real-time and historical data direct and
via data vendors and provides market commentary

The value we brning our customers

' —) Electromic

This allows them to select the most appropriate
execution method depending on the liquidity of
the product and ther speafic needs They also
have access 1o an unnvalled source of financil
markets data Our nsk mitgation services help
customers reduce both their operational sk

and rmarket exposure

We continue to Innovate and develop new
products and services as the markets and our

customers' needs evolve

Venues and opportunities
for trade execution

IMAGE REMOVED

_) platforms

Broking

% including

e-capability

IMAGE REMOVED

Execution

ICAP provides market particpants with the abiity to trade on a purely
electronic basis typically In the most hquid assets with direct access
to ICAP s matching engines and ceniral order book For less iquid or
episodic markets participants can trade via one of ICAP s electronic
systerns and/or speak with an ICAP broker who will dentify trading
interest and avatlabiity from arnong other market participants ICAP
also acts as an executing broker for exchange products

The value we brning our customers

- unrivalled depth and breadth of data for wholesale financial markets

- aunique data set from our Global Broking business and the worid s
leading FX (EBS) and fixed mcome (BrokerTec) platiorms

— innovatwve new data products that complement our established
ndustry leading OTC dervatives data

- indicative and trade-backed volurme-weighted indices

- exceptional depth of lqudity

~ access to global counterparties and an orderly market

— greater speed of execution
- Increased certainty of trade

- efficient and farr access to prices for all par icipants

— improved nsk management
- secure refable networks
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Generating revenue

The majonty of our revenue comes from
commissions which vary in line with custormers’
trading activity Approximately 12% of our
revenue comes from subscription-type
services We do not engage In proprietary
trading or make markets using our balance
sheet Two thirds of our operating profit*
comes from our electronic and post trade

rsk and information businesses

Automated links and services
provided to other parts
of market infrastructure

IMAGE Automated e .
REMOVED links to:
- Cleanng
- Userrisk systems e
'—) IMAGE — Settlerment systems
REMOVED induding Central Banks
LCH Cearnet
Depositery Trust and
IMAGE Cleanng Corporation
and the derwvatives
REMOVED exchanges (_

Support to other infrastructure

ICAP has created bnks from its electronic broking and post trade
systemns to clearing houses customer nsk and position keeping
systemns and settlement venues It also provides services to clearing
house members and cleanng houses and trade repositeries/
depositories themselves

The value we bning our customers

IMAGE REMOVED

Portfolio risk reduction
and messaging

Management and netting of high velocity
market transaction details

XY}

Systemised mrtigation of customer
nsks by identifying and removing

— Trade mismatches

- Unwanted expasures

— Transactions that nolonger have
acomrercial purpose

Reconahation of transactions to allow
accurate reporting to regulators and
clearing houses

Risk reduction and messaging

The Traana service automates inks from any high speed execution
system not just ICAP s It also cperates the netting senvice on behalf of
CLS Bank, the worlds FX settlernent systern ICAR also operates a senes
of services through TnOpbma, Reset and ReMatch that enable users

of dervatives and bonds to mitigate unwanted nsks i therr trading
portfolios TnOptima allows trading counterparties and trade repositones
to reconalle trade details to ensure accurate calculation of risk

The value we bring our customers

- customer trades are sent autometically to cleanng houses
and repositones/depositories
- systermic risks are reduced

* Before acqusition and disposal costs and exceptional items

— reduce operational system wide nsk
- increase the efficiency of trading cleaning and settlement
and reducing costs
— Reset and ReMatch help customers manage nsk in their portfolios
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Business review

Our business model conimnued

We help
customers

execute trades

and access
clearing

Name give-up broking

ICAP identifies and introduces counterparties
who have ndicated ther wilingness to trade
with each other and who have reciprocal
credit or cleanng and/or where two cr
more customers orders match These
counterparties contract directly with each
other and/or the relevant cleanng house
bearing the settlement obligation as wel a5
the counterparty credit rsk themselves
Increasingly these trades are novated nto
clearing and ICAP aims to automate the
messaging process where possible

Name give-up broking

Dealer 1 t—ICAP—r Dealer 2

Contracl and settlement
Cheanng
hause

Risk
No credit nsk or contractual ink between
ICAP and dealers

ICAP executes or arranges trades on
behalf of its customers in one of three
ways depending on the asset class and
market nvolved These methods exist

in the electronic and broking businesses
ICAP also frequently asssts market users

executing multiple transactons simultaneously,
which means that more than one of these
methods may be involved in providing
customers with their desred outcome

Matched principal broking

ICAP enters nto simultaneous or near-
simultaneous purchase and sale transactions
on behalf of customers and 1s responsible for
settlerment Primanly this s to provide access
to cleanng and/or mantan post trade
ancnymity Settlement nsk to ICAP 15
mimmised through use of the delivery versus
payment settlement model (where delivery
of the traded instruments 1e the change i
therr ownership occurs at the same tme and
15 dependent an payment)

Matched principal broking

Dealer 1 (—)ICAPl—l Dealer 2

ICAP KAP
contracts conracts
and settles and settles

Clearing
house
Risk

Delwery versus payment model minimises
settlement nsk Any unmatched positions are
closed out as soon as reasonably practicable

MAGE REMOVED

Exchange broking — give-up
ICAP executes a trade on an exchange in the
capacity of executing broker on behalf of a
customer The customer s clearing member
accepts the trade for settlement at which
pont {CAP ceases to be party to the
transaction and settlernent risk transfers
This model is used to broke financiat
commodity equity dervatives and cash
equities instruments |CAP 1s a member of
the worldss largest dervatives exchanges

Exchange broking - give-up

Customer HICAP!—h Exd\ang:mn;zrpartyj

1

Custamner earing Counterparty
clearer house ¢ clearer
Risk

ICAP has minimal setttferment risk
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Technology is
at the heart of
our business

ICAP invests heavity in technology and user market infrastructure to
bulld and maintan our market-leading positions in 2012/13 13% of
our revenue was invested in technology and 20% of our people are
nvolved i technology

The ability to transact on systerms with the highest level of stability
15 of wital Impor tance to our customers We ensure that our global
broking electromic and post trade platforms not only meet the
current needs of our custommers but also anticpate the greater
reliance on electromic transactions as regulatory changes come
into force in Europe and the US As part of the SEF requirements
we will provide both surveillance and transaction monitering
where required

ICAP s technology spend is not purely focused on the prowvision of
access to market hquidity but increasingly provides services that are
embedded in cur customners operational flows and regulatory
comphance As well as straight through processing, we provide hrks
to transaction data reposttories and CCPs We also help our
customers manage ther own and therr clents nsk imits Examples
of greater integration between ICAP and its customer base are

» Trazna — already a key component in post trade market
infrastructure it supports trade lfe cycle and risk management
and has recently launched a suite of new services for regulatory
compliance for OTC dervatives

» EBS Direct — as well as provision of interbank trading capability
EBS will provide iis customers with the technology to stream
executable prices direct to ther clients and

» -Swap - already launched in Europe In anticpation of an increase
in electronic trading of IRS this co-operative venture between
ICAP and a group of major dealers has now been launched in the
US for the support of US dollar IRS

GRAPHIC REMOVED

GRAPHIC REMOVED
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Business review

Our business model continued

We attract and
invest in high
quality people

People and values

Our people

Our success as an organisation is dependent on the calbre and skills
of the people we employ As the organisation has grown bothin size
and complexity the breadth of skills we require has increased to
match We lock for people who in addition to having a range of
techmical skills are custormer and solutions focused entrepreneurial
professional and able to perform in a pressunsed environment

Our busingss provides significant opportunities for developrment and
cross functional working through a range of project teams 40% of
our people have been in ICAP for more than five years driving our
business ana underpinning our organisational growth

The changing chmate and the demands that come from this require
us to ensure that we have within ICAP & culture that dnves and
enceurages appropriate behaviour for ICAP 1ts customers
sharehglders and employaes Regulators customers and the

wider society are demanding that financial services organisations
continuousty improve their cultures At ICAP we are giving additional
training to highlight the reasons behind regulatery changes and
compliance chligations

Performance and reward

ICAP s remuneration policy 1s performance based and s structured to
be both consistent with and cromote effective nsk management in
respect of ICAP s actwvities

Employee compensation costs are the most significant part of
ICAP s cost base In the current economic emaronment we are
ensuring that our compensation packages remain competitive

while at the same time beng commensurate with and linked to
the Company s performance

Broker compensation is directly inked to commission which vanes
from desk to desk Such arrangements are structured te ensure that
no more than a minimal nsk remains outstanding at the trne of
payment [n 2013 given the more demanding trading condibons and
the changing regulatory environment increased scrutiny has been
placed on comrussion terms for new contracts

IMAGE REMOVED

In 2012/13 we expandad the long term incentive plan to a wider
group of managers beiow GEMG level This has mtroduced an
element of deferral with rewards being inked to both past and future
performance Such schemes encourage the bulkding of a profitable
stable and low rsk business over the long terrmwath wider equity
participation

Traning and development

This year we have increased our focus on training and developrment
with particufar emphasis on cur leadership and management It 1s
cntical that our managers and leaders have the skills they need to
take us to the next stage of business growth

We have extended and enhanced our comprehensive traning
programme for our senior broking managers and desk heads which
reinforces ICAP s cultural values

Traring 1s delivered on an ongoing basis to make employees aware of
important 1ssues including anti-money laundering bribery corruption
and market sbuse Allemployees must complete their e-learning and
training records are monitored to ensure compliance

Graduate recruitment

ICAP 15 committed to rmantaining an active global graduate
recrutment and development programme even in these siower
market conditions First launched in 2006 ICAP s programme aims

to provide a steady flow of talent into the business Since inception

a total of 289 graduates have joined ICAP with 48 graduates joining
in the past year We alsc run a range of internship and placement
programmes to ensure we attract the bnghtest early on the most
successful of whom are offered full-time positions once they graduate
All cur programmes cover the breadth of cur global businesses

Diversity and inclusion

ICAP 15 committed to providing and promoting equality of
opportunity in employment and advancement and an environment
that ensures tolerance and respect for all employees ICAP s policy 1s
that no employee contractar or temporary worker will be treated
less favourably wvictimised or harassed on the grounds of disability
gender marnital or cvil partnership status race natronality, colour
ethricity rebgion or similar philosophical bekef sexual orentation
age or any distinction other than merit
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Our values

and culture
guide the way
we do business

There are four key values on which we focus
to deliver our strategic goals These define
the culture of ICAP

IMAGE REMOVED

Leadership

ICAP ams to deliver ‘bestin industry
results, both financially and operaticnally
We need to be the standard setter for
our industry across a broad range of
measures, establishing the performance
benchmarks that other companies use to
Judge themselves To do this we foster
and reward ambrtion in our employees
and managers

Integrity

ICAP endeavours to build and maintain a
relationship of openness and trust with
its customers, partners, investors and
regulators To do this the Company and
its employees are expected to behave
consistently and within standards of
ethical and professtonal conduct at al
times and these qualities need to be
rewarded appropriately

Entrepreneurship

ICAP seeks to anticipate industry
change, identify and assess new
business opportunities, move at speed
to capture these and manage the risks
that inevitably arise in this process

To do this the Company must attract,
motivate and retain creative people,
manage tself and its infrastructure and
processes In a way which fosters agility
and controlled experimentation and an
emvironment where employees charged
with supporting the business are heard
and valued

Respect for control

As a key part of the global financial
nfrastructure, ICAP respects and

1s seen tobe respecting both the spirit
and the letter of the control, comphance
and assurance environment within which
the Group operates worldwide

s o 13
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Business review

Regulatory landscape and market trends

Well positioned
to benefit from
the changing
market landscape

Regulatory reforms are being implemented
across the globe and the competitive landscape
s changing in response New trends are
emerging as banks adjust to meet more
stringent capital and Iiquidity requirements,
standardised dervatives are pushed towards
electronic trading and the role of post trade and
risk mitigation services becomes more crucial

ICAP has the scale and diversity to succeed In
this new environment Much of ICAP's business
is unaffected by the forthcoming regulatory
reform and in some areas, for example bank
deleveraging, the impact of regulatory reform
has already been felt In our post trade and risk
mitigation businesses we are confident there are
significant opportunities for growth

Basellll

Higher regulatory capital requirements and tighter hquidity
constrants are driving banks to restructure therr balance sheets

This deleveraging has already had ansmpact with US bank holdings
of corporate bonds 80% below peak levels The revenue from Global
Broking, excluding commodities, has fallen by approximately 35%
since 2008/09 Although there may be further bank deleveraging
ahead of Basel lll, we beheve this has now largely taken place and
going forward there will be an increase in the size of the broker/
exchange intermediated part of the derivatives markets as the level
of nternalisation of flows by banks declnes significanty

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Our strateqgy in actron

ICAP launches i-Swap
in the US

Driven by the new regulatory landscape trading in IRS 15 moving
progressively electroric In February 2013 ICAP launched 1-Swap
i the US for the electronc trading of US dollar IRS building on the
success of the award winning i-Swap euro platform

1-Swap 1s becormning an increasingly important part of the market
nfrastructure, provid ng a cost-effiuent and transparent
electronic trading venue for customers The -Swap US dollar
platform provides new levels of transparency with a full audit trail
and marks a significant milestone in the development of the
wholesale financial markets Market participants will benefit from
using 1-Swap in the US through reduced operational nsk lower
costs and greater execution options
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Electronic markets

ICAP is the leading provider of spot FX and fixed income electromc
merkets through EBS and BrokerTec and these cash products remain
largely outside the scope of the Dodd-Frank Act

The regulatary push towards mare transparent, automated
execution and clearing in dervatives markets 1s 3 positive driver for
our business By nnovating and leveraging our existing electronic
platforms and connectivity we are better pasitioned than our
traditional competitors The move to electronic trading is Iikely to
result n new competitors m many asset classes We believe however
that the requrement under US regulation that certan dervatives
must be traded on SEFs or exchanges will result in a fall in the level
of internalisation by banks in these markets This could result ina
greater share of overall flows going through market infrastructure
providers such as ICAP

In interest rate derivatives ICAP s market-leading electrornic 1-Swap
platform has aiready gained traction ineuro IRS We have recently
launched electronic trading of US dellar RS with a planned roll-out in
addiional currencies over the coming months In FX we are able to
leverage the unique distribution of EBS as NDF and forwards markets
move ncreasingly electronic Our equities and energy businesses
already exist In an exchange-traded environment servicing customers
in black futures and less hquid bespoke swaps

Swaps versus futures

In October 20312 the US energy markets saw a shift from swaps into
futures We believe however that the primary dnver of futunsation
in the energy swaps market was the stricter reporting requiremeant
for Major Swap Participants (MSP) under CFTC rules Many energy
companies were reluctant to register as MSPs while uncertanty
rernans around the cross-border application of many of the

CFTCs ndes

Grven the lower margin requirenenit that US regulation has prescribed
for futures versus swaps there s the possibility that other asset
classes will move to futures For ICAP, the futunsation debate 1S maost
relevant to [RS The European IRS market 1s larger than its US
counterpart and European regulation 1s more nuanced Insts approach
towards margining We therefore expect less divergence in margin
requirements in Europe across swaps and futures 1-Swap has already
ganed significant traction in euro IRS and has a shareholder base
which includes leading banks Moreover IRS markets also have a
higher proportion of end-user customers that need bespoke hedging

solutions of specific durations We expect an increase In efectronic
trading i the benchmark points with a relatively lasge off-the-run
brokered market in other durabons where there is insufficient
laudity to support screen trading US Treasunes s a prime example
of amajor financial product which has longstanding electronic
markets but where ICAP also has an extremnely successful broker
franchise in off-the-run issues

As an executing broker ICAP has rezently significantly expanded
its financial futures broking business and in markets such as US
energy where business has shifted from swaps towards futures
it has transioned to being a block futures broker

ICAP 5 1SDX 15 one of only six RIEs nthe UK 1SDX is currently
focused on strengthening its Growth Market for srnalt and mred-cap
companies Inthe future it could beused to launch new dervatives
contracts leveraging off ICAP s substantiaf existing electronic and
dervatives expertise

Risk mitigation

Regulators are ncreasingly fecusedon the need for firms to improve
their management of risk rmeasures such as portfoko reconcliation
and OTC denvative trade compression ICAP 15 the leading provider of
post trade nsk and nformation services and we have seen ncreasing
demand from customers who are seeking to comply with these new
regulatory requirements We expect the demmand for nsk rmitigation
services o grow across a broader range of financial Institutions

Financial transactions tax

In the EU eleven Member States have provisionally agreed to
Introduce afinancial transactions tax (F1T) As propased this would
have a very damaging effect on the cost of funding for governments
and corporates particularly those mthe £ 1T zone There could also
be negative consequences for financial stabdity

As part of ongoing efforts to contrbute to the requlatory debate, In
Apnl 2013 ICAP published an analyss of the potential impact of the
FTT This concluded that the FTT as proposed would increase funding
costs for government and corporates n particular those in the FTT
zone and have a negatve effect on financial stability Read the paper
st www capcom/ftt

Negotiabons are ongoing and while at this stage the outcome 1
uncertain we are hopeful that, if introduced the FTT would be
designed in such a way as to mutigate any detnmental impact

IMAGE REMOVED
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Business review

Our strategy

Anticipating the

changing marketplace
and customer needs

Corporate goals

ICAP’s goal 1s to be the leading provider
of trade execution services and market
nfrastructure to the global wholesale
financial sector

We recognise that wholesale financial markets
are changing and regulatory developments
are redefining certain aspects of our business
During this period of fundamental change
for the financial services industry, we will
continue to be responsive to the evolving
needs of our custormers and will align our
Interests accordingly

In the markets n which we operate, we

am to be at the forefront of product and
technological nnovation We remain focused
on driving the future growth of the business
through the development of new products
and services and the expansion Into new
markets We continue to invest in all aspects
of our business including the ongoing
development of electronic trading platforms
and post trade services

We aspire to be recognised as an organisation
with a strong, positive and responsible culture
that plays an important role in the community

Our am continues to be to deliver sustainable
long-term growth and shareholder value

IMAGE REMOVED
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Strategic priorities

In pursuit of the corporate goals the following key strategic priorities have been identified

Leverage the comparative
advantage of our global businesses

Progress

Ensure our businesses are ready
for regulatory change

Progress

— 1-Swap utilises the combination of our interest
rate voice market flow and lquidity with market
leading technology

— In collaboration with Globai Broking and
Electronic Markets, the development of a
combined Asian NDF offering

— The consolidation of product groups within
Global Broking

Continue investment in products
and technological innovation

Progress

~ Launch of 1-Swap in US ahead of final SEF
rules/Dodd-Frank Act

— Introduction of trade-backed volume-weighted
indices in response to demand from the market
for more transparent auditable benchmarks

— Expansion of our global financial futures and
options team

Improve the efficiency and cost
effectiveness of the organisation

Progress

— Development of new products and services
ncluding EBS Brrect, TriOptima’s triBalance
and Tralana's CreditLink

— Amalgamation of our three regionally-managed
voice broking busnesses into one Global
Broking division

— Expansion of post trade risk and information
services INto new asset classes, for example the
addition of exchange traded dervatives, hixed
income, cleared swaps, cash equiies and equity
swaps on to Traiana’s Harmony network

- Mantaining investrment in technology at 13%
of revenue

Reinforce cultural values and
best business practices

Progress

- Ongoing commitment to employee
development and graduate recrustment
prograrnme

— Extension and enhancement of mandatory
compliance traning programmes for all ICAP
employees

— The cumulative total amount donated in
20 years of ICAP Chanty Day 1s £100 millon

— Integration of Reset and ReMatch operations

— Delivery of £60 millon of cost savings in
2012/13, annualsed at £80 miflon

— More flexible cost base through renegotiation
of broker compensation and consolidation and
rationalisation of infrastructure services

a0t 1/
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Business review

Key performance indicators

Solid progress in
difficult markets

GRAPH REMOVED

GRAPH REMOVED

Definition Operating profit* split between ICAP s business
segments of Global Broking Electronic Markets and Post Trade
Risk and Information

Performance ICAP ams to have a sphit of operating profit” that is
evenly distnbuted between its Global Broking Electronic Markets
and Post Trade Risk and Information businesses In 2012/13 we
moved closer to this goal with the Electronic Markets and Post
Trade Risk and Information businesses now representing 66% of
operating profit™

Defimition Percentage of revenue derved from bank and
non-bank execution revenue and subscription fees

Performance ICAP aims to reduce the volatility of earmings
through growith in businesses whose revenue is less susceptible
to fluctuations in martet volurmes Anumber of ICAP s Electronic
Markets and Post Trade Risk and Information businesses generate
revenue through a combination of execution services and
recurnng subscrption fee incorme

The ncrease In the proportion of subsenption fees reflects their
recurnng nature and the dechne inexecution revenue

GRAPH REMOVED

GRAPH REMOVED

Definition Adjusted basic EPS 1s the profit after tax* attrbutable
to the equity holders of the Group dded by the weighted
average number of shares in ssue dunng the year exctuding
shares held to satisfy employee share plans and shares purchased
by the Group and held s Treasury Shares

Performance ICAP amns to deliver supenor EPS growth for our
investors Adusted basic EPS fell this year to 33 Op ending along
run of consistent year-on-year growth The fall reflected
operating profit* deckne in difficult trading conditions Given the
quahty of ICAP s business we remain confident that superor EPS
growth s an achievable and realistic medwurn-term goal

* Before acquasiton and disposal costs and exceptional itemns

Definition Conversion of profit tocash is caleulated as cash
generated from operations before acquisition and disposal costs
and exceptional iterns less cash flows from operations relating to
non-controling nterests interest tax capital expenditure plus
dwidends received from associgtes and investments measured
as a percentage of operating profit*

Performance The Group’s business mode! efficiently converts
profit nto cash and aver the medium to longer term we expect
profit and cash to converge Cash conversion remans strong and
this year has increased to 130% prmardy as a result of an
improved working capital position
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Definition Global Broking revenue divided by the average number
of voice brokers for the year

Performance Revenue per broker provides a measurement of
broker productiity The reduction in revenue per broker in
2012/13 reflects the dechne in global broking revenue partizlly
offset by a 6% fall in broker headcount

Defimition Spend incurred in the mantenance and development
of all information technology systems as a percentage of
total revenue

Performance ICAP continues to invest in its market feading
electronic platforms This enables us te anticipate and respond to
our customers’ needs Technology spend as a percentage of
revenue ramains constant at 13% reflecting ICAP s ongoing
Investment N 1its electronie capabiities

GRAPH REMOVED

GRAPH REMOVED

Defimition ICAP estimates its share of the overall avadable market
(excluding globa! cash equities)

Performance Global market share 15 estimated at between
21-23% based on a total avalable market of $11 bilion

The deciine In market share during the year partly reflects

the varying revenue pesformance and product mix of ICAP s
three business segments

*  Before acqusition and disposal costs and excepuional tems

Definition Operating profit* dvided by revenue from continuing
operations

Performance The overall operating profit margin® fell by one
percentage point reffecting the decline in revenue partially offset
by £60 millon of cost savings The operating margins of the
Electrome Markets and Post Trade Risk and Information
businesses were maintained at 42% and 44% respectively
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Business review

Results for 2012/13

Our diversified
business is a
key strength

Review of operations

For the year ended 31 March 2013 the Group reported revenue of
£1472 milior 12% below the prior year Trading actiwiy across all
asset classes was negatvely impacted by a combination of factors
including the depressed global economy a low interest rate
environment and regulatory uncertainty

Group net operating expenses™ of £1,164 milion were 11% lower
than the previous year In response to the challenging market
condipons @ cornprehensive review of the cost base was undertaken
This initially identified total cost savings of £50 million for the year
annualised at £60 midlion, from a reduction in overall headcount
renegotation of broker contracts and compensation rates and the
consobdation and ratonalisanion of Infrastructure support Excellent
progress was made and the initial targets were exceeded with total
cost savings of £60 milron dehvered during the year annuahsed at
£80 million {£20 million Mgher than intial estimates) The cost saving
intiztives have improved the ongoing flexibility of the cost base

The additional annualised cost savings of £20 millon are expected to
be reinvested in a number of initiatives across the business ICAP has
continued ta invest for future growth including the development of
EBS Direct expansion by Traiana mto new products and asset classes
and ongoing product innovation within TrOptima

By the year end the number of employees had declined from 5,123
to 4 976 The overall net reduction of 147 emplayees reflects the
departure of 344 voice broers partly offset by 197 new hires
prinapally in high growth areas

The Group reported an operating profit* of £308 millon down 17%
on the prior year The Groups operating profit margin® for the year
ended 31 March 2013 decreased to 21% In the year ended

31 March 2013, the proportion of Group operating profit* generated
from Global Broking Electronic Markets and Post Trade Risk and
Information was 34% 37% and 29% respectively

Profit before tax* of £284 mhon was down 20% on the prior year
Profit before tax on a statutory** basis fell by £151 mdion to

£66 million reflecting the decline in operating profit™ and the
recognition of £60 miflion of exceptional costs of which £30 millon
was incurred in delvering the cost saving programme

Markets

ICAP provides services in a wide range of geographies and asset
dasses with the breadth of its market coverage being a key strength
of the Group We report on our business segments externally in the
same way that we manage and report them internally The major
segments are Global Broking which we report by geographic region,
Electronic Markets and Post Trade isk and Information

IMAGE REMOVED

* Betore acqusition and disposal cests and exceptional items
** Stat.tory profit for the penod after acqu s bon and c sposal costs and
exceptonal stems.

Consolidated Group revenue 2013 Change
by asset class £m %
Rates 586 (10}
FX and money markets 339 (9}
Commodities 190 (7}
Ermerging markets 142 (15)
Credit 108 (30)
Equities 107 (20)
Total 1,472 (12)

ICAP Energy was voted “Overall
Energy Broker of the Year”

for the 8th successive year

in the Energy Risk 2013
Commodity Rankings.

ICAP has won “Interdealer Broker
of the Year” award for the 4th
time in the past five years as
voted by AsiaRisk magazine.
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Global Broking

Focused on higher
growth markets

In September 2012 a new Global Broking division was formed
amalgamating the three regionally-managed voice broking businesses
inEMEA the Amencas and Asia Pacific under the leadership of Dawd
Casterton This reorganisation myrrors the way the Electronic Markets
and Post Trade Risk and Information dvisions are ranaged and
enhances the dvisions abifity to serve its global customer base

Qur Global Broking business 1s active in wholesale markets across all
asset classes with the geographic performance shown below Bult on
customer relationships, ICAPs 2 195 brokers help identfy potential
trading interest and n so doing create iguidity and facilitate pnce
discovery in a vast array of financial instrumeants

ICAPs strategy 1s to Invest in growth markets and seize opporturitics
as they arise to expand market share in products where it 1s not the
leader to maintain its market share where It is the leader and to
extend its technolegical capabilities across its product set

Revenue and operating fovewe  Chome e Crorge
profit* by region £m % £m %
EMEA 488 (13) 77 27
The Americas 397 a7 34 (19)
Asia Pacific 112 (15) (6) n/m
Total 997 (15) 105 (31

Before acqusiton and dsposal casts ard except ond! erms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue decreased by 1%
Revenue was impacted by a combination of macroeconomic country
and product specific facters ncludng the ongoing Eurozone crists,

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

uncertainty created by the US fiscal clff negotiations, historically fow
nterest rates, regulatory uncertanty around the Dodd-Frank Act and
the effect of the Basel il capital adequacy requirements

Cperaung profit* reduced by 31% to £105 milton and the operating
profit margin* decreased to 11% This reduction in margin of two
percentage points on the previous year reflects animprovement

in the secord half of the year as the financial results of the division
benefited from the implementation of the cost saving programme
and the achievernent of run-rate break-even in the operations in
Brazl Given the chaflenging market conditions we continue to adjust
the Global Broking cost base and increase its cngoing flexibifity
Broker headcount has dechined from 2,347 to 2195 In addition
incividual broker corpensation has been restructured across all
regions to enhance the variable nature of broker costs

The table below illustrates Global 8roking revenue by asset class
Rates and FX and money markets represent 47% of total Global
Braking revenue

Revenue by asset class zo;’i °““"’§

Rates 355 (12)
FX and money markets 111 (17)
Commodities 190 (N
Emerging markets 142 (15)
Credit 93 (28)
Equities 106 (20)
Total 997 (1%)

Our strategy in action

Development of a global
Asian NDF offering

Duning 2012/13 we have seen sigrficant growth n the electronic
wrading of Asian NDFs on the EBS Market platform We are looking
10 butd on thes success by combining ICAP's Global Broking and £BS s
respective Asian NDF resources arxd expertise to create a urnauely
powerful and competitve product ofienng that wllleverage the
brokers’ customer relatonsheps and EBSs extensive electron
network and capabibties This offeringwdl enable us to caprtalse

on the growth potential of the Asian NDF market
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BuUsINEss review

Global Broking continued

Rates

The rates business comprises interest rate derwvatives government
bonds repos and financial futures

Rates products contnbute the largest share of Global Brokings
revenue These products expenenced reduced activity levels
througheut the year reflecting the historically low interest rate
environment and flat yield curves which particularly impacted interest
rate derwvatives and futures The Lurozone cnsis and the uncertanty
around the SEF rules and the impact of Basel lll future capital
requirements on ICAP s customers have been a further drag on
market confidence and nsk appetite

There was a madest mprovernent In the US government bonds
secondary market in the second half of the year following the Federal
Reserves announcement to extend the third round of quanttative
easing in Septernber 2012 This was further cemented by the Federal
Open Market Committees announcement in December that low rates
would continue into the foreseeable future

Given the ongoing uncertanty n the Curozone region the European

government bond markets have been extremely nsk averse Trading
activity was boosted by short-term penods of volatility driven by the
Eurapean Sovereign debt cnsis and Central Bank actions

Despite lower volumes the expanded global financial futures and
options team gradually increased its market share over the year and
15 well placed for an improverment In trading conditions

For the seventh consecutive
year, ICAP was voted first in
the interest rate broker
category in Risk Magazine’s
annual rankings.

IMAGE REMOVED

The IRS tearns n London and New York have worked n collaberation
with our electromic businesses to develop1-Swap an electronc
platforrm which leverages interest rate swap voice market flow and
liquidity from the largest dealers with market-leading trading
technology ICAP plans to extend this type of cross-dvisional
collaboration to other products

FX and money markets |

The FX and money markets business comprises spot and forwards
cash products and a joint venture in FX options

Market conditions were difficult throughout the year as FX volumes
inspot forwards and options all decined largely due to reduced
exchange rate volatiity but primarily as a result of central bank
intervention Inaddition the low interest rate envirenment resulted in
less carry trade actvity further depressing volurnes Although
forwards continued 10 be a popular tool for managing balance sheet
requirements trading activity, particularty n EMEA declined from the
axceptionally high levels recorded in the previous year to more normal
levels Trading actnty in money markets was subdued as interest
rates remained at historical lows

Commodities

The commodities busness comprises energy {(induding power and
electnaity olls natural gas coal and alternative fuels) stupping
metals intellectual property and other products (induding cotton,
wool and sugar)

In October 2012 a significant proportion of ICAP s U5 electricity and
natural gas custormers rmigrated from swaps to futures as the
Interconbnental Exchange converted its energy swap contracts nto
reguiated futures contracts ICAP s energy swaps and futures brokers are
fully regstered and licensed to broker energy products as futures or swaps
and can execute futures and listed optons on a vanety of exchanges

KCAP has been a kead ng brokerage house for block-sized futures n crude
refined products softs and agneutturd futures for many years and has
deep pools of lqudity to execute Dlock futures n these products

Our strategy in action

Creation of the
Global Broking division

ICAPs abatity to mnovate and adapt enables us to respond effectively
to challenging market condibons and the evobang influence of
technology and regulatory change In Sepiernber 2012 ICAP created
the Global Broking dvision an amalgamagion of ICAP s three regonal
vorce broking businesses The division consssts of more than 2 000
voce brokers agoss 20 offices A snde global braking division
enables us to serve our existing and potentia! customers better In
addtion resporsibility for the development of technological solutions
for our global customer base has been concentrated nto a single
group, afowing us to streamline our systems and resources to defiver
operating efficencies in the global mardetplace
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Continued market volatiity heloed dnve revenue in oils and alternative
fuels Market conditians remaned challenging for shipping with ittle
prospect for improved freight rates and sale and purchase continued
to be impacted by a lack of trade finance This resulted in impairng
the value of goodwill in the dry chartenng businass to nil

During the year a number of new ntiabives were launched to develop
the commodities business ncluding the expansion of the soft
commodities group to include a full-service cotton broking team and
the extensicn of TrueQuote ICAP s voice -electronic broking service
for OTC crude fuel ol and middie distilate swaps to wet freight
dervatives ICAP expanded its metals business to provide middle
office services to chents and plans to grow this service to cover other
exchanges The acquisition of CTI Shipbrokers (India) Pyt in
Septernber 2012 strengthenad ICAP 5 position n India with offices in
New Delh and Mumnbal employing 28 people

Emerging markets

ICAP is active In emerging markets across Asiz Pacific Latin America
Central and Eastern Eurepe and Africa Emerging market revenue
includes domestic activity in local markets and cross border activity In
globally traded ernerging market money and interast rates products

While the revenue from ermerging markets was down a number of
local markets remain robust ICAP s operations in Brazil reached
run-rate break-even towards the year end This was achieved after a
modest improvernent in revenue a restructuning of its cost base and
changes to the serior management team In the Asia Pacific region
trading activity was particularly robust in inda the Philppines and
Thalland Other emerging market inibatives included the application to
the Secunities and Exchange Board of India for a ficence to set up a
corporate bend and fixed income exchange Deliverable CNH
products continue to be an arez of focus and growth nthe region
and, in China ICAP s joint venture with CFETS continues to perform
well Growth in EMEA was held back by capital adequacy 1ssues
particularly in Russia and Turkey

IMAGE REMOVED

Credit
The credit business comprises corporate bonds and credit denvatives

Credit markets were extremely challenging A tack of risk appetite
and secondary market actiwty as well as ncreased competitive
pressure had a significant negative mpact on revenue, paruculerly
in credit dervatives

Corporate bonds which represent more than 75% of Global Brokings
credit revenue saw a short-term mprovement in activity in January
with the start of the bank customers rew financial year reflecting
new debt 1ssuance and an ncrease n risk appetite Market conditions
however, remaned fragle and the increase in activity expenenced

i January was not maintained In response to market conditions

ICAP reduced broker headcount within its credit businesses and
continues o review Its cost base tadentify further eficiency gans

Equities
The equities business principally comprises equity derivatives

Fquity derivatives continued to experience very difficult market
conditions in part ansing from the significant rumber of actve broking
firms operating In the market leading to reduced customer trading
and further margin compression This resutted in an imparment n the
value of intangible assets relating to the Link business by £72 millon
to £6 milon

In response to these difficuit market conditions 1CAP has
restructured its equities business Inthe US the Link and ICAP
corporate equity businesses have been combined under one
managernent team resuling in a single equity offering for customers
In Tokyo half the equity denvatives group was relocated to Hong Kong
and cormbined with the Hong Kong team mirroring the move by its
international customer base

Our strategy in action

Increased focus on
emerging markets

Akey facet of Global Brokings strategy s to develop its emerging
merkets business Investment n people systerns andinfrastructure
has delivered strong revenue growth n India and China (through cur
CFETS joint venture) over the past 12months Qur operations n
Brazi achieved a run-rate break-even position towards the end of
the financal year

ICAP recogrises that future growthnFX volumes will largely be
draven by the emerging markets indludng Brazi, Russia, India and
China We have focused our resources accordingly and the results are
encouragng Followng the lsunch in India of our EBS spot US dollar/
Indian rupee FX business in February 2013 we continue to see strong
growth both in trading counterpartes and average daily volume
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Business review

Electronic Markets

Capturing

increasing demand
for electronic trading

ICAP operates EBS Market platform and BrekerTec the world s leading
electronic trading platforms in spot FX and government fixed ncome
The platforms offer efficient and effective exchange-lke trading
solutions to more than 2 800 customners in over 50 countries across
arange of nstrumenits ncluding spot FX US Treasunes European
gaovernment bonds and EU and US repo The platforms are built on
ICAP s bespoke networks which connect participants in wholesale
financial markets

ICAP s strategy is to grow Its glebal electronic business through
increasing volumes of exsting products by developing new products
and expanding into new markets

Revenue £m Chma:
EBS 137 1
BrokerTec 121 (7
Other electronic 10 (33)
Total 268 i

o %
Operating profit* 113 (11

* Before acquisiion disposal costs and exceptonal items

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue decreased by 11%
Combined average dally electronic volumes for the EBS Market for
spot FX and the BrokerTec fixed income platform for the year ended
31 March 2013 were $702 billon, a decrease of 12% on the previous
year Operating profit* reduced by 11% 1o £113 millon The operating
profit margin” of the electronic businesses was maintained at 42%
reflecting the benefit of cost savings delivered duning the year

Last year EBS won Best Matching
Platform at the Profit and Loss
Reader’s Choice Digital Market
Awards and Best Broker for

Spot FX at the FX Week Best
Banks Awards.

IMAGE REMOVED

EBS

The award-winning EBS Market platform provides efficient and far
access to global markets for spot FX precious metals and NDF
traders around the world For the year ended 31 March 2013
revenue decreased by 11% reflecting a dechine n transaction revenue
which represents approximately 65% of total EBS revenue

Average daly FX electromc broking velume on the EBS Market
platformwas $116 bilion a 24% decrease on the prior year Despite
the reduction in volume £BS Market platform has maintained its
market leading position in some of the world s most actively traded
currency pars including euro/US dellar and US doliar/Japanese yen

Volume on the EBS Market platform was subdued for most of the
year due to lower trading actvity across all major currency pairs
refiecting the bow interest rate environment reduced exchange rate
volatility in part caused by Central Bank intervention and the scaling
back of proprietary trading A change in Japanese monetary policy n
early 2013 provided a short-term boost to Japanese yen volumes in
January and February

Activity In NDFs continued to grow both in average daily volume
which increased by 645% over the prior year and in the average
number of daily trading counterparties which increased by 7C% over
the prior year in partnership with Global Broking a combined Asian
NDF offering 1s being developed that will leverage both the brokers
custormer relationships and EBS s unique electronic network and
capabilities In February EBS executed the first trade in US dollar/
Indian rupee for onshore bank customers in India The rupee 15 already
one of the top 2C most traded currencies globally and this position 1s
set to rise when it becomnes fully convertible

In March 2012, Gl Mandelzis was appointed Chief Executive Officer
of EBS and subsequently restructured the business including the
senior management team During the course of the year and
following consultation with the EBS customner base, new dealing rules
and platform changes were implermented to improve customers
trading experience and ensure that EBS remains the source of
genuine executable spot FX iquidity These enharcements included
amave to half pips and fult pips n core pairs and revised quote and
but fill rabio targets These changes have been positively receved by
EBSs customers

In Novernber 2012 ICAP announced the upcoming launch of £BS
Direct a new relationship-based disdosed qudity serace which wil
widen the current custormer base EBS Direct which s now Iive with its
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beta prograrmme and four iguidity providers delvers increased trading
opportunities by enabling the streaming of talored pnces drect to
liquidity consumers. EBS Direct has already signed up more than

200 customers in 44 countnes with commitrment from over 2C iquicity
providers and expects to go kve n the second half of 2013/14

In December 2012 EBS acquired Global Research and Consuiting
Limited known as CheniKnowledge the leading adwisory liquidity
optimisation firm specialising n FX Chentknowledge has been
integrated into EBS 5 operations under the name [BS Liquidity
Optimization This has added a wide range of umigue quantitative and
analysis services alongside existing products to support efficency
best execution and improved profitability for EBSs customers
Working dosely with EBS Direct this will help extend EBS s customer
base as an aggregator of FX iquidity and embed EBS more deeply
within its customers value chan

BrokerTec

BrokerTec is the leading electronic trading platform for the fixed Income
markets providing innavative technology solutions across 2 wide range
of products to maore than 500 customers round the world BrokerTec
delivers efficient, transparent anonymous and orderty electronic fixed
income trading opporturibies for all market participants

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue decreased by 7%
compared to the prior year partly &s a consequence of a change in
the product and custorner mix Total average dally volume in US
Treasury products EUrepo and US repo was $587 billon, a decrease
of 9% compared to the prior year Following BrokerTec s migrabion to
aneaw trading platform in March 2012 it benefited from an increase
in market share in US actives the key product it trades

Lower volurne on the BrokerTes platform was driven by historically
low yields resulting in tighter trading ranges as well as unease over
the state of the global economy A number of factors frorm the US
and Europe contributed to this including quantitative easing reduced
investor confidence due to the ongoing Eurozone crisis fiscal chff
concerns, the debt celing and, more recently the US budget
sequastration A modest improvernent in the US economy and an
active new issuance programme In Eurczone markets improved
volumes towards the year end

Repo volumes improved in the last quarter of 2012/13 as some
banks retumed cash 1o the European Central Bank under the
long-term refinancing operation and secunties returned to secondary
markets Pressure on credit ines between banks particularly In Spain
and Italy continued to drive business electronically via central
counterparties as there was an increased need to trade bilaterally

and therefore to use the cleanng fackties of a central counterparty
as offered over BrokerTec The increase in repo volumes in the last
quarter of 2012/13 resulted in a less pronounced improvernent in
revenue due to the relatively nelastic priang structure

In Novermber 2012 s ine with 1ts angoing investrment in technology
BrokerTec launched a new high speed market data protocal called
ITCH for the US Treasury market ITCH allows customers to track
the status of an order from the time (15 first entered untl its
execution or cancelation

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Our strategy in action

Progress at EBS

Followang the appointrent of Gil Mandedzis as the new Chief
Executve Officer in March 2012 EBS conducted an in-depth review
of its business After extensive consultation with customers
announced new dealing rules in July which promote transparency
fairness and executable auidity for al particpants This was part of a
new senes of Initetives for EBS that nduded a move away from
deamahsation for most of its currency pars In November EBS
announced its ntention to launch EBS Direct a relationship-based
platform that alows Lsers to choose the counterparties they trade
with and provde talored pncng These nitatives together witha
restructusng of its eperations have strengthened the averall EBS
offerng which has been well recerved by customers
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Business review

Electronic Markets continued

i-Swap

I-Sweap ICAP s global electronic trading platform for IRS has
continued to buld on its leading market position and has brought
increased transparency and greater efficiency as well as lower
transaction costs to the worlds largest OTC denvative market

from July 2012 volumes on 1-Swap in Europe improved as volatility
subsided and spreads narrowed following comments by the President
of the European Central Bank that it was ready to intervene in the
sovereign debt markets While growth in this nascent electronic
market remains delicate momentum is bulding and electronic
volumes in the final quarter of 2012 have trended higher On
individual days the number of trades exceedad the highs that were
reached prior to the Eurozone crisis of June 2011 representing 35%
of ICAP s overall 1-30 year euro swap transachions

In Decernber 2012 ICAP anncunced that Citigroup had taken an
equity stake in iSwap Limited by diluting the other shareholding banks
Citigroup will support the platform with streaming prices alengside
the other shareholding banks Bank of Amenica Mernill Lynch Barclays
Deutsche Bank and JPMorgan

On 15 February 2013 1-5wap launched in the US with 14 banks
subrmitting credit Imits and perrrissioned to trade electronically Since
itsfaunch the platform has operated efficently and customers have
taken the opportunity to familianse themselves with the new style

The i-Swap platform won the
OTC Trading Platform of the
Year award in the Risk Awards
2012, recognising best practice
in the risk management and
derivatives markets.

IMAGE REMOVED

of trading in readiness for ful implementation following the upcoming
regulatory reforms The publication of the final SEF rulebook will define
the parameters under which SEFs wil operate and act as an additional
catalyst for the utihsabion of -Swap going forward

The next stage in the development of I-Swap will be the extension
of the platform to cover other currencies including the British pound
and the Australian dollar

MyTreasury

MyTreasury ICAP s electronic money market trading platform for
corporate treasury investors 1s the largest third-party electromc
trading platform in offshore MMF and 1s steadlly bulding its presence
in the onshere US market with both its MMF and tme deposit trading
achwities MyTreasury has experienced steady growth in the value of
assets being serviced through the platform In the past 12 months
MyTreasury operaticns have been extended into the US and term
deposits and certificates of depost have been added to the range

of instruments that can be traded va the platform

ISDX

In June 2012, ICAP acquired Plus Stock Exchange plc which was
relaunched as ISDX in October 2012 150X compnses three markets
the ISDX Growth Market the ISDX Man Board and the ISDX
Secondary Market The core offering for ISDX is ts Growth Market
which 1s dedicated to helping entrepreneurial companies access equity
capital to finance the development of therr businesses while providing
investors with exciting and potentially rewarding investrment
opportunities There are 130 compames hsted on 1SDX The (SBX
Secondary Market was relaunched on 31 October 2012 with four
rmarket makers offering an alternative venue for trading approximately
300 AIM and other London Stock Exchange sted stocks The changes
made at 1SDX have been well received by market particpants The
acquisition of ISDX an RIE and RSE provides addibonal flexibility in 2
changing regulatory environment

Cur strategy maction

Launch of ISDX

In June 2012 we acquired Pius Stock Exchange plc one of only six
RIEs in the UK the others being LLSE LIFFE LME ICE and BATS Che-X
Europe It was relaunched n October as ISDX. The core cffenng

for ISDX s 1ts Growth Market which s dedicated to helping
entrepreneunal companes access equity capital to finance ther
busnesses There are 130 companiesisted on ISDX In the future it
could be used to launch new dernvatives contracts leveraging off
ICAP s substanitial exsting electronic and denvatives expertise

IMAGE REMOVED
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Post Trade Risk and Information

Expanding our

customer base and

product portfolio

The Post Trade Risk and Information business comprises the portfolio
nisk services businesses Reset ReMatch and TniOptima the
transaction processing busimess Traiana and the nformation business
which together provide services to more than 3 000 custorners
Demand for improvements in the efficiency of post trade processing
and for reductions in the capital allocated te existing positions
continued to pravide opportunities for I[CAP s Post Trade Risk and
information business which now represent a core and embedded part
of its customers processes and infrastructure

ICAP s am s to continue to develop its Post Trade Risk and
Information business by providing innovative services that enable its
customers to reduce costs and risk as well as to ncrease efficency
return on capital and capaaty to process trades

Revenue £m Omg:
Reset and ReMatch 47 (o
TrOptima 44 2
Tranana 43 19
Information 73 (3)
Total 207 -
o %
Operating profit* g0 (2)

* Before acquwition and dsposal costs and excepuional items

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue of £207 milion was in
tine with the prior year Operating profit” decreased by 2% and the
operating profit margin® was flat at 44%

Reset and ReMatch

Reset 15 the market leading prowvider of nsk mitigation services
reducing the basis nsk within porifolios from fixings in the interest
rate FX and inflation markets This risk results from the structure of
the instruments traded and a mismatch of exposure over time 1t also
addresses structural imbalances within trading portfolios ReMatch
the operations of which are now fully ntegrated into the Reset
business rebalances the iiguid bass and market nsk inherent in credit
dervative portfolios

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue decreased by 10%
Revenue growth was held back by the low interest rate environment
in all major currencies, Libor volatility at all e lows and fat yield
curves Against these difficult market conditions Reset and ReMatch
continue to grow ther customer bases Reset 1s now used by more
than 375 banks and over 3 000 ndwdual users Any anticipated
change to the iInterest rate outlook should increase bass risk n Reset
and ReMatch s custormers portfolios and therefore increase demand
for thewr services

Both Reset and Rematch have launched innovative new products
during the year These nclude a new cross-currency basis service
from Reset and a new product to help traders manage risk in the
index market from ReMatch ReMatch continues te cement its
position In the COS market for both western European and emerging
market soverexgns and has recently launched its service In Asia

IMAGE REMOVED
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Business review

Post Trade Risk and Information continued

TriOptima

TriOptima through tnReduce and triResolve s the market leader In
risk termination and risk mitigation solutions for OTC dervatves
primarily through the reconciiztion and elimination of ocutstanding
transactions

Aligned with the G20 policy objective of reducing systemic risk,
tnReduce enables market participants to decrease counterparty
credit risk the number of outstanding contracts and the gross
notienal value through early termination of existing contracts for
rates, credit and commadity swaps Since its launch in 2003, 1t has
terminated more than $338 trilion in total notional volume

The porifoho reconalation service, inResoive operates a community
network facitating efficent collateral management and dispute resolution
and reduction n operationa nsk i ine with regulatory requirements

Last year TriOptima received
the Energy Risk Technology
House of the Year award for
triReduce and triResolve.

IMAGE REMOVED

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue increased by 2% and by
8% on an underlying basis (at constant exchange rates) Revenue
growth was mostly dnven by an ncrease in the use of our
reconcihation service triResclve a subscription based service has
benefited from the proactive mplementation of best practice in nsk
management and portfolio reconalliation ahead of changes in
regulation triResolve has more than 250 firms in its network
regularly reconaling more than seven million OTC dervative trades
In addition to terminating $70 trillion of gross notional outstanding
(2011/12 - $72 trillon), TnOptima completed 1ts first portfolio
compression cycle for precious metal swaps and 1ts first portfclio
compression cycle at the Singapore Exchange

TrOptima continues 1o nnovate and provide 1ts customers with new
solutions tnBalance, which s expected to be launched in October
2013 15 a new service designed to reduce systermic risk and improve
counterparty nsk management Smce not all trades by banks are
eligble for clearing tnBalance will provide a solution for firms to
manage bilateral nsk for ther uncleared portfolos TnOptima s also
working with customers te pilet a new counterparty credit nsk
analytics service for OTC denvatives called tnQuantify

Our strategy In action
TriOptima’s new
triQuantify service

In January 2013, TnOptyna announced its new mQuantfy service
for counterparty credit nsk analytics and inbal margin calculations

for OTC dervatves This has been postvely recenved by the market
A mutitude of factors nduding new requlatory nibatives in nsk
managerment and collateral the wealth of pertfolo datain triResobve
and recent sgnificant advances in state-of-the-art large scale paralel
computing (itself enabling a umque approach to nsk calculations)
have combined to create an deal opporturity for the introducbon of
tnQuanafy TnOptma has recruted several prlot ustomers whio wil
help shape the final serwce
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Traiana

Traiana provides financial nstitutions with services to automate post
trade processing of transactions in listed and OTC markets Traianas
post trade solutions have become the market standard for FX Traiana
Is focused on growing its F X business and exploiiing the strengths of
its Harmony network by adding new asset classes including exchange
traded dervatives fixed Income nterest rate swaps, cash equities and
equity swaps Traanas Harmony network connects more than 550
global banks, broker/dealers buy-side firms and trading platforms

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue increased by 19%
Revenue growth was driven by an increase in the nurmber

of transactions processed by Harmony The average number

of transactions processed per day for the year ended 31 March 2013
was 14 miflon {2011/12 - 11 millon) anincrease of 37% on the
previous year Inaddition Traanas trade aggregatron joint venture
with CLS Group CLSAS processed on average more than 360 000
transactions per day in the year ended 371 March 2013 having
Increased by more than 45% over the past 12 months

In 2013, Traiana won the Markets
Media Choice Award for Best Post
Trade Processing Solutions.

IMAGE REMOVED

The expansion of Traianas platformto new asset classes and
segments continues to provide it with growth opportunities
Harmony 1s now connected to nine of the top ten futures brokers
positicning Traiana to expand services to buy-side firms and renforce
its value propositicn to sell-side firms Working with leading buy-side
firms Traiana has implemented a FIX/SWIFT comphiant selution to
reduce costs and create more efficient straight through processing in
cash equities and fixed income markets In September 2012 Traiana
expanded its Harmony CreditLink intiative wath the addiion of
real-time kit ronitonng and a kit switch capability for exchange
traded derwvatives

©n 14 January 2073, ICAP announcedthat it had sold a 12% stake n
Tramna to seven of its leading customers gving the business an imphed
vauation of $300 milion Coectively the investors also have an
opporturity under certan conditons 1o acquire an additona! 20% equity
in Traana at a cost of up to $82 5 miflon More recently Goldman Sachs
has joined the bank customer/sharehaider consortum and bought a
167% staken Traiana on the same temms While ICAP retains control of
Traiana (86 6%} the sale wil sobdify the relatonship between Traiana and
sts customers, align thew nterests and help accelerate product adoption

Our strategy in action

Traiana’s strategic
partnership with leading
global banks

Traana provides finanaa institutions with services to automate post
trade processmng of transactions in ksied and OTC markets ICAP
sobdified its partnershp with maor players in the global FX industry
when eight of its leading custormers nvested in approxmately 13% of
Traana This partnership ensures that our interests are aligned and will
help accelerate the growth of Traizna enabling the transformation of
the markets we serve and making them more robust for our
custormers and ther clents.
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Business review

Post Trade Risk and Information continued

Information

ICAP Information Services (IIS) s the leading provider of OTC market
information delivenng independent data solutions to financal market
partcipants It employs a subscnption-based charging structure
praviding a regular revenue stream

For the year ended 31 March 2013 revenue decreased by 3% This
decline was primarily due to the loss of a proportion of data sales
following a change to EBS s product offering Market data generated
viz the EBS platform and sold by the IIS business amounted to 40%
of 155 revenue for the current year (2011/12 — 43%) Excluding the
EBS related sales (1S s revenue grew by 3%

IMAGE REMOVED

Duning the year WIS s product offering has grown to Incorporate new
and inncvative data solutions as the market conbinues to demand
greater transparency and accuracy 115 launched a credit rating service
with Rapid Ratings an alternative rating research and analytics firm
This product delvers a umique view of the credit denvatives market

In addition to this new pricing service (1S added hazard rates and
survival probabiliies enabling customers to ranage issuer credit nsk
more efficiently

IIS has worked to develop a series of trade-backed volume-weighted
incices and launched RepoFunds Rate as well as the Tankard Index
RepoFunds Rate iaunched with BrokerTec and MTS 15 the first index
o reflect the effective cost of secured funding in key Eurozone
countries Tankard a senes of indices for UK and European natural gas
huts 15 calculated from trades arranged by ICAP, Marex Spectron
and Tullett Prebon The trades are physically-settled natural gas
forwards transacted between utlities natural gas producers hedge
funds banks and trading houses

Our strategy in action

Indices — meeting the
demand for more
transparent benchmarks

ICAP has posivoned its ndex business to capitalse on forthcoming
mearket and regulatory developrments A number of trade-backed,
volume-weighted indices have beenlaunched in response to demand
froen the market for move transparent benchrarks that are fully
auditable RepoFunds Rate and iReporeflect a market progression
from unsecured to secured forms of funding These robust indices
are caleulated from actual trades made on centrally cleared regulated
trading systems The Tankard Index was also launched following
dermand for ncreased transparency n the UK and European
gasmarkets
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Other Post Trade Risk and Information
investments

[CAP s Post Trade Risk and Information business invests in new
companies developing Innovative technology-led offerings via
Euchd Opportunities Euchd Opportunities 1s majonty owned by
ICAP and has assessed more than 300 early stage firrms since
its launch in March 2011 Its pertfolio ncludes minority stakes
in Model Two Zero Limited, trading as Duce an early-stage
software firm pioneenng the next generation of iInnovative
matching reconciation and data-translation technologies
{nvested in December 2011 and November 2012)
OpenGamma a real-time nisk analytics prowider (invested in
August 2012) and Global Valuation, a next generation provider of
portfolio valuation and simulation software (source code
agreement January 2013)

QOur strategy in action

Euclid Opportunities —
technology innovation
for financial markets

Innovation s central to ICAP s growth Through Euchd
Opportunities ICAR provides funding as well as talored support
and guidance to entrepreneurs tg help them deliver strategically
viable financial technology solutions to market

In Novernber 2012 we increased ow investment in Model Two
Zero Limited (tradng as Duce) an early stage software firm to
develop a next generation recondaliation service built on the
company s Innovative matching and data-translation technologies
This hosted service utilises inteligent algenthms to reduce the time

and cost nvolved i setting up reconaliations smproving operatianal

risk contrals efficiency and flexibilty across the industry Launched
in Apnl 2013 the service 1s expected to be a key development
in the post trade technology landscape
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Business review

Financial review

We are highly cash

generative and have
a strong balance sheet

Profit for the year

Year ended Yo endied

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit before tax* 284 354
Acquisitien and disposal costs (158) (137}
Exceptional items (60) -
Profit before tax (statutory)** 66 217
Tax (23) (77)
Profit for the year 43 140

" Before acqusinon and dsposal costs and exceptional items

After atquisiion and disoosal casts and exceptional items
Statutory profit after tax (after acquisition and disposal costs and
exceptional items) was £43 millon (2011/12 - £140 mifion)

Acquisttion and disposal costs

Acquisition and disposal costs in the year were £158 miflon consisting
primarily of amortisation of intangbles of £69 milion and wmpairment
charges of £81 mifion Amortisation of intangibles was in ine with the
prior year and no materal ntangbles were acquired in the year The
mparrment of goodwill attributable to the Link business in the prior
year meant that any worsening of the outlook for that business would
trigger a further imparment Further weakening in the equity
denvatives markets in the year has led to an mpairment charge of
£72 milionin Link The remaining iImparrment was n respect of
shipping where market conditions for dry cargo remained difficult

Exceptional items

The Groups policy s to separately disclose items in its income
statement as exceptional which are non-recurnng and material
in terms of both size and nature

For the year to March 2013 exceptional items before tax were

£60 milhon (2071/12 - £nd charge) Exceptional costs of £30 millon
were incurred in delivering the Groups cost saving programme
which delivered £60 million of savings i the year and an expected
£80 mullton on an annuahsed basis Exceptional costs of £18 mikon
arose as a consequence of key strategic decisions in the EBS business
Further exceptional costs of £12 milton related to legal and
professional fees for advice in responding to requests for infarmation
and In co-operating with some government agencies as part of an
ndustry-wide investigation

Tax

The overall objective contsnues to be to plan and manage the {ax
affars of the Group efficiently while comphyang with local tax
requlations The Groups effective tax rate for the year on profit,
excluding acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional tems was
26%(2011/12 - 27%)

The Groups tax charge 1s affected by the varying tax rates in different
Junsdictions appled to taxable profits the mix of thase profits and the
rules mpacting deductibility of certan costs The Group continues to
take a prudent appraach to the management of its tax affairs and
Provisions are set to cover tax expasures

Balance sheet

The Groups net assets at 31 March 2013 were £1 156 million
(201112 - £1 210 million)

Cash and cash equivalents totalled £602 milion (2011/12 -

£547 mvhon) and gross debt was £577 milkon (2011/12 -

£629 million) In the year the Group maoved from net debt of

£82 milon te net cash of £25 miflion due largely to its strong

cash generation with ongoing free cash flow of £274 millon before
cash flows from exceptional iterns of £34 million and dvidend
payrnents of £145 midlion Committed headroom under the Groups
RCF at 31 March 2013 was £580 millon (2011/12 ~ £324 million)
representing the full extent of that faclity as free cash fiow generated
and £193 mulion of debt raised in the year allowed full repayment

of funds drawn on the RCF At 31 March 2013, the earliest debt
maturity date was on a bilateral toan for £71 mulhon equivalent due on
27 September 2013

Restricted funds at 31 March 2013 weve £37 millon (2011/12 —
£50 milion) This represents cash te which the Group does net have
immediate and direct access such as margins posied at CCP clearing
houses This balance fluctuates with trading

At 31 March 2013 the Groups Pllar 1 regulatory capital headroom
remaned stable at £09 bilhon (2011/12 — £09 bilign} as a result of
the low market and credit nsk in the Group  The Group continues to
benefit from the BIPRU Investment Firrm waver which will fall due for
renewal In Apnl 2016

IMAGE REMOVED
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Earnings and EPS

We beleve that the most appropriate £PS measurement ratio for
the Group 1s adjusted basic EPS as this measure better reflects the
Groups underlying cash earnings Adjusted basic EPS excludes the
impact of acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional items

Adjusted basic £PS fell by 18% to 33 Op reflecting the fall in operating
profit* offset by alower tax charge The Groups basic £PS fell from
2¥1pto67p

Dividend

The directors recommend a final dwidend of 15 4p per share The
full-year dvidend will be 22 Op {2011/12 — 22 0p) This reflects the
Groups continuing ability to fund this level of dividend as a resutt of its
strong cash generation and the board s confidence in the medium-
term orospects for the business

The final divicdend 1s lower than the prior year of 16 Op which1s smply
aresult of this year s ntenm dividend being shightly higher at 6 6p
compared with 6 0p The full-year dwvidend per share of 220p s
covered 1 5 tmes (2011/12 — 1 8 tmes} by adusted basic EPS of
33 0p if approved the final dvidend will be paid on 19 July to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 28 June
2013 The shares will be quated ex-dwdend from 26 June 2013

Interim dividends are calculated as 30% of the previous year s
full-year dividend This approach 1s expected to continue for the
2013414 financial year

Operating profit*/cash conversion

The Groups consolidated cash flow siatement 1s set out In the
financial statements

The Group continues to generate substantial free cash flow Over the
long term it 15 expected free cash and post tax proft will converge
Free cash flow conversion for the year was 130% This is higher than
the 103% conversion in the prior year due largely to areduction in
operational working capital requirements in the Group

Free cash flow

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

[ £

Cash fror ongoing operations** 387 425
Interest and tax {81) (113}
Cash flow from operating actvizies* 306 312
Capital expenditure (39) (52)
Dwidends from associates and investments 7 8
Ongoing free cash flow 274 268

** Before exceptional items

Cash generaied from ongoing operations was £387 million

£38 miflion lower than the previous year largely as a result of lower
operating profit™ offsel by a reduction in the working capital
employed in the business

Net payments m respect of interest and tax reduced by £32 million
to £81 millon primanly reflecting areduction in tax payments
flowing from the lower tax charge

Capital expenditure incurred during the year of £39 millon was

£13 milion lower than the prior year reflecting a combination of
tming differences at the year end and the short-term deferral of
expenditure dunng the course of the strategic review of ongoing
product and trading platform development within EBS Future capital
expenditure s to broadly follow historical levels of depreciation
Capital expenditure on [T development was broadly in ine with prior
year levels

The Group distributed £145 millon of its free cash flow to
shareholders through dividends and bought back 97 523 shares
which are held as Treasury Shares at a cost of £0 3 million

Events after the balance sheet date
There are no matenal events subseguent to the balance sheet date

IMAGE REMOVED

* Before acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional items
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Business review

Corporate responsibility and relationships

Making markets

more resilient, safer

and transparent

As an integral part of the whalesale financial
markets, we believe that ICAP's success
contributes to the economies in which we
operate by helping companies and organisations
manage and mitigate their business risks and
government and comparies raise capital

ICAP fulfils its corporate responsibilities in a number of different ways
For our shareholders we am te preduce supenor returns over the
long term For our customers we am to provide products and
services which inturn will enable them to create value For our
emplayees, we aim o provide an environment that 1s ntellectually
challenging moetivating and supportive

Qur principal contribution s to help ensure the efficient functioning
of the global markets Our broking and electronic platforms provide
transparency source liquidity and enable price discovery for our
customers The move towards electronic trading in OTC markets
nwhich ICAP 15 3 leader together with our Post Trade Risk and
Information business helps make markets more resilient, safer and
more transparent

Customers

ICAP has a wide and growing customer base No single customer
represents more than 5% of Group revenue ICAP s broking customers
are primarily banks with the relative size of specfic customers
varying considerably by product and geography Revenue from our
customners 1s derived from a wide range of products in different asset
classes across bath execution and nsk mitigation services

A significant proportion of ICAP s revenue comes from non-bank
customers Inthe year ended 31 March 2013 execution revenue from
non-bank customers was 21% of Group revenue and subscrption
revenue was 12% of Group revenue Non-bank execution revenue

15 largely generated from transaction actvity on EBS and BrokerTec
and from Global Broking s commodities and futures broking business
The majonty of commodities revenue comes from energy producers
users and trading firms Subscription revenue comes from data
vendors and s mainly generated from our Electronic Markets and

Post Trade Risk anc Information businesses

IMAGE REMOVED
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Health and safety

ICAP has a health and safety policy which 1s approved by the beard and
owned by the Group Pinance Director Regionat health and safety
committees oversee structures for policy compliance All employees have
aresponsiblity for ensunng a healthy and safe working emvironment. The
great maonty of ICAP employees work in an office environment and
therefore there are no significant areas of nsk to report

Suppliers

We rely an a numnber of key suppliers to help us carry out our
business We have procedures in place to ensure purchasing decisions
balance cost against other factors including service quality global
reach and resllence

Environment

The Groups enviranmiental policy 1s approved by the board and
cwned by the Group Finance Director ICAP s operations cause
menimal environmental impact Wherever possible ICAP takes into
account the direct and indrect emvironmental impact of its actmties

The key policy principles are

« ensuning environmental nisks are properly identified pnoritised and
managed In an appropriate and timely way

ensuring complance with all relevant environmental legislation in
the countries in which we operate

confinuing to reduce cur carbon footprnt with the objective of
becorming carbon neutral and

raising employees’ awareness of environmental issues and
encouraging environmentally responsible behawiour

IMAGE REMOVED

As a service-orientated business the major sources of greenhouse
gases anse from the running of our global network of offices and the
travel commitments of our employees As in previous years we
commussioned Carbon Neutral Limited, an environmental consultancy
t0 estimate the residual emissions of the Group in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalents Based on the analysis performed by Carbon
Neutral Limited, we estimate that the Group emits the equivalent of
315 thousand tonnes of carbon dicude or & 3 tonnes per employee
per annum (2011/12 restated - 70 tonnes per employee) The
reduction in our greenhouse gas emissions reflects the use of more
efficient Iighting and ar conditioning n our offices, a focus on more
environmentally friendly bulkdings when mowing offices the recycling
of waste and by the purchase where possible of electricity from
renewable sources Qur travel commitments have remained refatively
constant during the year and we continue to promote the use of
video conference faclities

Asin previous years we will be mitigating our total carbon ermissions
by investment in carbon reducing projects

IMAGE REMOVED

ICAP’s voluntary
carbon capture
programme

ICAP's voluntany carbon capture programime has funded the
restorabon and protection of 224 hectares of peattand in the Scotish
highlands that had degraded due to generations of draning and use
for Ivestock The work involved extensive scientific surveys and the
blocking of more than 10 rmides of man-made dranage diches n
order torestore the water table

The peat now acts as a carbon sink and 1s expected to store
over the next 100 years, more than ICAP's 2011 and 2012
carbon emissons

35

ICAP I
Arnual fiepart 2012

SIUDLLDLBYS [elaUeul SIULUITAOC MI|AD] SSDU|SA
|

uoljeunojul JAQ0



Business review

Corporate responsibility and relationships continued

ICAP Charity Day

£100m

donated since 1993

IMAGE REMOVED

ICAP Charity Day has had an enormous
impact By donating all our revenue on one
day each year, we have positively changed
the hves of hundreds of thousands of people
around the world Tharks to the efforts of
our customers, suppliers and employees,
anincredble £11 millon/US$177 million
was raised on 5 Decernber 2012 bringing
the total amount donated over 20 years to
more than £100 milhon

“We are enormously proud to have donated more
than £100 million since we started. This momentous
milestone would not have been possible without the
incredible and ongoing support of our customers,
supphers and employees benefiting hundreds of
charities around the world.”

Michael Spencer Group Chef Executive Cfficer

IMAGE REMOVED

Samantha Cameron
KIDS

IMAGE REMOVED
Ben Fogle

Tusk Trust

IMAGE REMOVED

Reese Witherspoon
Children s Defense Fund

30 FnShweon




IMAGE REMOVED

Gillian Anderson

Mo Farah
Mo Farah Foundation

Sohana Research Fund
IMAGE REMOVED
IMAGE REMOVED
Twiggy
Rambert Dance
Company
Kevin Spacey
The Kevin Spacey
Foundation
IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED
Liv Tyler

David Lynch Foundation

ICAPCk.
Annual Report 2013
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Business review

Corporate responsibility and relationships continued

- Ll -
Making a big impact
Charity Day has made a sigmificant difference by
suppaorting more than 1 400 projects worldwide
It has enabled us to fund projects such as an out-patient
programme for ex-service men and women, a cancer
care centre for young people and gene-modified cell
therapy which 15 the next step invital chrical trials for
healing recessive dystrophic epidermolysis bullosa

Read about the projects ICAP Chanty Day has supported
in the Success Stories section of the website

www icapcharityday com/success-stories

Missing People
Europe

250,000 people go missing every year in the UK alone,
140,000 of those are children Missing People provides free
24-hour confidential support, help and adwice by phone emal,
text and online ncluding the opportunity to reconnect missing
people with ther families A donation from Charity Day has
enabled the transformation of Missing People with the launch
of 116 000, the new EU helpline for missing children

“We are immensely grateful to ICAP for funding the faunch

of 116 000 ICAP s transformational donation has changed
Missing Peopie for ever, a better outcome has been integral to
reaching o wider audience of vulnerable people We could not
haove hoped for better outcomes ™

Jo Youle Chief Executive, Missing People

IMAGE REMOVED
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IMAGE REMOVED

LOGO REMOVED

BLUE Marine Foundation
UK

ICAP 15 now the lead sponsor for supperting a conservation and
sustainability project never undertaken before in the UK Fishermen
and conservatiorists have created aunique alliance to manage
Lyme Bay on the south coast of England, a project driven by the
BLUE Marne Foundation This project demonstrates that Iivelihood
development and conservation can work in harmony This waill
create a blueprint for managing Britains 127 proposed marine areas
without destroying the econormies of fishing communities

“It was @ huge honour to be selected as ICAP's first marine
conservotion charity beneficiary Theimpoct ICAP s support has
had on our work 1s immeasurable ICAP's support has enabled o
ground-breaking project on the jurassic Coast of Dorset, which

1s now being used as a bluepnnt for natiomwide marne conservotion
Without ther support such raptd progress would not hove

been made *

Rachel Etherington Managing Director BLUE Marine Foundation
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Boys & Girls Clubs of Hudson County
New York

The Boys & Grls Clubs of Hudson County promotes the
development of young peaple by instiling in them a sense

IMAGE REMOVED

of conhdence, responsibility and belonging The club offers
positive expenences, and is a compelhng alternative to youth
cnime, gang memberships and other negative mfluences ICAP
has supported the chanty since 2008, and ICAP employees
from the New York office volunteered to spend time with the
young people at the Boys & Girls Clubs of Hudson County

to gain a closer understanding of what the chanty 1s about
The volunteers played a sefection of chikdhood games with
the youngest members and then challenged the High Schocl
kids to a fast paced game of basketball

“Before you do sometfung you have never done before you
have an rdea in your muind about what to expect  what didnt
expect was my emotional reaction to the overwhelming
response of apprectation from those people we met that day
ond how ICAP s involvement with these charities has helped
make lives better”

Felicia Nicholas ICAP North Amenca

LOGO REMCVED

LOGO REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Inspirasia Foundation

Singapore

The Inspirasa Foundabion s a phiant hropic portfolio nvestng in
health and education projects which have a high potential for
growth They help some of the most margnalised social groups mn
India Indonesia and Thaland nduding the disabled, poor young
women and unschooled chidren with the aim to teach them skills
that will enable themn to go on tolead more independent ives

The Inspirasia Foundation invests in small organisations that
have strong leadership and a commitment to help the most

disedvantaged i socety-With the help-of tEAP fundimg———

IMAGE REMOVED

Inspirasta will focus on areas such as health, education

and poverty alleviation supporting groups that create
opportunities through scholarships, rehabilitation and work
placements in cities throughout India, Indonesia and Thadand

LOGO LOGO LOGO
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED
Watch the video Visit our Facebock page  Read the tweets
www icapcharityday com www facebook com/ www twatter comy
capchantyday wcapchantyday

Ao 20 39

SIUHLILEYS |efaueuly BIUBLIBAOD) ' MBIADL SSSUISI’\,

UIeWLIOfUI S2YI0



Business review
Risk management

Risk
management

ICAP’s risk profile

As aleading markets operator and prowider of nsk mitigation and information services ICAP has a very different risk profile from that of a
bank nvestment bank, asset manager Insurance company or hecge fund ICAP does not undertake proprietary nsk in the course of its
business and only enters into transactions when executing on behalf of customers or providing customer access to cleanng services 1CAP i
not required to cormmit matenal amounts of capital m the conduct of its day-to-day business the profit and cash flows of the business are
driven by the level of activity of its customers and do not depend on the valuation of its assets and babilities The majonty of ICAP's businesses
have a fast conversion of revenue to cash

As a result of its business model JCAP s exposed to a vanety of nsks strategic operational, kquidity credit legal and compliance financial,

reputational and market

As a predominantly fee earming organisation third-party relationships and reputation are central to ICAP s continued success The Group
rernains focused on mantaining and constantly strengthening relationshios wath shareholders customers regulators lenders cleanng anc
settlement providers market infrastructure prowiders and employees

The prmary nsk to [CAP s financial success 15 adverse impacts on the commission revenue generated from its customers

Group’s business activities

Business model s relant on

Risks

Global Broking

Retationships — custormers employees

Regulatory icences

Short-term credit exposure to customers in the settlement cycle {<T+3)
Ligudty to settle trades

Infrastructure (ncluding for cleanng and settiement 1T)

Market data infrastructure

Reputational damage
Strategic event
Counterparty falure
Lack of liquidity
Operational event

Electronic Markets Relationships — customers employees Reputational damage
Infrastructure (ncluding for cleanng and settlement IT) Operational event
Short -term credit exposure to customers pror to dearing (<30 ninutes) Counterparty falure
Regulatory icences Strategic event
Liquichity to meet margin calls Lack of hquidity

Post Trade Risk and Relationships — customers employees Reputational damage

Information Seniices Infrastructure (including 1T) Operational event

Regulatory lcences

Strategic event
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Governance and risk management framework

The board has overall responsibility for the Group s nsk management
framework and sets the Group s nisk appetite based on an annuat
assessment of the Group s strategy and analysis of known and
potential emerging nisks

The board monitors the risk profite of the Group using eight risk
categories strategic operational, iquidity, credit legal, financial
reputational and market

Qur risk management frarmework 15 designed to manage and
ritigate the risks that could impact on our ability to execute our
strategy To ensure a consisient nisk management approach
dlobally the framework 1s used across all nisk disciplines with the
following pillars

\
Risk framework
-
~
Operating Process/
Governance model methods
A

Governance — in addition to appropriate governance at all levels of
the Group as detatled in the corporate governance statement this
pilar incorporates continued fostering of the corporate nsk culture

Operating medel - includes the underpinning gudelines and
procedures control environment and nisk department structure

Process/methods - dentfication assessment and mitigation of
risk at Group and business level

Example of risk management — Hurricane
Sandy

Business continuity plans were initiated on a global basis as a result
of Hurnicane Sandy which struck the Eastern Seaboard of the US
with devastating force in late October 2012 The storm surge and
flooding destroyed roads and power lines and made ICAP s main
New Jersey office and much of lower Manhattan naccessible for
several days As well as several other businesses ICAP's BrokerTec
system the world s largest requlated venue for the trading of US
Treasury instruments, 15 run frem the New Jersey office with
back-up and falover siies at remote locations All ICAP s systems
continued to operate successfully and key staff operated from pre-
prepared disaster recovery sites ICAP remaned in dose and regular
dialogue with the US Federal Reserve and Treasury Department in
order to ensure the orderly cleanng and settlement of transacuions
that had been entered via the BrokerTec system and to maintain
the operation of the market

Evolving risk profile

Our approach for managing nsk 1s underpinned by our understanding
of the risk expasure for the Group our nsk appetite and how our
risks are changing over time

The Group s key nsks remain broadly unchanged from 2012 with our
most significant nsks remaining strategic operational and hquidity
The balance has however changed with strategic nsk increasing due
to continued uncertainty around requlation and the iInconsistent
application of G20 objectives This has been coupled with stuttenng
economic growth Despite the uncertainty, this presents
opportunities for the Group to provide and expand services that
contnbute to the efficent aperation of capital and financial markets

As strategic nisk has become more important in the continued

growth and evolution of the business based on the current dynamic
regulatory environment so has the necessity of ensuning afl aspects
of regulatory nsk are specifically dentified and addressed effectively

lterative approach to risk management

The Group views risk management as a dynamic iterative process
and continually seeks to improve it The following areas have been
of particular focus for the Group and will continue to be so

 enhanced stress testing capabilities across all nsk disciplines
particularty focusing on the impact of potenbal regulatory changes
on specific entities within the Group

» more detaled probability analysis determining effects of market
changes i custormer behaviour

» operational nsk framework enhancements to strengthen global
consistency and

» continued refinement of nsk memtoning processes ncluding
potential revision of key nsk ndicators to ensure appropriate
rmanagernent mformation
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Business review

Risk management continued

Risk overview

The table below 1s a high level overview of how the Group s nisk profile has changed over the past year due to external events and intesnaf
mitigation This 1s mtended as an indicative summary of the Group s nisk profile only

Risk Rating Appetite Description of change

Strategic High Proactive Changing market landscape in addition to regulatary reforms potentialty
impacting the business model

Operational High Cautious Greater reliance on technology
Mare intrusive and enforcement lead regulation
Improved processes and employee traning to reduce inherent risk

Liquichty High Cautious Significant mitigation has been implemented but has been partilly offset
by increased lquidity requirements from cleanng houses

Credit Medum Minimal Enhanced monitaring system infrastructwe globally is partially offset by
detenoration in counterparty quality given macroeconomic conditions

Legal and complance Medium Averse New regulations have been introduced in addinion to increased
regulatory scrutiny of markets where ICAP has regulated entities

Financial Low Miruimal Profile remains stable with no major changes in operations or appetite

Reputational Medium Averse Increased due to the continued uncertainty in the regulatory
environment

Market Low Mirimal Remnains stable as a second order impact nisk

Principal risks

The following three risks have been dentified by the board as the
principal nsks faced by the Group Each has a dfferent mpact on the
Group based on the time horizon (see opposite)

Strategic — manifests over a medm time frame winch allows for

management action to reduce the impact

Operational - inherent in the business model, however sigruficant

controls are in place to lessen the impact of any event

Ligudity — afthough unexpected large hquidity drains are considered
unlikely these could manifest themselves over an extremely short

tme frame {1-2 days)

IMAGE REMOVED
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Principal risks

Strateqic risk

Overview

Potential manifestations and toferance

Mitigation

Inherent risk that Group services become
obsolete to existing or future customers

First order nsk driven by external
(regulators customers competitors etc)
and internal (governance) factors

The competitive landscape 1s continually
changing with regulation redefining
certain aspects of our business and
changing customer needs Of particular
note (s the move towards electronic
trading central clearing of dervatives and
the continued uncertainty of the final
shape of the reforms

ICAP has a matena tolerance of this nsk
given the strong appetite to explore the
intreduction of new nnovative products
and service ines through organic growth
and acquisiions and a desire to lead its
competon

ICAP maintains constant dislogue with

customers and regulatery bodies in order

to leverage ervironmental and changing

customer needs ICAP is therefore able to

use (s unigue position at the heart of the

wholesale financial markets to provde and

enhance services that are

- relevant

- scalable

— flexible and

- have realishic opporturities for growth
and longevity

Operational nsk

Overview

Potential manifestations and tolerance

Mitigation

inherent nisk of financial (losses fortuitous
gans fines) or non-financial impact
{reputational opportunity costs)
resulting from human errors inadequate
or falled internal processes or systems

or external events

First order nsk drven by nternal (human
error system falure) and external
(terronsm fraud} events

Trade execution or processing errors
Extended falure of IT networks systems,
or communication

tnternal or external events affecting
buldings or people

toss of critical staff

Inadequately managed prgjects

including new business intiatives

ICAP has imited tolerance of financial
foss as a result of operational nsk as ICAP
accepts that even after mitigating controls
there will be residual nsk which could lead
to losses

A control framework exisis within which
f1sks and controls are idenufied assessed
ard monitored

The Group continues to invest heavily in
infrastructure to mitigate its own risks
Formal business cantinuity plans and
appropriate remote data back-up and
disaster recovery facilibes are available for
pach key location

Liquidity risk

Qverview

Potential manifestations and tolerance

Mitigation

Inherent nsk that any part of the Group
does not have sufficent financial resources
avalable to enable 1t to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due

First order nsk driven by internal (operating
model) factors Second order impact from
potential operational and credit events

In exchange traded and matched principal
business, as a result of a counterparty not
fulfiling its obligations or due to timing
1ssues ICAP may be requrred to place
margin or collateral at clearng houses of
which it 15 a direct member and at third-
party cleanng providers who act on the
Group s behalf

ICAP has no tolerance of financial loss as a
result of hqudity nsk given that temporary
funding requirements are usually for only
a shert period of urme and any funding 15
typically returned to ICAP either intraday
or the following day

There 1s acentralised provision of
contingency funding for Graup trading
entities each entity addibonally has access
to appropriate liquidity

AP
Anrud Report 2015
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Business review

Risk management continued

Other significant risks

Credit risk

Overview

Potential mamfestations and tolerance

Mitigation

inherent risk of a counterparty fafing in its
obligations

First order nsk drven by external
{counterparty default) events which may
create a second order iquidity event

A counterparty falture may result in

ICAP having

- an open market position

- unpad recevables and

- loss of access to or loss of funds that
the Group has deposited with financial
institutions

ICAP has mirwmal tolerance for financial

loss as a result of credit nisk noting that

this credit risk is ntnnsic across ali

business actnvities

Processes and controls are in place to hmit

and monitor patential and acrual credit

exposure ncluding

- chent on-bearding and limit setting
process based on internal ratings and

- regional accounts recewvable teams
monitaring non-receipt of commissicns
and fee income

Legal and comphance nsk

Overview

Potential manifestations and tolerance

Mitigation

Inherent legal nsk of a loss of legal

human or financial integrity reputation

or capital as the result of government
action legislation contract or other laws
or regulations

Inhgrent compliance risk 15 the risk of legal
or regulatory sanctions material financial
loss or loss te reputation that may be
suffered as a result of failure to comply
with laws regulations rules related self-
regulatory organisation standards and
codes of conduct applicable to s activibies

An ICAP enlity may

— defend a claim after having aloss
through inappropriate or incorrect
documentation or responsibility in the
conduct of izs business

— receive a regulatary enquiry or
information requesi as a result of
operational or hurnan falures or
employee breaches of company
pohcy aor regulatory rules

ICAP has imited tolerance of finanaal loss
as avesult of this nsk as we accept that
due to the nature of the complex
commercial and regulatory environment in
which ICAP cperates Its companies may
become nvolved In contentious matters
and kingation and may be required to
respond to regulatory nquines

ICAP has an internal legal department
which acts as an independent advisory and
investigation function and s directed to
both enable and defend the Group s
strategic ams

The Group mantans an ndependent
comphance function which mitigates
comphance nsk by way of the comphance
risk management framewark which is
operated globally

Advice 15 reguiarly taken from
aparopnately qualified external adwisers
and professionals

Traning 1s provided tc staff at induction
onanannual thematic and on-going basis
Legal and compliance nsks are assessed
and mitigated in the processes and
procedures of risk comphance and audit
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Financial nisk

Overview

Potentid manfestations and tolerance

Mitigation

Inherent nsk that the Group 5 exposed to
losses due to adverse movernents in
ngerest rates or FX

First order nsk dnven by external (changing
market rates) events

The Group presents its consolidated
financial statements in pound sterling and
conducts business n a number of ather
currencies Consequently the Group 15
exposed to currency nsk due to exchange
rate movemenits {see note 11 to the
financial statements)

The Group finances itself through a
combination of fixed and floating rate debt
obligations and maintains cash on its
balance sheet to meet a combination of
local requlatory capital rules, clearing house
deposits and other cornmer gial
requrements including margin calls which
anse through the provision of cleanng
services In certain markets to brokerage
customers

ICAP has no tolerance of financial loss as a
result of this nsk

Detalls of the Group's interest rate and
currency nsk hedging strategy are
contained n aote 11 o the financial
statements

Reputational risk

Cverview

Potential manifestations and tolerance

Mitigation

Inherent risk of financial loss ansing from
negative perception on the part of third
party relationships including customers
counterparties shareholders investers
or regulators

Second order event as a result of the
perception that the Group either had
matenial persistent cperational defects or
was unable to appropriately identify and
migigate its other risks

Third-party relationships would be

impacted resulting in events such as

— asignificant declme in share price

— fewer willing lenders

- potential credit downgrade

- greater difficuity in hiing and retaining
high quality staff, and

— adechne in customer activity

ICAP has no tolerance for financial ioss

as aresult of this nsk as ICAP builds and

mantans relationships of openness and

trust with its customers and reguiators

The primary mitigaticn 1s the appropriate
mitigation and management of the other
nisks as this 15 a second order impact

Market risk

Overview

As ICAP does not take active market nsk in
the pursuit of its business actvitigs this
category 1s a second order impact of

a credit or operational event which results
in exposure to a change in the value of

the trade

Potential manifestations and tolerance

As a result of providing its chents with
matched principal brokerage and exchange
execution ICAP may be exposed to a
vanety of market risks

- price,

— interest, and

~FX

ICAP has minmal tolerance for financial
loss as a result of market nsk

Mitigabion

Matched principal-out trades are
rminimised wherever pessible and every
effort 15 made to lqudate the position as
practicably as possible

Exchange traded business control
functions monitor all unmatched positions
on an ongoing basis 1ssues are escalated

appropnatety

ottt 4D
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(Governance

Directors’ profiles

A highly
experienced
team

The Group 1s led by an experienced board

of directors consisting of a non-executive
Charman, the Group Chief Executive Officer,
two further executive directors and four
Independent non-executive directors

IMAGE REMOVED

Charles Gregson
Non-executive Charman
apponted n 2001
Charman of the
Governance and

Nomination Committees IMAGE REMOVED

Skills and expenence

Between 1978 and 1998 Charles Gregson was responsible for the Garban businesses
that demerged from United Business Media pic 1 1998 and then merged with
Intercapital n 1999 to form ICAP He was previously chief executive of PR Newswire
Association Inc and served on the boards of United Business Media pic Prowident
Financial ple MAIple and International Personal Finance ple Charles holds a degree
InHistory and Law f om Cambridge University and qual fied as a soliaror

Other appointments
Charles 1s the non-executive chaimman of CPP Group Plc and St Jamess Place plo
He 15 a non-executve director of Caledonia Investments ple

Muchael Spencer

Group Chief Executive Officer
appointed n 1999

Mermber of the Governance

and Nomination Committees IMAGE REMOVED

Skitls and experience

Michael Spencer was the founder of intercapital n 1986 and became Charman and Chief
Executrvein October 1998 folowing the Exco/intercaptal merger Michael together with
IPGL and its subsidiery companies s a substantial shareholder in the Cormpany Heis
chairman of the GEMG He holds adegree n Physics from Oxford Uriversity

Other appaintments

Michael 15 charman of IPGL and he s on the boards of many of IPGLs Investments

He 15 the semor ndependent director of Tungsten Corporation ple and a drector of
Bordeaux Index Ltd Michael s the chawman of The Conservative Party Foundation Ltd

John Nixon
Group Executive Director
Amencas apponted n 2008

IMAGE REMOVED

Skills and experence

John Nixon represent s the ICAP Amencas busmesses to the board He has omt
~anzgerment cvaragh™ and responsibd ty for ICAP s fixed imcorme Flee tronic Broking
business and s chatmman of the 1-Swap business Prior 1o his appantment to the board
in 2008 Johnhad served from 1998 to 2002 as a non-execuinve drector He has
been amember of the GEMG since 2003 when he had resporsibiity for strategc
Acqusitions John was previously the Chef Execut-ve Offices of Tullett snd Tokyo Forex
now part of Tutlett Prebon where he worked from 1978 to 1997 n Teronto London
and New York John holds a degree m Commerce from Queens Unversity Ortano
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latn Torrens

Group Finance Director,
apponted in 2010
Mesmber of the

Governance Committee IMAGE REMOVED

John Stevwnght

Senior ndependent director,
appointed to the board

n 2009

Charman of the Audit and Risk
Committees and a mermber of
the Governance and
Nomnation Commiitees

IMAGE REMOVED

Skills and experience

lan Torrens joined ICAP in 2206 as Groug treasurer and became Group fina~zal
controber in 2008 Beforejonng ICAP he worced - @ number of senor financial roles
for CP Ships Limited and Cookson Group ple lanis esgonsble for the Groups finarce
company secretana imvestor relations complance business services and human
resources functions He s a member of the GEMG and the GOC and s charman of the
GRACC lan hokds a degree in Barkang and Finance from the University of Wales and a
postgraduate d ploma from the Unversity of Ulster He s a Chartered Accountant

and a Chartered Secretary

Skills and experience

Joh~ Sievwnight was Chief Cperating Office Inter~auanal for Bank of America Mernl
Lynch (formerly Mermil Lynch) based in New York, Tokyo and London He has also held
anumber of ot~er senior positions a* Mernll lyne~ niclud ng Cheef Operating Cffice-
Global Markets and investment Banking Head of Global Futures and Options and Chief
Admstrative Cifice for the Debt Marketsand Global Equ ty Denvatives dwisicns
John holds an MA degree in Accounting and Economics from the Unsversity of
Aberdeen and s a member of the Insuiute of Chartered Accountants m Scotland

Other appomtments

Other appomtments John s the serecr independent drector of FrstGroup ple and charman of its
lans a drector of TotanHokdings Cokid audt commitiee

Hsieh FuHua Robert Standing

tndependent non- Independent non-executive

executve director director appointed in 2010

appontedin 2011 Charmanof the Ren'nunerat;?n

Member of the Corrrittee and a member o

Remuneration and IMAGE REMOVED the Audit Risk and Nomination IMAGE REMOVED

Normination Committees Commuttees

Skills and experience

Hsieh Fu Hua served as President and adirector of Ternased, Holdings in Singapore
unul January 2012 and Chairman of Fullerton Fund Managerment untd January 2013
He was formerly Chef Executve Oficer a~d non-independen drrector of the
Singapore Exchange from 2003 to 2009 He s also co-founder of and adwisor to
the PrimePartners group of comparies a corporate and rwvestrnent adwisory business
based in Singapore and served as the Group Managng Drector of BNP Prime
Peregnine Group the Asian investrment banking arm of BNP (ajoint venture with
PrmePartners) Before formng PrimePartners i 1993, he headed Morgan Grenfelt
Asia Hokdbrgs Pte Led whech be omed n 1974 FuHua hokds a degree n Business
Adrmanistraton from the Ureversity of Sngapore

Other appointments

Fu Hua s a ron-executve dector of United Overseas Bark Ltd Tiger Arways
Holdings Ltd Far Eastem Bark Lumuted and Goverrwment of Sngapore Investrent
Corporation Pte Lid

Diane Schueneman
Independent non-executive
drector, appointed n 2010
Member of the Audit

Risk Rermuneration and

N peraton o IMAGE REMOVED

Skills and experience

Drane Schuenerman was previously an ndependent consuitant to the US intermal
Reverue Serwce Corrmssioner for Mckinsey & Company She budt an extersve
career at Bank of America Merrdt Lynch (formerdy Merril Lynch) and untd 2008 was
Senior Vice President Head of Globd Infrastructure Sotutions and a member of the
Executive Operating Commetee Dunng her career she nas covered “xed income szles
business managerent, operations. dient services and technology Diane previously
served on two ~o-~for-profit boards Year Up and Nationd Cooperative Cancer
Network Foundation and was on the advisory board of United Bank of Afnca -

New York Branch

Other appontments
Drane s an independient drector of Penson Worldwide Inc

Skills and experience

Robert Standing s a prncipal of LDF Adwisers LLP which was founded within
the JPMorgan group n 1995 and spun cut in 2002 Robert joned Chermical
Bark in 1982 spending two years developmg new products before joining the
Captal Markats drisionin 1985 Followang acquisitions by JPMargan he
worked in arange of roles before becoring Head of Fixed Income and Foreign
Exchange for EMEA IR 1998 Robert s one of the founders of the Hedge Fund
Standards Board He holds a degree in Engineenng from Cambnidge University

Other appointments
Sobert 15 2 drector of London Diversifiied Fund Management (UK) .td

IKCAPC
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Governance

Global Executive Management Group

The management team |

IMAGE REMOVED .

Michael Spencer
Group Chief Executrve Officer

IMAGE REMOVED

John Nixon
Group Executive Director Amencas

IMAGE REMOVED

Muchael Spencer was the founder of Inrtercapdal in 1986 and became Chawman and
Chief Executive of Intercapital n October 1998 followang the Exco/ Intercapital
merger Michael, together with IPGL and its subsidhary companies 5 2 substantial
shareholder in the Company He s the charman of IPGL and & on the board of many of
PGLs nvestments Michael is chasman of the GEMG

John Nixon represents the ICAP Amencas buanesses 1o the board He has jont
maznagerment oversigrt and responsitility fo ICAP s fixedincome Electron ¢ Broking
business and s chairman of the 1-Swap business Prior 10 his appontment to the board
in 2008 John had served from 1998 1o 20K2 &s a non-executive director He has
been amember of the GEMG since 2003 when he had responsibdity for strategc
acqusitions John was prev ously the Chef Execuve Officer of Tullets and Tehyo Forex,
now part of Tuflett Prebon where he workedfrom 1978 to 1997 in Toronto London
and New York John holds a degree In Commerce from Queens University Ontang

IMAGE REMOVED

lain Torrens Mark Beeston
Group Fnance Director Chyef Executive Officer
Portfolio Risk Services

IMAGE REMOVED

lan Torrers jned ICAP <1 2206 as Group treasurer and becarne Group finaraal
controler n 2008 Before nng ICAP he wor<ed 1m a number of sertor finanaal roles
for CP Sheps Leted and Cookson Group ck lan s “esconsble for the Groups fra~ce
company secretanal invesior relations complance business services. and human
resources funcbons He is 2 member of the GOC and s charman of the GRACC

Lan holds adegree n Banking and Fnance from the University of Wales and a
postgraduate dipioma from the University of Ukster He s a Chartered Accountant
and a Chartered Secretary

Mark Beeston s responsibke for the Post Trade Risk and Information busness and since
Cctober 2012 he has had responsbdity for co-ordrating the Groups response {0
regulatory reforms. Prior tojonng KCAP m December 2009 he spent four years as
Presdent of T-Zero (now ICE Link) Before thes he spent 13 years at Deutsche Bank
where, armong other roles, ve servec as Ch o Cperat g 0% cer T2 Clobd Credit
“racng Chef Operaung Officer for OTC Dervatives and global head of Money

Market Dervatives trading Mark represented Deutsche Bank at board level across
numerous ndustry companees and associatiens nduding ISDA Markit OTCDervNet
and OTCC DervServ
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Dawid Casterton
Chief Executive Officer,
Global Broking

IMAGE REMOVED

Gil Mandelzis

Chief Executnve Officer EBS
and Executve Charman
Traena

IMAGE REMOVED

Since September 2012 Dawvid Casterton has been responsible for the new Global
Broking dnasion with regional management teams reporting to him Dawid had
previously been responsible for all voce broking and refated support functions n
Lordon and EMEA Between 1995 and 2008 Dawvd worked i a number of seror
broking rofes and had responsibdity for interest rate derwatves. money markets repos,
governrment bonds and frmancia futures Pron logamag ICARPIn 1935 he wasweth
MW Marshalls and Guy Butker International

Since March 2012 GIl Mandelns has been responsible for the Groupss electromc FX
business EBS Gilco-founded Traiana n Aprl 2000 and he remains Executive
Charmanof Traena Giled Traanas growthfrom a small start-up to arecognised
global leader in post trade senvices resultng n Tranas acquistion by KCAP n 2007
Gilwes apponted to the New York Federal Reserve s Foregn Exchange Committee
n 2012

IMAGE REMOVED

Hugh Gallagher
Chief Fxecutive Cfficer
AsiaPacific

IMAGE REMOVED

Duncan Wales
Group General Counsel

IMAGE REMOVED

Since September 2010 Hugh Gallagher has been responsible for voice broking
tachnoingy and support funetions throug=o t Asa Paafic Hugh was agponted to
the GEMG n Jaruary 2012 He has held several semor positions withen ICAP since
jeering in 1988 induding Chvef Executrve Sfficer ICAP Australa Pror to cireng ICAP
Hugh worked for Crlbank and Uoyds in FX and money markets Hugh has more than
75 years expenence warking n OTC markets n the Asia Pac fic region

Seth Johnson
Co-head BrokerTec and
Chief Executive Officer 15SDX

IMAGE REMOVED

Seth Johrson joned ICAP s electronic markets i Novesmber 2011 to lead the
expanson of is product portfobo tn the role he s the co-head of Brokerfec and the
(et Executve Cfhcer 0- 150X He has ceen a mermber of the GEMG snce May 2012
Hejomed ICAP as a graduate tranee and has worked in the Company for more than 20
years For tenyears Sethwas the Managing Drector of the mierest rates opoors ang
~flation swaps cesks He oversawy the :ntrocuction of new 2nd innovative rad ng
solubions nchuding the vohume match systemn.

Duncan Wales over<eesthe legal nsk and gavernment affars functions

He has occupred a number of servor rales within KZAP including direc tor of
goverryment a~a*s Ge~eral Counsel EMEA and Asia Pac e and sencr counsel

10 the electronc broking devsion Prior to ds acquisition by ICAP i 2003 Duncan
was drector of leqal affars at BroxerTec Hespert ~va years ar Chfford Chance asa
derwatves and markets specialist Duncan s a member of the GOC and the GRACC
He s amember of the GC 100 Group the Courcil of the Wholesake Markets Brokers
Association and the City of Londost's intemationa Regulatory Strateqy Group

MaIAR) SS3UISNG

BJUEUJMOn

SIUDUIRLS [RIDURUILY

UONELLIOLUI JAYI0



Governance

Chairman’s statement

Committed to
strong oversight

Charles Gregson
Charrman

IMAGE REMOVED

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to
Introduce ICAP's corporate governance report

There rightly continues to be a focus on
corporate governance from across a broad
spectrum of the business world and this has
resulted In various consultations and the
introduction of new regulations across our

business operations

As a board, we continue to demonstrate our continuing cormmitment
to strong oversight and to ensure such focus we have established a
Governance Comnmittee with respansibility for the governance
framework on a global basis Due to the continuing increase in
responsibiities of audit and nsk committees the beard decided to
separate these responsibilities and form a separate Audit Commuttee
and a Risk Commuittee This structure became effectve from

1 Aprl 2012

The board considers that it has compled wath the principles and
provisions of the Code throughout the year In this statemenit and
the corporate governance statement that follows we report on how
we have complied with the Code

Leadership

My principal responsibilities as Charman are to lead the board and
to ensure 1ts effectiveness 7o thisend the board s time has been
priontised to focus as much as possible on activities which we
consider central to proper oversight For the year to March 2013
these actvities included approval of the Group s strategy review

of its delvery and development of the nsk management structure
In ight of trading conditions in the year the board supported the
changes to the Group s management structure aigned to changes
in our business divisions, including the creation of a Global Broking
business and the implementation of a cost saving pregramme We
also spent time reviewing [CAP's strategic response to developments
i the regulatory and competitivg environment and being briefed on
the various projects underway to deiiver on this strategy
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Effectiveness

Throughout the year all your non-executive directors have
contnbuted extensively to the business of the board and
demonsirated a high level of involvernent in the activities of the
Group They continue to engage with the management teams across
the global businesses and have had opportunities ta challenge
performance and the control framewaork within each business

The board s knowledge and understanding of the views of major
investors and stakeholders the markets in which the Group operates
and the technology issues facing the Group were all positively rated
by the respondents to this year s board effectiveness review which
was undertaken by Lintstock an external faciliator

The results of the review also indicated that board meetings were
effective In encouraging candid discussion and cntical thinking and
the board s use of the competencies of the non-executive directors
was rated hughly The board 1s committed to continuous improvement
and one of its pnonties for 2013/14 1s to review (ts size and
composition taking Intg account the increased diversity of 1CAP s
business to ensure that the board has an appropnate mix of
experience to achieve the Group s strategic goals

Following his appoirtment as charman of United Overseas Bank Ltd
Hsieh Fu Hua will not be standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting n July 2013 Cn behalf of the board | would like to
thank him for his valuable contribution since his appantment in
201

In accordance with the Code all other directors will be offerng
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting in July
2013 The board has agreed that all directors are qualified to stand
for re-election and that the non-executive directors remain
independent

Further discussion on the leadership and effectiveness of the boardis
detalled on pages 54 to 57 of the corporate governance statement

Accountability

The business review sets out and descnbes the Group s principal
business activities the performance of the business during the year
and the principal nsks and uncertainties facng the business The
board 1s accountable for nsk and is responsible for the oversight of
the nsk management process As much of this oversight is delegated
to the Audit and Risk Committees, details of the governance around
these processes are set out on pages 58 to 63 of the corporate
governance statement The directors statement of responsibilities
for the preparation of the Annual Repert and the going concern
statement can be found on page 67

Remuneration

The board supports the principle that levels of remuneration should
be sufficient to attract retan and motivate ICAP s employees The
remuneration report further details the Group s policy on executive
remuneration and how these policies were implemented dunng the
year ta reflect the financial performance of the Group Significant
changes were introduced to the benus scheme for this reporting
year following consultation with shareholders and the remuneration
report describes the implementation of these changes and thew
impact on executive remuneration for this year

Relations with shareholders

The executwe directors Robert Standing, as charman of the
Remuneration Committee and | have met with representatves of
our major sharehalders duning the year As a board we are
committed to open dialogue with all our shareholders and we
welkcorne the opportunity this engagement offers The corporate
governance statement contains further detail as to the topics
discussed these included the impact of regulatory change on the
business and the cost saving programme

Regulatory focus

ICAP has reguiar contact and mantains a strong and transparent
relationship with the FCA 1ts lead regulator Globally ICAP operates
in many junsdictions and 1s regulated by multiple financial regulators
many of whom are implementing regulatory change which mpacts
both ICAP and its custemers ICAP takes a proactive approach to
assessing developments and working with and where appropnate
lobbying relevant parties in order to ensure that the Groups leading
position in the wholesale financial markets 1s understoed

As a board we will continue particularly in light of external and
regulatory developments to ensure that the corporate governance
framework 15 robust and supports the ICAP Group

Charles Gregson
Chairman
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Governance

Corporate governance statement

The corporate governance statement details ICAP s governance
framework and its management practices and together with the
remuneration report on pages 68 to 78 sets out how the Company
has comphed with the Code for the year ended 31 March 2013
The Code 15 publicly available at www frc org uk

ICAP 1s headed by an appropritely experienced board which
compnses a non-executive Charman the Group Chief Executive
Officer the Group Executive Director Americas the Group Finance
Drector and four mdependent non-executive directors All ICAP s
directors have a good understanding of ICAP s markets the regions
and requiatory frameworks in which it operates and 1is technology
Details of the directors who held office dunng the year and the skills
and experience each directer brings to the board are set out on
pages 48 and 42

There are five committees of the board - the Governance
Committee the Audit Commuttee the Risk Committee the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee Each
of these board committees 1s chared by a non-executive drector
or the Chairman The minutes of the meetings of each of the
committees are made avalable to all drectors and the board
receives an update from each committee chairman following
comrittee meetings

There are three executive committees — the Global Executive
Management Group, the Globa! Operating Committee and the
Group Risk and Capital Committee

These executive committees are mandated by and report to the
board The executive committees operate urnder terms of reference
approved by the Governance Commuttee and minutes of the
meetings are crculated to the board

GRAPH REMOVED

GRAPH REMOVED
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Governance framework
~
Board
- Approves the Groups long-ter ~ obyectives corrmeraal strategy budget and sigheant acqus tions mvestments and dsccsals
— Deermmes t~e Groups r sk appetite and rsk manage—ent strategy
- Approves changoes to candal strucrue
- Approves the Groups fina~cial state—ents and ts INtem management sta‘ements
- Approves the siterr d wdend and recommends the Fnal cmdend
\_
AN A
T T T T T
Governance Audrt Committee Risk Committee Remuneration Nomination
Committee — Revvienws and challenges ~ Reviews the quatity and Committee Commuttee
- Reviews ana acproves the nteg Ly of exter~d effectiveness of the — Sets -ermunerat onand - Reviews the structure
the Group Polcies and fmancial repor ting Groups rs managemont pansior polic es for the size and cornposition of
Detegated Aurhon'ies - Rensiews the Groups framewark exed lvedrectors the boad and makes
- Reviews angt acproves witereal franaal controks - Meniors the - Acpentsaty recommendat ons with
thedesgnanddeh eyt | || — Momito sand reviews the mecharssms of intemdl remueration consultants regard 0 any cranges
traning provided 1o the effectveness of t-e cont ol of those areas of whoadvse .he - Norminates cendidates .0
Companys drectors and Groups mermal and 1 sk denufied throughout corremittee fill board vacances as
subsdary drecters externd auditors the Group - Azproves contracts of they ase
- Approves the “erms of - Cons.cersthe — Reviews and acproves e—ployrent w th terms — keeps under review the
reference and azpomieent of the sk appet te that exceed certan leadership needs of the
membe shpof the external auditors and - Re.sews and approves agreed levels of du ation organsation and
non-executive and assesses thor the Groups annual ICAAP narice period or considers succession a~d
executive Commetiess neecendence document nchud g COMPENSaTIoN developrment slarng
~ Approves the — Makes recommendztions assumptions and for se~or executives
coneositon of the to the boarc refat ng to methodology underhying
boards of the G oups the appontment or the calculations of the
onncipal financing d srussal of the Head of Plar 7 captal
subsdaresand the Internd Aud ¢ - Approves the
reg.lated entites — Reswews the maor appontment or d sssal
- Reviews the Groups core Frdings ang of the Global Cref Risk
ﬁ governance standa os recornmendations of O corand be Group
£ — Reviews ard determmes interna ana external Head of Compliance
€ reoutatond rsk ssues auztreports ~ Reviews the mayor
£ related to proposed new — Appraves excermal hndngs ane
g bus ness ntiagves or auat fees recormendations of
® — nter-al auditors
8 - Approves new egulatory -~ Meitors the
-1 PEFTSSIANS i~deperdence of the
sk and corptance
functions
. . \. .
7~ 7 s
1
I N Ty
Global Executive Global Operating Committee Group Risk and
ﬁ Management Group — Reviews matters aect -5 the Capital Committee
£ — Proposes coeraal strategy o operators of the G aup - Reviews and —akes recommezatons n
£ -he board T - Oversees thermplementat onor ditonto
g ~ Cversess the commeraal performance strateqic direct ves - the comtrol ervirorynen* and nisk profile
o of the busness - Assesses the adequacy of Gro.p ofthe G oz
g rastrucTure 1o support the bugness - the Groups captal snuctore and
=] kgrdity requ rements
g - wroup pobaes and celegated author tties
o - FXanc niterest rate 1k maragement
o AN N

Full detals of the terms of reference for the board committees can be found at www capcom
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(Governance

Corporate governance statement continued

The board

The board s responsible for providing leadership of the Group and
for ensunng the Group has the appropriate people financial
resources and controls n place to debver on the long-term
objectives, commercial strategy and nsk management strategy set
by the board Details of the business mode! and the Group s strategic
objectives are detalled wathin the business review on pages 8 to 13
and 16 and 17 The board operates in accordance with an approved
schedule of matters reserved for the board The board specifies
policies and delegated authorities that all members of the Group are
required to adhere to Detalls of the principal matters reserved for
the board and principal termns of reference of the board committees
are shown on page 55

There 15 a clear division between the role of Chairman who 1s
responsible for the leadership of the board and for ensuring effective
comrmurication with shareholders and the Group Chief Executive
Officer who 1s responsible for leading and managing the business
within the mits delegated to him by the board The board maintains
awnitten policy on the dvision of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer which sets out the
key responsibilities of each role

Six board meetings were scheduled during the year Between these
meetings the board convened by conference call to receve trading
reports and updates on current 1ssues During the year, the non-
executive directors alsc met without the executive directors
present The table opposite sets cut the number of meetings of the
board attended by directors n office at 31 March 2013

Summary of board business duning the year ended 31 March 2013

Board meetings

Totad Attended

Charles Gregson 6 6
Michael Spencer b 6
John Nixon 6 o
lain Torrens 6 6
Hsieh Fu Hua 6 5
Diane Schueneman 0 &
John Sievwright 6 6
Robert Standing 6 6

Apologies had been received in advance for the unavaidable absence
from a board meeting by Hsieh FuHua

The Charman 0 consultation with the executive directors and the
Group Company Secretary sets the agenda for board meetings All
directors receive documentation prior to each meeting on the
matters to be discussed to enable thern to exercise ther judgement
ndischarge of their duties Where drrectors are unable to attend a
baard or cornmittee meeting mainly as a result of long-standing
prior engagements they are encouraged to give the chairman of
the meeting their views or comments Directors also receive
management information on a manthly basis GEMG members and
other semior executives attend meetings by nvitation to present

on thelr areas of expertise within the business The table below
highlights some of the agenda iterns considered by the board during
the year in addition to standard items covering its regular review of
the business

May 201 2 London

Report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012
- report from charman of Audit Committee

~ QOINg Concern paper

- final dwidend recommendation

November 201 2 London

Half-year report for the six ronths to 30 September 2012
- report from chawrman of Audit Committee

~ interim dividend recommendation

Strategy review followng £BS restructure

ICAP Group strategy Update on financial regulatory reform including SEF and EMIR
HR strategy Approval of succession plan

Review of T strategy and key cost projects

July 2012 London February 2013 London

Financial futures and opticns presentation
Structured products business presentation

ICAP efectronic business presentation

Review of HR strategy and succession plan
Restructure of the ICAP Brazl business

Update on regulatory htigation and reputational nisks

Approval of intenm management statement

Board and committees effectiveness review
Competitor analysis review

ISDX strategy presentation

Global Business Services and Infrastructure IT update

Septemnber 2012 Tokyo

Approval of ntenm managerment statement

Review of investments

Update on financiat regulatory reform including SEF and EMIR
Asia Pacrfic regional update

March 2013 Jersey City

Approval of pre-close statement
Review of shareholder perception survey
Global Broking customer analysis
Strategy process
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Induction and continuing professional
development

On appontment pon-executive directors are provided wath a full
and formal nduction This covers training and bnefings, indluding
directors duties and the UK listing regme an overview of the
business its operations risk and requlatory matters governance
finance and invester relations

Dunng the year directors recewe regular bnefings on changes and
developments in the Group s business and on any relevant legislative
and regutatory changes from senior management and external
advisors as approprate This year there has been a particular focus
on the global financial reguiatory reform All directors are encouraged
to identify specific development needs Directors also attend
external courses of specaffic relevance to ther responsibilities

Board evaluation

In 2011/12 the board undertock its first evaluation using an
external faciitator Lintstock A number of items were identfied in
the evaluation for board focus dunng 2012/13 and included in the
summary of board business on page 56 Significant progress was
made n a number of these areas for example increased efficency
from the business model — business restructuring and the cost
saving programme and the regulatory ervironment ~ SEF

and EMIR

Buring 2012713, an evaluation of the board and the beard
committees was agan conducted using Lintstock as the external
faciltator while an evaluation of the Chairman was conducted by the
senior independent director Lintstock did not provide any other
adwvisory services to ICAP dunng the year The evaluation was
conducted via a questionnarre of each board member and the Group
Cormpany Secretary The objective of the evaluation was to provide
insight inte the effectiveness of the board and to review actions for
improving performance The evaluation for 2012/ 3 recagnised
that some of the items previously «dentified continued to be work-
-progress and would remain on the board s agenda as focus items

The outcorne of the review confirmed that the board has a good
knowledge and understanding of the views of major investors and
stakeholders the markets in which the Group operates and the
technology ssues facing the business

In evaluating how the board manages its tme the following iterns
have been identified as requinng further board oversight and have
been included in the board schedule for 2013/14

» the Groups strategy

¢ key customer analysis

+ developing technology and IT strategy, and
* shareholder perception

Governance Committee

The board s cornmitted to strengtherning the Group s governance
framework and to operaiing a well controlled and appropnately
governed business Durnng the year the board established the
Governance Committee to further support this commutment

The Gavernance Committee 1s made up of the Charman of the
board the senior ndependent director the Group Chief Executive
Officer and the Group Finance Director The Charman of the board 1
the chairman of the committee and the Group General Counsel s a
standing attendee of the Governance Committee

The role of the Governance Commitiee 1s to review offer
recommendations and make deasions i relation to all aspects of the
governance environment of the Group and its prncipal subsiciaries

The following table sets out the directors who served on the
Governance Cornmittee since its formation in September 201 2 and
therr committee meeting attendance

Govermance COMeTIties meetngs

Total Attended
Charles Gregson {charman) 3 3
John Sievwnght 3 3
Michael Spencer 3 2
lain [orrens 3 3

Apologies had been receved in advance for the unavoidable absence
from a committee meeting by Michael Spencer

The responsibiiities of the Governance Committee are described in
detad inits terms of reference avalable on the Groups website
WIWW IC3D COM

Duning the year the committee met to discuss governance
oversight of the Group s regulated entities the Americas governance
framewqrk and 1t reviewed the Group's policies and delegated
authonties The tenms of reference of the Remuneration Commiitee
and the executive committees wete reviewed by therr committees
during the year and the new terms of reference were subsequently
approved for adoption by the Governance Committee

The committee was formed in September 2012 and as it has not
been active for a full year it did noi form part of this year's board
effectiveness review The effectiveness of the Govemance
Committee will be reviewed during the course of next year
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Governance

Corporate governance statement continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members are all independent non-executve
directors, appointed by the board on the recommendation of the
Normination Committee The board 15 satisfied that the charman of
the Audit Commuittee and the committee collectively have recent
and relevant financial expenence that enables it to function
effectively and discharge 1ts responsibilities

The following table sets out the directors who served on the Audit
Committee dunng the year and thew committee meeting
attendance

Audit Commttee meetings

Tota Attended

John Sievwright (charmian) 5 5
Diane Schuenernan 5 4
Robert Standing 5 5

Apologies had been receved in advance for the unavoidable absence
from a committee meeting by Diane Schueneman

Other attendees at the Audit Committee include

Chairman of the board
Group Finance Diector
Deputy Group CFO

Group Head of Internal Audit
Group General Counsel

CFO Group Finance

External audit partner

The charman of the Audit Committee maintains contact with
attendees throughout the year At least twice a year the committee
meets with the external auditors and the Group Head of Internal
Audit without any executive director or member of management
present

The prncaipal areas of the comrnittee s work duning the year are
summansed below

Financial reporting

The Audit Commuittee reviews the Group s accounting policies it
monttors the integnty of the Groups finanaial statements including
the half-year and annual reports and interim management
statements and other announcements relating to the Group s
financial performance to ensure that these present a balanced and
clear assessment of the Group s financial position and outlook This
external reporting uses data produced by the regional finance teams
and relies on systems and processes functioning correctly A filing
assurance review process reporting to the Audit Committee 150
place in respect of half-year and full-year reporting

The Group s finance function is orgamised on a business dvision basis
under the leadership of the Group Fnance Directar This function is
responsibte for both the day- to-day management and strategic
development of the Group s finance nfrastructure together with
ensuring that Group policies have been adopted and approprate
controls pui In place to enable accurate and timely reporting of
consolidated financial inforration for managerment regulatory

and statutory purposes ihe Audit Committee has delegated
responsibility for the day-to-day finanoia! managerment and
monitoring of financial controls to the GRACC Further details of the
responsbilities of this executive committee are iIncluded on page 55

The Audit Committee reviews the Group s mternal financial controls
and the reporis of management and the internal auditors on the
effectiveness of these systems for internal financial control and
financial reporting

The results of the evaluation of the Audit Committee showed that
the effectiveness of the Audit Committee at reviewing the quahty of
the Group s financial reporting and assessing the Group s system of
internal controls was highly rated

Evaluation of external auditors

During the financral year the Audit Commyttee reviewed and
approved the proposed audit fee and terms of engagement for the
2012/13 audit and recommended to the board that it proposes to
shareholders that PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed as
the Group s external auditors for 2013/14

The committee alse monitered the balance of audit and non-audit
fees to ensure that the independence and objectiity of the external
auditors 1s maintained Dunng the year PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
was one of the main providers of external adwice but 1ts work was
lmited to specific areas largely relating to tax and fixed-term
regulatory projects, and the senaces of other firms were used on an
ongoing basis

Any proposed non-audi assgriments with fees nexcess of £100,000
are subect to the Audit Commuttees prior approval and fees below this
limit are approved by the chairnan of the Audit Committee and reported
to the commuttee Note 5 to the finanaal statements detalls the fees
pad to the external auditors for audt and non-audit services The total
spend on non-audit services as a pescentage of the audt fee was 20%
(2011/12 - 32%) Thss s complant with ICAP's policy of non-audit
spend not exceeding 75% of the audit fee

As part of its consideration of the 201 2/1 3 financial statements the
committee has reviewed and 1s satssfied that the auditors have
remained independent of the Group duning the financiat vear and
continued to do so to the date of this report The committee also
recewed detals from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP of its own
ndependence procedures and confirmation that, inits opinion it
remained independent throughout the year

The assessment of the effectveness of the external audit process
for 201 1/1 2 was undertaken following the completion of the audit
for that year The results of this assessment were reviewed by the
Audit Committee n Novermber 2012 and a number of actions were
agreed The assessment of the effectiveness of the external audit
process for 2012/13 wilt be undertaken in June 2013




PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and its predecessor organisations has
been the Company s auditors since the Company was formed from
tha merger of Garban and Intercapital n 1999 The committee
considers that the relabonship with the external auditors 1s working
well and remains sabisfied with ther effectiveness Accordingly it has
not considered it necessary tc requrre PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
to tender for the audit work although this 15 kept under review
particularly in hght of the FRC s changes to the Code There are

no contractual obkgations restricting the Company s choice of
external auditors

Following the beard s decision in 2011/ 2 to extend the term of the
lead audit partner on the basis that such continuity was necessary
following a number of board changes and the increase in regulatory
scrutiny, the lead audit partner was rotated in 201 2/1 3 following
the cornpletion of the audrt of the 2011/12 financial staterments

The performance of the Audit Committee was rated highly overall in
this year s evaluation and separating the responsibilities of the Audit
and Risk Commuttees has been benefioal to the focus of the Audit
Commuitee and to its effectiveness As aresult of the evaluation the
Audit Committee has added the following items to their workplan
for 2013/14

» assessment of the impact of the changes in regulation on financial
controls and

 review of the obligations of a recognised investment exchange

Risk Committee

The Risk Committes members are all ndependent non-execut ve
directors appointed by the board on the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee The following table sets out the directors
whao served on the Risk Committee dunng the year and thewr
committee meeting attendance

Risk Commitiee meetings

Total Attended

John Sievwright (chairmany} 7 7
Diane Schuenerman 7 5
Robert Standing 7 7

Apologies had been received In advance for the unavoidable absence
from committee meetings by Diane Schueneman

Other attendees at the Risk Committee include

Charman of the board
Group Finance Director
Deputy Group CFO

Global Chief Risk Officer
Group Head of Compliance
Group Head of Internal Audit
Group General Counsel
External audit partner

The Global Chief Risk Officer presents his assessment of ICAP s risks
to the Risk Commuitee at least twice a year without any executive
managerment being present The charman of the Risk Committee
maintains contact with attendees throughout the year

The committee also meets with the Group Head of Internal Audit
without any executive director or member of management present

in addition to the reqular topics detaled n the terms of reference
the commuttee alse discussed a number of addiional matters during
the 2012/13 year including

» impact of external nsk events and changes in the regulatory
environment

o Integrated assurance review of the Brazil busmess,

» cleanng and settlemant agents rnsk review

» business rsk updates

« [T internal audits

* [SDX nsk analysis

» presentation from business on controf issues and

= business control updates

The Risk Cemmittee increased its number of meetings duning the
year in order to gve additional focus to the ICAAP

The board believes that a sourd control environment and robust
nsk management are fundamental to ICAP's success The Risk
Committee as delegated by the board sets the overall risk strategy
and nsk appetite methodology for the Group The Risk Committee
15 also responsible for approving the appointment and disrmissal of
the Global Chief Risk Officer and the Group Head of Comphance and
for making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
regarding ther compensation thereby reinforaing the independence
of the nsk and compliance functions

The Risk Committee has delegated the day-to-day nsk management
of the Group to the GRACC an executive committee which meets at
least ten times a year 1he GRACCs responsibilities are centred or
the montonng of liquidity credit market and financial nsks Details
of the commitiees responsibilities are shown on page 5%

The Audit Committee the Risk Committee and the GRACC have
terms of reference that require all aspects of the Group's nisk
management activities to be regularly reviewed

The Global Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Complance are
members of the GRACC and the Group Head of Internal Audit is &
standing attendee of the GRACC The Globa! Cheef Risk Officer 15 also
a member of the GOC the execuive committee with responsibility
for the operations of the Group

In addition to the Audit Committee the Risk Committee the

GOC and the GRACC all lines of business and regions have sk
committees which are respansible for supervising nsk levels in their
respactive businesses and regions and acting as the interface
between front office managerment and the Group rsk function

As a result of the evaluation of the effectiveness of the Risk
Committee the following pricrities were identified for 2013/14

s continue to provide support to the Glabal Chief Risk Officer and

» impact of regulatory change onthe Group s nisk and controls
framework
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Governance

Corporate governance statement continued

Risk control and management framework

First ine of defence

Business unit process and risk owners
- Owns the nsk management process
~ ldentifies, manages, mitigates and reports on nsk

— Tracks loss data

:[: Second hine of defence $

Interpret Comphance
- P ovides n-e-pretat on of regulations and
and develop d sser nates ta business unts

- Maonitors complance with regulatiors
Monittor ~ Davelops and monitors policies and procedures
- Risk assess  ent based compliance lesung

Design Risk management

- Designs and deploys 1-e overall r s« management
and faalitate fiamewor k acrcss tre orgarusation
— Mcmtors business unit asherence to framework

Monrtor and straregy
- Compiles sk across business units and escalates

andreport - Ad#ises on regulatory iss-es and provides tranng and report risk and control ssues o semor ~anagement
- Performs aggreqaied r sk reporting
:l: Third Ime of defence i
tnternat audit
- Prowdes indepe~dence test ng and ver ficat on of efficacy of corporate standa-d and
Monitor and advise busness hne compl ance
- Val dates the cverall risk framework
— Provides assorance that the nsk management process 15 functioning as desiqned and
\_ dantifies improvement opportuities

The significant nisks of the Group are continually monitored assessed
and managed by operating a three lines of defence model for the nisk
managernent and control of the businesses The first Iine of defence
comprises senior business and executrve management who own the
risks and controls for thetr respective businesses and retain full
accountability for control-related business issues The second line of
defence compnises the comphance and risk management functions
These functions are responsible for the Group s sk framework and
nfrastructure and identify monitor mitigate and report key risks
The internal audit function prowdes the third line of defence by
making a systematic and disciphned evaluation of the business
control and governance framewarks structures processes and
methodologies operating within the Group

A key tenet of the three ines of defence model s that the seruor
management of the Group in particular those serior managers with
respensibility for overseeing the front middle and back office
functions, are responsible for all control-related business issues and
have full accountabifity for the managerment of the nsks in therr
businesses, within the imits and the control environment established
by the Group All staff and managers are required to take a prudent
approach ta nisk taking and to reqularly review the effectiveness of
ther control environment predominantly through a nsk and control
self-assessment process

The Groups independent control functions {nsk compliance and
internal audit) are responsible for ensunng that the control
environment 1s fit for purpose and able to Wdentify and escalate to
serror management the Group s key nsks and to mitigate these nsks
where appropnate

The Group has created an integraied control framework for the
three key control funchions of nsk comphance and internal audit In
providing assurance as to the effectiveness of the system of mternal
controls to the GRACC the Audit Committee the Risk Commitiee
and the board these three key contral functions witl where
appropriate and on a planned basis combine resources skills and
technical expertise 1 the conduct of rmonitoring oversight and
review work
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Risk management

Board

[

Group Chief Executive Ofhcer

Member
Global Executive Management Group

Group General Counsel
Member

Global Executive Manageiment Group
Global Operating Commuttee

Group Risk and Caprtal Committee

Standing attendee
Risk Committee

Risk Commitiee

I

Global Chief Risk Officer

Member

Global Operating Commitiee
Group Risk and Capital Committee

Standing attendee
Risk Committee

Head of Business
Regional Continuity and

Heads of Risk

Information
Security

Head of
Operational Risk

Head of
Credit Risk

Group Liquidity
Risk Director

Risk department

Business heads

The Group s nsk management function operates under the mandate
set by the board The Global Chief fusk Officer reparts to the Group
General Counsel Under the leadership of regional heads with
guidance from the glabal nisk function to ensure standard best
practice nsk departments support each of the businesses globally
and are mernbers of business level and regional nsk commuttees The
Global Chief Risk Officer 1s @ member of the GOC and the GRACC
and s a standing attendee of the Risk Committee

Day-to-day management of nisk and its mitigation 1s the
responsibiity of business heads Risk management provides an
independent assessment of the Group s nsks and supports the
business heads In wdentifying monitoring mitigaiing and reporting
key risks through the use of a range of tools In this way risk
management reviews the Group s actities both functronally

and globally

These tools indude

+ independent monitoning and analysis of the Groups current and
prajected hquidity exposures

» credit risk lmits based on an internal scoring system with near
real-time monitoring of credit exposure globally

» management nformation, nciuding key rsk Indicators and product
and region specific dashboards

» global risk managerment policies and procedures
e operational risk framework
= penodic nsk and control self assessments and process maps, and

» stress testing on current exposure and scenano and probability
analysis

Anumber of qualitative and quantitative measures are monizored by
risk management to ensure that the businesses risks remain within
acceptable nsk appetite and tolerances Using these rmeasures the
Group produces a number of nsk intelligence reports which are
dissemrinated through the governance structures at all levels as
appropriate
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Governance

Corporate governance statement continued

Compliance management

.

Board

T

I

Member

Group Finance Director

Global Executrve Management Group

Group Risk and Capital Committee Risk Committee
Standing attendee
Risk Commictes
h
I
'\
Group Head of Compliance
Member
Group Risk and Caprtal Committee
Standing attendee
Risk Committee
~ I
~
Group compliance department
\
Head of Compliance, EMEA Head of Compliance, Americas Head of Compliance, Asia Pacific
Member Member Member
Business level and regional Business level and regional Business level and regional
risk commdtees sk committees risk committees
~
Compliance departments
A

The Group s compliance department reports to the Group Head

of Comphance who n turn reports to the Group Finance Director
Dedxcated comphance departments support the businesses
operating iIn EMEA the Americas and Asia Paaffic regions each under
the leadershrp of reional heads of comphance who are members of
regional and business level nsk committees The Group Head of
Compliance 18 a member of the GRACC and 1s a standing attendee
of the Risk Committee

The Groups complance department operates under the mandate
set by the board This mandate inter aha establishes the compliance
department as an independent global control and assurance funchon
which implements and manages ICAP s compliance risk management
framework Thes framework 1s designed to provide assurance that
ICAP s business 15 conducted in accordance with appiicable rules
regulations and regulatary standards As such the compliance risk
management framework incorporates the requirements of
applicable law and published nternational best practice standards
including business adwisory support compliance risk assessment and
mitigation compliance momitonng and survetllance anti-maney

laundenng compliance and the reporting and escalation of potential
and crystallised nsks

The Groups complance departrnent undertakes an annual nsk
assessment in each regron as the basis for the annual comphance
plan for those legal entities desks offices business and operating
units which will be the subject of compliance review and
examination ICAP's compliance nisk managerment framework 1s nsk
based which means that ICAP assesses and ranks its compliance
risks and priontises its comphance resources accordingly on a Group
regronal and business unit basis
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Internal control

The board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the nsk
management and the internal control system which management 1s
responsible for maintaining and it does this through the Audit
Comrmittee and the Risk Commuttee The day-to-day business of the
Group 1s managed through a system of financial operational and
cemplance controls and monitored by a series of nsk management
systems Internal controls are designed to manage rather than
ehminate nsks and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance aganst matenal misstatement or loss

The Group has investmenits in a number of joint ventures and
associates internal control procedures for joint ventures and
associates rest with the semior management of these operations and
the Company seeks to monitor such investments and exert nfluence
through board representation The board s review of the effectveness
¢f the system of internal control in those entities s consequently less
comprehensive than In ts drectly-owned subsidiaries

The effectiveness of the internal control system is reviewed regularty
by the ndependent internal aucht function The internal audit function
reports to the Risk Committee the Audit Committee with respect to
financial controls and functionally to the Group Finance Director
Internal audit establishes an annual audit plan based on discussions
with management and an assessment of the nsks inherent in the
Groups activities The results of these audits provide assurance

to executive management and the Audit Committee and Risk
Committee that the system of internal contral achieves its
objectives and highhghts gaps and areas for improvement

The internal audit function s outsourced to KPMG An evaluation

of the XPMG internal audit team was undertaken dunng the year
and the results of the dient service review were reviewed by the
Audit Committee The results of the evaluation confirmed that
challenge from the internal audit process 15 robust and effectve

and process improvernents which were identfied by the review

are being implemented

Nomination Committee

The committee members are apponted by the board and compnse a
majority of ndependant non-executive directors The chairman of
the committee 15 appointed by the board and 1s required to be either
the Chairman of the board or an independent non-executive

director The Chairman of the board does not charr the committee
when it 15 dealing with the matter of succession of the Charman

of the board

The following table sets cut the directors who served on the
Nomination Committee durnng the year and ther committee
meetng attendance

Nomnaton Committee meebngs

Total Attended
Charles Gregson (charman) 2 2
Muichael Spencer 2 2
Hsieh fu Hua 1 1
Prane Schueneman 2 1
John Sievwright 2 2
Robert Standing 2 2

Apologies had been recerved in advance for the unavoidable absence
from a committee meeting by Diane Schueneman

External advisors and indwiduals such as the Global Head of HR are
nvited to attend meetings when appropriate

The responsibilities of the Normination Comimittee are descnbed n its
terms of reference avalable on the Group s website www icap com

Duning the year the commitiee met to discuss board composition
and also to consider succession planning in respect of the Group
Chief Operating Officer who resigned during the year

As a result of the evaluation of the Nomination Commitiee
the following prionties were dentified for 2013/14

* review and revise succession planring and

+ review the size and composiion of the board

Any recruitment for a non-executive drector will be considered
using the same selecuion policy as that used throughout the Group
While we welcome the focus on board diversity we do not support
the implernentation of quotas and all appontments will continue to
be based on ment
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Governance

Corporate governance statement continued

Executive committees

Global Executive Management Group
The committee members are

Group Chief Executive Officer charrman

Group Executive Director Amencas

Group Finance Dwector

Business Chief Executive Officers

Group General Counsel

The GEMG reports to the board and will receve advice on
operational nsk and implernentanon issues from the GOC and may
ask the GOC to oversee the mplementation of its decsions

Global Operating Committee

The committee members are

Group Finance Director

Deputy Group CFO charman

Group General Counsel

Global Chief Risk Officer

Global Head of HR

Head of Global Business Senvces

Head of Infrastructure IT

Business Chief Operating Officers

The GOC reports to the board the Audit Committee the Risk
Cornmittee and the GEMG as appropriate as well as taking
commercial direction from the GEMG The committee provides
advice to the GEMG as requested and on an own-initiative basis

Group Risk and Capital Committee
The committee members are

Group Finance Director charman

Deputy Group CFO

Group General Counsel

Group Head of Comphance

Global Chief Risk Officer

CFO Group Finance

CFG Glabal Broking

The CFO Amencas and the Group Head of Internal Audit are standing
attendees of GRACC meetings

The GRACC reports to the board the Governance Cornmittee the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee as required and provides
adwice to the GEMG and the GOC on an own-initiative basis

Relations and dialogue with shareholders

Collectively the board 1s accountable to the Company s shareholders
and seeks to promote good relations and effeciive dialogue with its
shareholders The board recesves regular nvestor reports which
detal the feedback from investor meetings and roadshows attended
by executive directors and senior managerment and also receives the
results of investor perception studies which are undertaken by
external consultants The movements on the share register are
reviewed at board meetings

The Chairman of the board and the executive directors have met
with key shareholders during the year to understand investor views
on the Company Investors use these meetings to raise 1ssues such
as the simpact of regulatory change on ICAP s busimess the changes
i the competitive environment, ihe potential for consolidation
within the interdeater broker market the mpact of management
changes on the EBS business the dvdend policy and the cost
saving programme

The Company publishes its half and full - year financial statements
stock exchange announcerments and analyst presentations via the
investor relations section of 1ts website www icap com I addition
there are regular meetings duning the year with analysts and
Investors (subject to regulatory constrants) to update thern on
developrnents in the Group s strategy and performance Invester
seminars on specific areas of ICAP s businesses are arranged during
the year and these presentations are made available on

ICAPs website

The Company s annual general meeting provides shareholders with
an opportunity to ask questions of the direciors on the Groups
business All drectars attended the 2012 annual general meeting
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Substantial shareholders

At 31 March 2013 and at 10 May 2013 the last practicable date
prior to publication the Company has been notified of the following
voting nghts in its 1ssued share capital disclosable under the FCAs
Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Percentage of voting nghts

Substantal shareholders Indwect® Duwect®  Told%
Michael Spencer together with INFBV

and INCAP Overseas BV * 1626 055 1681
Schroders plc 1205 - 1205
Silchester International Investors LLP 516 - 516
FIL Lirmited 506 - 506
Blackrock Inc 501 - 501
Newton Investrnent Management Limited - 494 494
AXA SA 380 o8& 461

*Michae! Spencer together with trusts for the benefit of his children
of which he 18 one of joint trustees owns a majonty shareholding n
IPGL of which INFBV 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary Accordingly
Michael Spencer s deemed to be interested in all the shares it ICAP
plc held by INFBV and its wholly-owned subsidiary INCAP Qverseas
BV totaling 105 069 560 shares A trust of which Michael
Spencer's children are beneficianes and he 1s a joint trustee owns

a further 50 000 shares and 3 516 558 shares are held by EES
Trustees International Ltd as trustee of the ICAP Trust The shares
held i the ICAP Trust include basic awards to Michael Spencer under
the BSMP and matching awards under the 8SMP in respect of which
there are no unsatisfied performance or continuity of employment
conditions Michael Spencer has an interest in a further 3,284 share
options under the SAYE scheme and holds 7 061 shares in his

own name

Annual general meeting

The fifteenth annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Wednesday 10 July 2013 Detatls of the resolutions to be proposed
at the annual general meebing are set out 1 the notice of annual
general meeting sent to all shareholders The notice 15 sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days befare the meeting and
details of proxy votes for and against each resolution together with
votes withheld are made avallable after the vote has been dealt with
on a show of hands

Share capital

The Company s share capital compnses ordinary shares of 10p each
all of which are fully paid 664 537 006 shares were In ssue at

31 March 2013 including Treasury Shares Subject to the
Company s articles of asseciation and prevailing legislation each
ordinary share n1ssue carmes equal nghts including one vote per
share on a polt at general meetings of the Company

18346181 (2011/12 - 18 294 235) Treasury Shares were held
by the Company at 31 March 2013 representing 2 76% of the
1ssued share capital Such shares carry neither voting nghts nor an
entitlernent to a dividend while held as Treasury Shares There are no
other restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares

The Company purchased 97 523 cf its own shares during the
peniod under review at a price of 357 727p per share representing
0 015% of the ssued share capital 'hese shares are held as
Treasury Shares Asat 37 March 2013 and at 10 May 2013 the
Company had an unexpired authority to repurchase shares up to a
maximum of 64 509 631 ordinary shares of 10p each Al changes
in share caprital are detaled in note 19 to the financid statements

The ICAP and Garban Trusts hold ordinary shares which may be used
to satisfy ophions and awards granted under the Company s share
plans The voting nghts of ordinary shares held in the ICAP and
Garban Trusts are exercisable by the trustees in accordance with
ther fiduciary duties The nght to receve dvidends has been waived
in respect of the shares held in the ICAP and Garban Trusts As at

31 March 2013 share awards and options existed over

16 117 790 of the Company’s ordinary shares in relation to
emplayee share awards and option schermnes Of this figure,

6 193 738 are awards and options over existing shares which are
held iIn employee share trusts The remander are expected to be
satisfied by either new 1ssues of shares or by a transfer of Treasury
Shares Changes in options and awards under the varous schemes
are detaled n note 21 to the finanal statements he rules of the
Company s share plans contain provisians which may cause options
and awards granted ta employees under the schermes to vest ona
change of control
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Governance

Corporate governance statement continued

Conflicts of interest

A process has been established under the articles of asscciation
whereby drrectors actual and potential conflicts are identified and
regularly reviewed The board can authonse potential conflicts of
interest that may anse and impose such lmits or conditions as it
thinks fit Such autherity can be made only by independent directors
{those who have no mterest in the matter being considered) in
making such a decision the directors must act in a way they consider
in good fath will be most kkely to promote the success of the
Company Any appropriate autherisation 15 sought prior to the
appointment of a new director or at the time if any new conflict
anses During the year the board considered that this procedure
operated effectively

The Group Company Secretary

All drrectors have access to the advice and services of the Group
Company Secretary whe 1s responsible for ensuning that board
procedures and applicable rules are observed Directors may also
obtain independent professional adwce n respect of ther duties to
the board and to its committees at the Company s expense

The Company maintans iabity nsurance for its drectors and
officers

Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions are set out In note 28 to the
financial statements

Political donations
No political donations were made dunng the year (2011/12 - nil)
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Directors’ statement of responsibilities

Auditors and the disclosure of information
to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving
this report 1s aware there s no relevant audit information, being
information needed by the auditors in connection with preparing
ther report of which the auditors are unaware Each director has
taken all the steps that he 1s obliged to take as a director in order

to make him aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the auditors are aware of that nformation

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were re-appointed auditors to the
Company at the annual gerteral meeting n July 2012 Resolutions
to re-appoint PneewaterhouseCoopers LLP and to authonse the
directors to set ther remuneration will be praposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting Note 5 to the financal
statements sets out details of the auditors’ remuneration

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for
the Annual Report

The directors are respensible for prepanng the Annual Report the
remuneration report and the financid statements in accordance with
applicatle iaw and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financal year Under that law the directors have elected to
prepare the Company and Group financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the EU Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that perod

In prepanng these financial statements the directors are required to

+ select swtable accounting policies and then apgly them
consistently,

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

» state whether applicable IFRSs as acopted by the EU have been
followed subject to any matenial departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Cormpany and the Group
will continue in business

The direciors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s and
the Groupss transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any twne the financial position of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the
remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial staterments Artcle 4 of the 1AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detecuon of fraud and other irregulanities

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of
the Company s website Legislationin the UK governing the
preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ
from tegislation in other junsdictions

Directors’ statement pursuant to the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The directars are also required by the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules of the FCA to nclude a management report containing a far
review of the business and a descrption of the principak nsks and
uncertainties facing the Company and the Group Each of the
directors whose name and function s ksted in the directors profiles
confirms that to the best of ther knowledge and belief

« the financiat statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the EU gve a true and fair view of the assets,
labilities, financial pesition and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings iIncluded in the consolidation taken as a
whole and

-

the management report disclosures are contained in the business
review and include a far review of the development and
performarce of the business and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consoligation taken as a whole
together with a descripoion of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties
that they face

Going concern

The Group s business activities together with the factors likely to
affect 1ts future development performance and position are set cut
in the business review The financid position of the Group its cash
flow lquidity position faciliies and berrowing position are described
In the business review and notes 8and 7 to the financial staterments
provide further detall on the Groups borrowings and management
of financial nsks The business review nchades an analysis of the key
risks facing the Group and the Group’s approach to risk management
15 discussed In the directors report

After reviewing the Group s annual budget hquidity requirements
plans and financing arrangements  tha directors are satisfied that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue to
operate for the foreseeable future and confirm that the Company
and the Group are going concerns For this reasan they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparning these financial
statements

By order of the board

Deborah Abrehart
Group Company Secretary

ICAP pic
2 Broadgate
London EC2M 7UR

Company number 3611426
14 May 2013
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Governance

Remuneration report

From the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to
present the Group's remuneration report
which provides detalls of the remuneration
policy and the remuneration for each of the
directors of ICAP plc for the year ended

31 March 2013 and the proposals for

therr remuneration for 2013/14

As we reparted in the 2012 Annual Report significant changes to
the bonus scherme were implerented for 2012/13 and these
combined with the difficult trading conditions during the year have
produced a lower financial outcome resulting in a reduction of more

than 27% in the bonus pool for the three executive directors from
the previous year

Total compensation paid to the Group Chief Executve Officer

for 2012/13 was 23 7% below the prior year compared with a
profit before tax™ decrease of 20% Futl detals of the remuneration
paid to the executive directars are set out on pages 75 and 76

The main changes to the bonus scheme were as foltows

= the new scheme has substantially higher hurdles for the same
level of bonus with the ntroduction of a cap on the bonus pool

o the new scheme rewards profit growth and success and

» fram 2013714 more challenging performance condibions with no
chff-vesting

The gross bonus pool for the executive directors s based on a targeted
profit before tax* of £354 milion and a payout curve as follows

Marginal borurs

S 5
Tier £m %
1 floor 0-75 0
2 76 -149 275
3 150 - 224 350
4 225 -299 4325
5 300 - 353 500
6 target — maximum 354 - 424 1000

7 424 + 0

Before acaust:on and dsposal costs and exceptiona’ tems

From this curve the gross bonus poot is calcudated of which 75%
relates to the achievement of the financiat target and 25% {o the
achievernent of the strategic objectrves over which the committee
exercses its discretion as to the level of achievernent

With the achievernent of profit before tax* of £284 million the
payout curve produces a gross bonus pool af £7 2 million

As detalled i the business review the difficult trading conditions
across both Global Broking and Electronic Markets resulted in the
delivery of a tower than targeted finencial outcome The committee
however recognised the work that had been undertaken in the year
in delivering other strategic objectives In particular the restructuning
of Global Broking and EBS and the delivery of £60 million in the cost
saving programme which would provide long-term benefit to
shareholders going forward

The kay achieverments of other strategic objectives included

« investment In growth areas — acqusibon and integration of 1SDX
EBS's acquisition of ClientKnowledge and development of new
products by Post Trade Risk and Information

« rebuld of ICAP s pre-eminent pesition in FX — review of EBS
strategy ncluding technology strategy

« review of nfrastructure to align with restructured business model
— first phase in the establishment of the Global Business Services
and Infrastructure IT dwvistons, and

« the strengthening of the global governance framework — review
of terms of reference and membership of executive committees
and the establishment of an appropnate framework incorporating
Global Business Services and Infrastructure IT

The committee considered the current status of the Libor
investigation and agreed that the position would be reviewed and
any appropnate adjustments to the remuneration of the executive
directors would be made when the outcome of these enquings

15 known

The cornmittee agreed that 97 % of the strategic obectives for
2012/13 had been achieved The element of the gross bonus peol
which relates to the achievemnent of strategic objectives (25%) was
reduced resulting in a bonus pool of £7 05 mihon

The committee discussed the participation in the bonus peo! which
had included the cash bonus eferment for the Group Chief Operating
Officer but, following his resignation 1t was no longer appropriate for
this position 10 be included The responsibilities were restructured
urdler the Group Finance Director the Deputy Group CFC and the
Group General Counsel As a result the committee agreed that
partapation n the bonus poal should be restructured to include only
the three executwve directors and the bonus pool reduced by 12 5%
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Taking this adjustrent into the calculation produces a net bonus pool
for 2012/13 of £6 17 millon This represents a reduction of 27 4%
in the borws pool for the three executive directors for the previous
year and compares with the reduction in profit before tax* of 20 0%
and a reduction in adjusted basic EPS of 18 0%

There has been no increase n base salaries for the executive
directors during the year As detaled above the bonus pool for
2012/13 has decreased by 27 4% from the pror year reflecting the
dfficult trading conditions

in addition the performance condition for the matching award for
the 2010 BSMP has not been met and these awards will lapse in
May 2013 This is the second consecutive year that the matching
awards under the BSMP have not vested reflecting both the
chaflenging market conditions that the Company faces and that the
BSMP 15 structured to reward only long-term growth

The committee has supported executive directors and senior
management s actions in reducing the remuneration costs of the
Group by the renegotiaticn of certain broker contracts with
wheraver possible a reduction in the fixed cost element of such
contracts Infrastructure staff costs have also been reviewed and the
committee has approved senior management s recammendation of
no salary Increases except in exceptional arcumstances, and a
targeted reduction in the discreticnary bonus peol and the
introducton of a semor management long term incentive plan

These criteria were applied to the remuneration of the executive
directors who received no Increase In base salary and a reduced
bonus pool

The committee s responsibility 1s the oversight of the remuneration
strategy for the Group to ensure that ICAP s approach to
remuneration s aigned with the interests of employees and
shareholders and to comply with current best practice and
requlatory requirements

We welcome this opportunity to report to sharehclders the work
that the committee has been engaged in over the past 12 months
and on the remuneration structure for our executive directors

We were pleased that there was a positive reaction from our
sharehclders at the 201 2 annual general meeting to the changes
made to the remuneration structure and we look forward to your
continuiNg support

Robert Standing
Chairman
Remuneration Committee

14 May 2013

*  Before acqursiion and disposal costs and exceptional terns

Remuneration Committee report

The following report contans both audited and unaudited
nformation PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has audited the tables on
pages 75tc 78

The committee members are appanted by the board and comprise
ndependent non-executive directors The chairman of the
committee 15 apponted by the board On 11 July 2012 John
Sievwright resigned from the Remuneraticn Committee and Hsieh
Fu Hua was appointed

The following table sets out the directors who served on the
Rermuneration Committee during the year and their committee
meeating attendance

Remuneration Comsmittee meetings

Total Attended
Robert Standing (chairman) 7 7
Hsieh fuHua 4 3
Diane Schueneman 7 6
John Sievwnight 3 3

Apologies had been receved in advance for the unavoidatle absence
from a committee meeting by Hsieh Fu Hua and Diane Schueneman

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are described
in its terms of reference available on the Group s website

www Icap com The principat actmities and matters addressed by
the committee dunng the year included

» review and approve executive drectors and GEMG members
bonuses for the year to 31 March 2012

» consideration of impact of departure of Group Chief Operating
Officer on the bonus poal

» review and approve the remuneration of FCA Remuneraticn
Code Staff

s setting executive directors and GEMG objectives for the year
ended 31 March 2013,

» assessment of the achievement of the objectives for the year
ended 31 March 2013

« confirmation that the performance condition for the 2010 BSMP
matching awards had not been met

= review of the Group s rermuneration governance framework

review of highest earner compensation arrangements across the
Group to ensure the link to performance 1s mantaned

review of legislation (and proposed legislation) relating to
remuNeration reporting

approval of the Trarana Equity Optiors Plan as part of the Traiana
strategic mvestment transaction and

bonus in leu of dndend payments
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Governance

Remuneration report continued

During the year the commuttee considered for approval a number
of contracts for semor brokers and managers under its terms of
reference This together with externally provided benchmarking
information, provides the committee with the appropriate
information to ensure remuneration structures and levels within the
Group are consistent with those of the executive directors and other
SENIQr managers

The committee 15 supported by the Group Finance Drector, the
Global Head of HR and the Group Company Secretary Anumber of
external advisers Towers Watson Stephenson Harwood LLP and
Deloitte LLP all appainted by the committee have provided advice
dunng the year Stephenson Harwood LLP atso provided advice on a
range of legal 1ssues to the Group and Delaitte LLP provided tax and
regulatory advice to the Group during the year to 31 March 2013

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Remuneration Committee
undertakenin 2011/12 had «dentified the committee s priorities as
support for the new Global Head of HR to gain @ more In-depth
understanding of competitor remuneration and to engage further
with shareholders on executive remuneration The evaluation
undertaken in 2012/13 indicated that the quality of the mformation
provided to the committee had been improved as a result of the
appointrent of a Global Head of HR and that there should be
ongoing focus on the recrutment and development of talent within
the organisation The committee will also focus on the changing
regulatory environment and the resuiting Impact on remungration
throughout the Group

Remunerzuian is aligned with ICAP s nisk profile

As aleading financial markets operator and provider of services ICAP
does not take outright position nisk and the remuneration pohcy 1s
aligned with the actvities the Group undertakes and 15 compatible
with the Group s risk policies

Remuneration 1s earned on revenue that s certan Due to the
nature of ICAP s role as an intermediary post trade services

and information provider Group revenue 1s In the form of

(1) commussions for successful execution or processing of our
customers trades and (#) fees for the provision of market data
services The conversion of commussions or fees invoiced nto
collected revenue is very rapid (typically within 60 days) and not
contingent on the future performance of any underlying reference
asset or fransaction

Capital rnpacts are considered in the management and planning of
ICAP s activities

Remuneration policy

Principles

+ ICAP 5 rernuneration arrangements operate in accordance with
appropnate regulatory codes and guidance in all junsdictions in
which It operates, particularly that of the FCA and with reference
to the nature, scale and particular characteristics of ICAP s
business

» |CAP s remuneration arrangerments are consistent with and
promote effective rsk management do not encourage nsk taking
in excess of ICAP s risk appetite, and take account of current and
future nisks in the setting of vanable remuneration

» |CAPs remuneration arrangerments take into account the interests
of sharehalders investors and other stakeholders and are
consistent with and suppart ICAPs business strategy and
corporate values They are also consistent with ICAP s financial
condition and future prospects and the need to maintan its
capital base

¢ ICAPs remuneration arrangements are structured so as to
avoid conflicts of interest both nternally and those related
to customers interests

» |CAP s remuneration arrangerments take into account the need for
consistency between fundng and payment of bonuses and the
timing and likelihood of ICAP receving the revenue on which a
bonus 15 based

s ICAP s remuneration arrangernents have regard to levels of
remuneration in the market and ensure that the remuneration of
staff in control functions such as rsk management compliance
human resources and legal 15 adequate to attract and retan
qualfied and experienced staff 5 1n accordance with the
achievement of objectives set for those staff 1s determined ‘
independently of the businesses they oversee and has an !
appropriate mix of fixed and varable components i

» ICAP s remuneration arrangements ensure that varable
remuneration 1s not paid through vehicles ar by methods that
facitate the avoidance of any regulatory cr other remuneration
provisions which may apply to the Group

= (CAP s remuneration arrangements ensure that 1CAP s pension
pelicy 15 1n Ine with 1ts business sirategy objectives values and
long- term interests

= {CAP s remunerabion arrangerments ensure that employees and
management who are In receipt of deferred equity-based
compensation are not permitted to undertake personal hedging
strategies or take out nsurance contracts that undermine the risk
alignment of thewr employment contracts
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Remuneration and bonus arrangements for
the year ended 31 March 2013

The remuneration and bonus arrangements for the executive
directors for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out on
pages 75 and 76

Cf the bonus poel for 2012/13 of £6 17 million half 1s pad in cash
and the executve directors are required to acquire shares in the
Cornpany with the rernainder of thew after tax bonus amount as
investment shares under the 2013 BSMP A matching award of shares
will be granted under the 2013 BSMP to executive directors with
avalue equat to half therr pre-tax cash bonus The matching award

15 subject to a performance condition and the retention of the
investment shares The rules of the 2013 BSMP include the
Company's nght to dawback unvested matching awards where
matenal misstatement in the financial statements and/er an error has
resulted in excessive long term Incentive payments being awarded

GRAPH REMOVED

Performance condition

2010 award

The performance condition for the release of the 2010 matching
award under the long term incentrve plan 1s that adjusted basic EPS
must grow by at least 9% over RPl over the three years from the
date of grant This performance condition has not been met In
respect of the 2070 BSMP matching award (actual adjusted basic
EPS of 33 Op was achieved against a target of 42 71p) and as a
result the matching awards will not vest and will lapse n May 2013

2013 award

The committee continues to believe that the use of adusted basic
EPS 1s the appropriate performance condition as it safeguards the
progress that has been made in the Group s performance and
underpins continuing forward growth in the Group s earmings and
therefore promotes the long-term success of the Company

The performance condition for the 2013 BSMP matching award and
other long term incentve plans 1s based on graduated vesting where
10% of the matching award would vest at RPI + 6% increasing to
100% vesting at RPI +15% over a three-year period

The Company has the nght to clawback unvested matching awards
where matenial misstaternent in the fnancial staternents and/or an

error has resulted in excessive long term incentive payments being

awarded

Total shareholder return

The total shareholder return on a helding of the Company s ordinary
shares compared with the FTSE 100 FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-
Share indices for the five financial years to 31 March 2013 1s shown
in the graph below As a constituent of the FTSE 100 index from
June 2006 to September 201 2, the Company considers both the
FTSE 100 and the FTSE 250 the appropriate indices for comparison

During this period the performance condition which 1s based on EPS
for the long term incentive awards made i 2009 and 2010 were
nat met Executive directors therefore did not recemve the shares
relating to these awards

Performance graph - value of £100 investeg
Five financial years ended 31 March 2013

GRAPH REMOVED
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(Governance

Remuneration report continued

Proposed remuneration and bonus for the
year ending 31 March 2014

The bonus scherne 1s structured to Incentivise executive directors to
increase prefit and to align therr interests with those of shareholders
As such the bonus scherme ncludes a profit level below which ng
bonus will be payable a payout curve which will Increase up to the
target level and a maximum level above which no additional bonus
would be payable

For 2013/14 the payout curve has been increased by RPI +3%
which will have the effect of increasing each ter by a multiple of the
floor level The maxirmurm bonus pool 1s capped at & maximum
achievernent of 120% of the target profit figure

Marginal borus

Prafit before rate for

tax 201314

Tier £m %
1 floor 0-79 0
2 B0 -159 275
3 160 - 239 350
4 240-318 425
5 319-375 500
6 target — maximum 376-450 1000
7 451 + 0

From thes schedule the gross bonus poal, which will be reduced

by 12 5% to reflect the current participation of the three executive
directors 1s calcdtated Of this figure 75% relates to the
achievement of the financiai objective and 25% to the achievement
of the strategic objectives over which the committee wil exeraise
its discretion as to the level of achievernent

The table below provides examples of the sensitivities of the bonus
pool figure to the achievernent of targeted profit before tax* and
the achievement of strategic objectives As an example achieving
profit before tax of £284 milhenin 2013714, witha 91%
achievement level of strategic objectives the same level as
2012/13 would result in the bonus pool decreasing from

£6 17 mifion to £5 89 milion

The qualitative objectives to be assessed by the committee for the
year ending 31 March 2014 will be based on five key areas —
customer algnment product innovation peaple development
operational efficiency and governance Each key objective will be led
by a member of the GEMG and will compnise a nurmber of key
delverables

Of the bonus pool half will continue to be paid in cash The executive
directors will be required to acquire shares in the Company with

the rermainder of therr after tax bonus amount as investment shares
A matching award of shares will be granted under the 2013 BSMP
Lo executive directors with a value equal to half theyr pre-tax cash
bonus A matching award will usually be released after three years if
the executive director to whorn the particular award was made 1s
sill emplayed, has retained the investment shares purchased with
hts net of tax bonus amount and the performance condiion has
been met

The 2013 BSMP was approved by shareholders at the annual
general meeting in 2012

Chairman and non-executive directors’ fees

The fess payable 1o the non-executive directors are considered and
approved by the executive directorsand the Charrman of the board
Following a review by the beard, which included market information
and commentary from Towers Watson the Charmans fee was
increased from £250 000 to £300000 per annum with effect from
1 October 2012 The fees pad to John Sievwnght ncreased duning
the year followsng his appointment as senior independent director

The Charman and non-executive drectors fees are

Charman £300000
Non-executive director £80,000
Additional fees

Senior independent director £10000
Charman of the Audit Committee £10,000
Charmen of the Remuneration Committee £10000
Chairman of the Risk Committee £10000
Charrman of the Nomination Cormmittee* £5000

S0% 75% 1% 100%
achevement achwevement achevernent adwevement

Target PBT*

-10% (£338m) £714m  £765m £797m £816m

PBT* n ine

2012/13

(£284m) £8527m  £565m £589m  £60Z2m

Target PBT*

(£376m) £859m £921m £960m £982m

Target PBT™

+10%{£413m}  £1150m £1232m £1285m £1314m

* Before acqustion and dssposd costs and exceptonal tems

Charles Gregson warved his entstlernent to the addtional fee for s role as charman of
the Nomination Committee
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Directors’ interests

The table details the interests of the directors n the Company s
ordinary shares of 10p each as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2012 Drrectors interests in options over Company shares are
detaled on pages 77 and 78 of this report

Directors interests shown in the table below represent shares
beneficially held by each director together with shares held by their
connected persons They include ordinary shares held on behalf of
Michael Spencer and lain Torrens by the trustees of the ICAP Trust
in respect of their basic awards under the BSMP and any vested
matching awards under the BSMP

Shareholding guidelines

Last year inorder to align the nterests of sermcr employees with those
of shareholders the committee intreduced minimum shareholding
guidelines for executive directors and members of the GEMG These
shareholdings will be bult up over time and For these purposes will
include vested share awards under long term incentive plans but will
not include any unvested nghts to shares awarded under long term
incentive plans or any unexercised options

The following table details the shareholding guidelines and the extent
to which these have been met by the executive directors as at
31 March 2013

Directors interests as at 31 March 2013 2012
Charles Gregson (Chairman) 223,596 221631
Michael Spencer* 108,646,463 108074101
John Nixon 68,951 20000
lain Torrens 307,758 58699
Hsieh Fu Hua - -
Diane Schueneman - -
John Sievwright 20,000 20000
Robert Standing 10,000 10000

* Detals of Michae! Spencers shareholdmng are set out In a note to the substanbial
shareholdings secton on page 65

Between 31 March 2013 and 10 May 2013 there were no
changes to the above nterests

GRAPH REMOVED

For each executive director the target had been exceeded as at

31 March 2013 based on the share price at the close of business on
that date Shares that count towards the guideline are those that are
beneficially owned and shares held by the ICAP Trust in respect of
BSMP basic awards and any vested matching awards Any interest

i unvested BSMP matching awards which are subject to the
achieverment of a performance condition do not count towards

the requirement Michael Spencer's shareholding includes fis helding
derived from employment and does nat include his other share
interests which are detaled on page 65

The shareholding guidelines for members of the GEMG who are not
executive directors are 200% of base salary for those with business
line responsibiities and 100% of base salary for those with functional
responsibility
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(Governance

Remuneration report continued

Directors’ service contracts

The Company's policy 1s for executive directors 1o have service contracts with notice periods of no more than one year in ine with the
recommendations of the Code and to provide a reasonable balance between the need to retan the services of key indwduals and the need
to hmit the habiliies of the Company 1n the event of the termination of a contract The contracts of Michael Spencer and lain Torrens may be
terminated by the Company with no notice 10 which case the Company 15 obliged ta make a payment of salary and contractual benefits
{excluding any bonus) for 12 months The contract for John Nixon provides for a 12 month notice period inwhich he may be eligible for the
payment of a discretionary bonus

No drector received compensation for loss of office duning the year

The table below shows details of directors service contracts

Lontract/letter of

Owectors service contracts Date apponted director appontment date Term Expiry/review
Executive directors
Michael Spencer 090959 300998 1 year Rolling
{as amended
220799)
John Nixon 150508 280611 1 year Reling
lain Torrens 181110 181110 1 year Rolling
Non-executive drectors
Charles Gregson {Chairman) 0608498 011012 Ng notice 011013
Hsich Fu Hua 010111 181212 3 months notice on 110713
change of control
Diane Schuenaman 140710 110512 3 months notice on 1407 14
change of control
John Sievwright 150709 090513 3 months notice on 150715
change of control
Robert Standing 140710 110512 3 months notice on 140714

change of control

Share schemes and long term incentive arrangements

The Company has a number of share schermes wihich are described in detailin note 21 to the financial statements Since the approval of the
BSMP (which has been replaced by the 2013 BSMP) executive directors no longer receive awards under any of the schemes with the
exception of the sharesave scherne (SAYE) descnbed in note 21 No executive share options have been offered at a discount (save as
permitted by paragraph 9 4 4 and 95 4 of the Listing Rules)

Group pension arrangements
The Group operates a number of pension schemes which are described more fully in note 22 to the financial statements

Detals of the Company's contributions to the pension arrangements of the executive directars are ncluded in the tables on
pages 75 and 76
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Audited information

Directors’ remuneration

Executive directors

The rernuneration for each of the executve directors of the Company who served during the year ended 31 March 2013 was as follows

Michael Spencer

[

Salary 360000
Benefits 4,995
Banus in lew of dvidend on 2003 BSMP awards 1457816
Annual bonus 2780000
Total for the year ended 31 March 2013 4,202,815
Total for the year ended 31 March 2012 5506 437
Half of the annual bonus amount, after the deduction of tax and costs will be apphed in the purchase of Investment

shares under the 2013 BSMP 1,390 000
Amount over which matching award will be granted under the 2013 BSMP 1390000
Pension (defined contribution) 18000
Qutstanding share cptions/awards under the BSMP and other long term incentive plans as at 31 March 2013

2003 BSMP award Shares/options
Basic 2884585

Matching 2277042 5161627
SAYE option 3284
John Nixon £
Salary 316136
Benefits 46829
Bonus in hew of dwidend on 2003 BSMP awards 330516
Annual bonus 1940000
Total for the year ended 31 March 2013 2,633,481
Total for the year ended 31 March 2012 3417710
Half of the annual bonus amount after the deduction of tax and costs will be applied in the purchase of investment

shares under the 2013 BSMP 970000
Amount over which matching promise will be granted under the 2013 BSMP 970000
Pension contnbution -
Qutstanding promises/awards under the BSMP and cther long term incentive plans as at 31 March 2013

2003 BSMP promise Shares/options
Basic 968 078

Matching 968 078 1936156
UcsorP 250000

The elements of John Nixon s remuneration that are paid in doliars have been converted to pound sterling using the average exchange rate

for the year of $1 5816 (2011/12 - $1 6049}
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(Governance

Remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration continued
Executive directors continued

lain Torrens £
Salary 225000
Benefits 2,694
Bonus in heu of dvidend on 2003 BSMP awards 90557
Annual bonus 1450000
Total for the year ended 31 March 2013 1,768,251
Total for the year ended 31 March 2012 1,942,434
Half of the annual bonus amount after the deduction of tax and costs will be apphed in the purchase of investrment

shares under the 2013 BSMP 725000
Arnount aver which matching award will be granted under the 2013 BSMP 725000
Pension (defined contnbution) 12,556
Outstanding share options/awards under the BSMP and other long term incentive plans as at 31 March 2013

2003 BSMP award Shares/options
8asic 301042

Matching 301042 602 084
SAYE option 3125

Notes to executive directors remuneration

There was no increase n base salanes for the executive directors dunng the year

Benefits to executive directors may include premiums for private medical and dental insurance permanent health insurance and disability
insurance In the case of John Nixon a significant portion of his benefits comprises the Federal Insurance Contnbutions Act tax whichi is

required to be pad by the Company on his behalf

A bonus in hew of dividend on the BSMP was recerved on the basic awards and promises granted in 2008 2009 2010 2017 and 2012 and
on the vested matching awards granted in 2008 which were unexercised during the year

Bonus and other entitlerents under the Company s incentive schemes are not pensionable

Total remuneration paid to drectors who served duning the year ended 31 March 2013

Year ended 31 March 01d 2013:
Executrve directors

Michael Spencer 4,202,815 5506 487
John Nixon 2,633,481 3417,710
lain Torrens 1,768,251 1942434
Non-executve drectors

Charles Gregson (Chairman) 275,000 250000
Hsieh Fu Hua 80,000 BO 000
Diane Schueneman 80,000 80000
John Sievwright 105,000 100000
Robert Standing 90,000 80000
Total 9,234,547 11466 631
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Bonus share matching plan (BSMP)

Under the 2003 BSMP an award (basic award) is granted to each executive director over the number of ordinary shares which can be
acqured with one half of the bonus amount Matching awards are granted at the same time as the basic awards and are exercisable at the
end of three years provided the basic awards are still held the executrve director remains 1n employment and the relevant performance
condition has been met UK-based executive directors recenve the basic and matching award as options which rmay be exercised at 2 date in
the future subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition in respect of the matching award US-based directors receive the basic and
matching award in the form of a promise to receve shares automatically released to them at a date in the future subject to the satisfaction
of a performance condition in respect of the matching award The exercise price for a basic award s £1 and the exerase price for amatching
awardis £1 The table below sets out the outstanding awards grants lapses and exercises as part of the executive directors’ vanable
remuneration as at 31 March 2013

Options under Matchng award Optiors undes

the BSMP Basic options subsect Markel vaie the BSMP
held at CGrant award to performance al exergise held at
Mote 1Apn 2012 dale optons congiticn Lapred Lxerosed fm 31 March 2013
Executive
directors (UK)

290508 ©31973 631973 - - -
280509 607543 607543 (607 543) - -
270510 408398 408398 - - -

Michael Spencer

3
2
3
4 26051 667593 667593 - - -
5
4
5

4631014 240512 569078 569078 - - - 5,161,627
lain Torrens 260511 52983 52,983 - - -
105966 240512 248 059 248 059 - - - 602,084
Prormises under Malchng award Pronvses under
the BSMP Basic  prorvses subject Mart el vaue the BSMP
held at Gant award 10 perfomance at release beld at
Mole 1 Aprd 2012 date proreses condion Lapied Redeated £m 31 March 2013
Executive
director (US)
John Nixon 2 280509 63 951 63 951 (63951)  (63951) Ccz
3 270510 68 066 68 066 - - -
4 260511 476852 476,852 - - -
5 1217738 240512 423160 423160 - - - 1,936,156

All option/prormise figures shown as at 31 March 2013 remain unchanged as at 10 May 2013
Notes

1 Performance year ended 31 March 2008 market price on date of grant - 610 Op, exercise perod 18 May 2011 - 17 May 2076 The
market pnice on 18 May 2011 the date the award became capable of being exercised was 488 9p

2 Pesformance year ended 31 March 2009, market price on date of grant — 394 Sp exercise penod for basic award 16 May 2012 - 15 May
2017 The matching awards/promse lapsed in May 2012 as a result of the performance condition for that award not being met The market
priceon 16 May 2012 the date the basic award became capable of being exercised and the date the basic prormise vested was 336 5p

3 Performance year ended 31 March 2010 market price on date of grant - 391 7p exerase penod for basic award 14 May 2013 - 13 May
2018 The matching awards/prornese due to vest in May 2013 will lapse as a result of the performance condition for that award not being met

4 Performance year ended 31 March 2011 market price on date of grant - 480 5p For UK executive directors the exercise peniod
commences on the day of the announcement of the Company s annual results for the financal year ending 31 March 2014 and will last
for five years For the US executive director the basic award promise will be released to the director following the announcement of the
Company s annual resuits for ihe financial year ending 31 March 2014

5 Performance year ended 31 March 2012 market price on date of grant - 339 Op For UK executive directors the exercise period
commences on the day of the announcernent of the Company s annual results for the financial year ending 31 March 2015 and will last
for five years For the US executive director the basic award promise will be released to the director follewing the announcerment of the
Cornpany s annual resuits for the financial year ending 31 March 2015
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Governance
Remuneration report continued

Share option plans

The interests of the directors in aptions over the Company s shares resulting from the UCSOP and the SAYE scheme are shown below at
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013

Exercre Exercee Exercne
penod

Dmecigamt  Tam0r el depead  3ekee 03 s o s
Michael Spencer
SAYE 170609 2,832 - 2832 - 010812 310113 3230
SAYE 140612 - 3284 - 3284 010815 310116 2740
lain Torrens
SAYE 150610 3125 - - 3125 010813 310114 2880
John Nixon
UCser 010606 250000 - - 250,000 010609 300516 4930

The market pnce of the Company s shares on the date Michael Spencer exercised options under the 2009 SAYE scheme {15 January 2013)
was 324 1p per share No other options were exercised during the year No share options awarded to directors under the UCSOP and the
SAYE scheme lapsed duning the year All option figures shown as at 31 March 201 3 remained unchanged as at 10 May 2013

At the close of business on 28 March 20173 (the last business day of the financial year) the market price of the Company s ordinary shares
was 290 4p per share and during the year fluctuated in the range 281 4p - 326 5p per share

Options granted under the SAYE scheme are not subject to a performance condition The perfermance condition for the release of options
granted under the UCSOP s that adjusted basic EPS must have grown by at ieast 9% over RPI over the three years from the date of grant

This remuneration report 1s prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 of the Large and Mediumi-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and ;
Reperts) Regulations 2008 the Listing Rules and the Code and will be put to shareholders for an adwisory vote at the annual general meeting
to be held on 10 July 2013

By order of the board

Robert Standing
Chairman
Remuneration Committee
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of ICAP plc

We have audted the financial statements of ICAP plc for the year
ended 31 March 2013 which compnse the consobdated income
staternent the consobdated staternent of cormprehensive income the
consolidated and Company balance sheet the consolidated statement
of changes in equity the Company statement of changes in equity the
consolidated and Company statement of cash flow the accounting
polhaes and related notes 1he financial reporting framework that has
been applied in thewr preparation 1s apphcable law and Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Urion and as regards the Company financial staterments as applled

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditors

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilties staternent
included in the director s report the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statemants and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view Our responsibiity 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the finanaal statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Audrting (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us ta comply with the Auditing
Practices Boards Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the cpinions kas been prepared for and only for
the company s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not 0 gving these opmions accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report Is
shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatemnent whether caused by fraud or error This ndudes an
assassment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
Groups and the Company's circurnstances and have been consistently
appled and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the finanoal statements In addibon, we read afl the
financidl and non-financial information in the Annual Report to wentify
matend inconsistenaes with the audited financial staternents If we
becorne aware of any apparent matenal misstaterments or
Inconsistencies we conskler the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opiron

« the financial statements give a true and fair vew of the state of
the Group s and of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2013
and of the Groups profit and Group's and Company s cash flows
for the year then ended

« the Groups financial statements have been properly prepared in
accardance with (FRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

« the Company financial statements have been property prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as

apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006 and

« the financid! statements have been prepared n accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the
Group financial statements Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

+ the part of the directors remuneration report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

« the information given in the directors report for the financial year
for which the financial staternents are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and

+ the nformation given in the drrector s report with respect 1o
nternal control and nsk management systems and about share
capital structures is consistent with the finanoial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report i respect of the following

Under the Companes Act 2006 we are required to report to you If
1N our gpInion

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Cornpany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us or

» the Company financial statements and the part of the directors
remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns or

» certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are
nat made, or

» we have not receved all the information and explanations we
requrre for our audit or

» a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by
the Company

Under the Listing Rules we are requred to review

* the drectors statement set out on page 67 in relation to going
concern

» the parts of the Corporate Govemance Statement relating to the
Company's compliance with the nne provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code speafied for our review and

» certan elernents of the report to shareholders by the board on

for and on behalf ¢
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

ncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

14 May 2013
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Financial staternents

Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 March 2013

M“::;mdspm Acquistion and Excepbond
cemonanom (o2 () fpate ®) ot
Note fm im £m Em
Revenue 1 1,472 - - 1,472
Operating expenses 5 (1.173) (157 (60) (1,390)
Other income 24 g - - 9
Operating profit 1 308 (157) (60) 91
Finance mcome 10 11 - - 11
Finance costs 10 (40} {1} - {41}
Share of profit of associates after tax 1 5 - - 5
Profit before tax 284 (158) (60) 66
Tax 9 (73) 38 12 {(23)
Profit for the year 211 {120) (48) 43
Attributable to
Owners of the Company 211 (120) {48) 43
Non-controlling interests - - - -
211 (120) (48) 43
Earnings per ordinary share {(pence)
- basic 2 67
- diluted 2 66
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Consolidated income statement continued

Year ended 31 March 2012

M“;aqulsﬂpoﬂ Acqursition and Icepbona
costs and dsposd costs ters

e ex:epmrdllegﬁ {notel3 ({:2 (no(eEiz 1c£t::
Revenue 1 1687 - - 1681
Operating expenses 5 (1339 (150 - (1485)
Other income 24 26 13 - 39
Operating profit 1 372 (137) - 235
Finance income 10 10 - - 10
Finance costs 10 (34) - - (34)
Share of profit of assocates after tax 1 6 - - 6
Profit before tax 354 (137) - 217
Tax 9 (95) 18 - an
Profit for the year 259 (119) - 140
Attnibutable to
Owners of the Company 260 (123) - 137
Nen-controling interests (1 4 - 3

259 (119) - 140
Earnings per ordinary share (pence)
- basic 2 211
— diluted 2 208
ICAP g

Arrual Fe port 2013
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Yer ggg\ Y?%
Nge Em £
Profit for the year 43 140
Other comprehensive income
Net movement on cash flow hedges 20(a} (13) 12
Net exchange adjustments on investments in overseas subsidiaries 50¢ (29)
Net exchange adjustments on investments in overseas associates 1) (2)
Revaluation gains in the year 20(a) - 4
Net current tax recognised in other comprehensive income 9 - (M
Net deferred tax recogmised in other comprehensive ncome g8 (3) -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 33 {186)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 76 124
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Company 76 127
Non-controling interests - 3
76 124
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Consolidated and Company balance sheet

Growp Corpany
As at As gt As at As al
3 g\arg 315243'1\1; kb hziar'lt; Ell nglmz
Note £m £m £m £
Assets
Non-current assets
intangible assets ansing on consolidation 6{a) 1,080 1188 - -
Intangible assets ansing from development expenditure 12 83 68 - -
Property and equipment 13 50 82 - -
Investment 1n subsidiaries 30(a) - - 2,036 1989
Investment in associates 14 59 54 1 1
Deferred tax assets 9 15 12 - —
Trade and other recevables 16 6 1 124 -
Avallable-for-sale nvestments 15 29 31 - -
1,322 1 446 2,161 1990
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 16 16,898 79254 98 95
Restricted funds 8(e) 37 50 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 8(c) 602 547 - -
17,537 79 851 98 95
Total assets 18,859 81297 2,259 2085
Liabilities
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 17 (16,880) (79 184) (429) (68)
Borrowings 7(b) (71 (255) - (21)
Tax payable (134) (123) - -
Provisions 18 {1) (1 - -
{(17,086) {79 563) (429) (89)
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables 17 (29) (33 - (140)
Borrowings 7(a) (5086) (374) {124) -
Deferred tax habilites 9 (66) (98) - -
Retirement benefit cbligations (3) (1) - -
Provisions 18 (13) (18} - -
(617) (524) (124) (140)
Total iabilities (17,703) (80087) (553) (229)
Net assets 1,156 1210 1,706 1856
Equity
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19({b} 66 66 66 66
Share premium account 454 453 454 453
Other reserves 78 H 1 1
Translation 91 42 - -
Retained earnings 414 516 1,185 1336
Equity attrbutably to owners of the Company 1,103 1,168 1,706 1,856
Nqn-contro!lmémtg(ests 53 42 - -
Thtal equty / 1,156 1210 1,706 1856
finahicial gtatements o es 82 to 145 were approved by the board on 14 May 2013 and siyned onits behali by
ichael
Group Ch
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

oo b N
Sos e 200 Teton  ceeg  Compay et Tora
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 Apnit 2011 68 452 75 73 565 1,231 20 1251
Comprehensive ncome
Profit for the year - - - - 137 137 3 140
Other comprehensive income
Net movement on cash flow hedges - - 12 - - 12 - 12
Net exchange adjustments on investments N
overseas subsidiaries - - - (29) - (29) - (29
Net exchange adjustments on nvestments in
overseas associates - - - (2) - (2) - (2)
Unrealsed revaluation gains in the year - - 4 - - 4 - 4
Net current tax recognised in other
comprehensive Income - ~ - - (1) n - (1}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 16 (31} 136 121 3 124
Own shares acquired for employee trusts - - - - S 5 - 5
Ordinary shares 1ssued (note 19(b)) - 1 - - - 1 - 1
Cancellation of ordinary shares - - - - (2) (2) - (2
Share-based payments in the year (note 21) - - - - 3 3 - 3
Other movements in non-controling nterests - - - - - - 22 22
Dwidends paig in the year (nate 3) - - - - (135} (135) (3 (138)
Net Treasury Shares acquired in the year
(note 19(e}) - - - - (56) (56} - (56)
Balance at 31 March 2012 66 453 91 42 516 1168 42 1210
Comprehensive iIncome
Profit for the year - - - - 13 43 - 43
Other comprehenswe income
Net movement on cash flow hedges - - (13) - - (13) - (13
Net exchange adjustrments on investments in
overseas subsidiaries - - - 50 - 50 - 50
Net exchange adjustments on investments I
overseas assocates - - - (1 - M - (1}
Net deferred tax recogmised in other
comprehensive ncome - - - - (3) 3) - (3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {(13) 49 40 76 - 76
Own shares acquired for employee trusts
(note 19(d)) - - - - (3} (3) - (3)
Ordinary shares issued (note 19(b)) - 1 - - - 1 - 1
Share-based paymenis n the year (note 21} - - - - 1 1 - 1
Other movements in non-controlling interests - - - - 5 5 11 16
Dividends paid in the year {note 3) - - - - {(145) (145 - (145}
Balance at 31 March 2013 66 454 78 91 414 1,103 53 1,156
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Company statement of changes in equity

m 'aus:: z: —— Totd

im im £m £m £m

As at 1 Aprt 2011 66 452 1 1282 180
Profit for the year - - - 247 247
Total comprehensive mcome - - - 247 247
Ordinary shares 1ssued (note 19{b)) - L - - 1
Cancellation of ordinary shares - - - (2 (2)
Dwadends paid in the year (note 3} - - - (135) (13%)
Net Ireasury Shares acquired n the year {note 19(e)) - - - 56) (56)
Balance as at 31 March 2012 66 453 1 1336 1,856
Loss for the year - - - (3) (3)
Total comprehensive tncome - - - (3} (3)
Ordinary shares issued (note 19(b)) - i - - 1
Dmdends pad in the year (note 3) - - - {145} (145)
Own shares acqurred for employee trusts - - - (3} (3
Balance as at 31 March 2013 66 454 1 1,185 1,706
drpaiiory 37
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Financial statements

Consolidated and Company statement of cash flow

Group Company
i T a i
Ncie £m 1] Em £m
Cash flows from operating activities 8(a) 272 312 - -
Cash flows from investing activities
Imvestments in subsidianes - - (48) -
Drdends recenved from associates 1 5 - -
Other equity dividends received 6 3 - -
Payrents to acquire propérty and equipment 7N a7 - -
Intangible development expenditure (32) (35) - -
Net receipts on avalable-for-sale investments 5 1 - -
Proceeds from sale of business net of cash disposed 22 13 - -
Acquisizion of interests in businesses net of cash acquired (3) (3) - -
Acquisition of associates and joint ventures (9) {24} - -
Net cash flows from investing activities a7 (57 (48} -
Cash flows from financing activities
Dvidends paid to non-controlling interest - (3) - -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1 1 1 1
Cancellation of ordinary shares - (2) - (2)
Proceeds from issues of ordinary shares to non-controlling interest - 22 - -
Dmidends paid to owners of the Company (145) (135) (145) (135}
Payments to acquire Treasury Shares - (56) - (56)
Payments to acquire own shares for employee trusis* (3) - (3 (6}
Repayment of borrowings (251) - (21) -
Funds receved from borrowing net of fees 193 57 - 21
Receipts from subsidianes - - 218 256
Payments to subsidianes - - (2) (79)
Net cash flows from financing actrvities (205) {(118) 48 -
FX adusiments 14 (5 - _
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 64 134 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8(c) 538 404 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8(c) 602 538 - -

Payments 1o acgure own shares for employee share trusts s shown net of £5m (2011712 - £6m) of contrbutions recened from patcpants in the trusts
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Basis of preparation

Preparation of financial statements

The ¢onsolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate finanaa statements of ICAP plec have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as sssued by the IASB and as endorsed by the EU IFRSs comprise accounting standards issued by the IASB and s predecessor body as
well as interpretations 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC ) and its predecesser body In publishing the parent company
financial statements here together with the Group financial statements ICAP plc has taken advantage of the exernption in sechion 408(3) of
the Companies Act 2006 not to present 1ts inddual incomne statement individual staternent of comprehensive income and related notes
that form a part of these financial staternents The financial statements are prepared in pound stering whichis the functional currency of the
Company and presented in milkons ICAP plcis domicied in the UK

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group and Company are included within the notes to which they relate and are shaded
in blue

The preparation of financial statements requires management to apply jJudgements and the use of estmates and assumptions about future
conditions Management considers impairment of goodwill and other intangibles assets anising on consolidaben (note 6) and tax (note 2) to
be the areas where increased judgement 1s reguired Further information about key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty, are set out in the relevant notes on the financial statements Estimates and assumptions are continucusly evaluated
and are based on histonical expenence and other factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
arcumstances Due to the inherent uncertainty (n making estimates actual resuits reported in future periods may be based on amounts
which differ from those estimates Rewisions to accounting estimates are recogrised in the peniod in which the estimate s revised and in any
future penods affected

Presentation of the income statement

The Group mamtains a columnar format for the presentation of ts consolidated income statement The columnar format enables the Group
to continue its practice of improving the understanding of ts results by presenting profit for the year before acquisiion and disposat costs
and exceptionaliterns This is the profit measure used to calculate adusted EPS (note 2) and 1s considered to be the most approprate as it
better reflects the Group's underlying earmings Profit before acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional items are reconciled to profit
before tax on the face of the consolidated income statement

The column acguisition and disposal costs includes any gains losses or other associated costs on the full or partial disposat of investments
associates joint ventures or subsidiaries and costs associated with a combination that do not constitute fees relating to the arrangement of
financing amortisation or imparrment of ntangibles assets arsing on consoldation any re-measurement after mitial recogmibien of deferred
contingent consideration which has been classified as a hiabiity any gains or losses on the revaluation of previous interests The column may
also nclude stems such as gans or losses on the setilement of pre-exsting relationships with acquired businesses and the re-reasurement
of lizbilities that are above the value of indemnification

ltems which are of a non-recurnng nature and matenal when considering both size and nature are disclosed separately to give a clearer
presentation of the Groups results These are shown as ‘exceptional items’ on the face of the consolidated income statement

On the face of the consolidated ncome statement basic and diluted EPS have also been disclosed

Basis of consolidation
The Group s consoldated financial statements include the results and net assets of the Company 1ts subsidianes and the Group s share of
Jont ventures and associates

An entity s regarded as a subsidiary if the Group has control over its strategic, operating and financial policies and intends to hold the
investment on a long-term basis for the purpose of secunng a contnbution to the Group s activities

The results of companies acquired during the year are included in the Group s results from the effective date of acquisiion The results of
companigs disposed of dunng the year are ncluded up to the effective date of disposal

The Group treats transactions with non-coniroling inierests as transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases from non-
controfling Interests the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary 15 recorded in equity Gains or losses on disposals 1o non-controling interests are also recorded N equity

On consolidation the accounting policies of Group comparies (the Company and s subsidianes} are consistent with those applied by the Group
Intercormpany transactions balances and unrealised gans on transactions between Group companies are eminated as part of the consolidation
process Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transacton provides evidence of anmparment of the asset transferred
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Financial statements

Basis of preparation continued

Basis of consohdation continued

A joint venture s an entity 1n which the Group has an nterest and i the opinion of the drectors exercises joint control over its operating and
financial policies An interest exists where an investrment 1s held on a leng-term basis for the purpese of secunng a contrnbution to the Group’s
actmities Joint ventures are propertionately consolidated whereby the Group s consolidated incore staternent and balance sheet include the
Group s share of the iIncome and assets on a line-by-line basis

The Group classifies investments in entities aver which it has significant influence but not control and that are nerther subsidiaries nor joint
ventures as associates Investments in associates are recogrised using the equity method Under this method such investments are inibatly
stated at cost induding attributable goodwill and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group s share of net assets

Foreign currencies

In ndwvidual entibes transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the prior month closing exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency At each end of the reporting penod monetary assets and liabiities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaiing at the end of the reporting penod Exchange differences are recogrised in the
consoldated income statement except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and liabilities where these form part of the
net Investrment of an overseas business or are designated as hedges of a net nvestrment or cash flow and therefore the changes in value are
recognised directly in other comprehensive mcorme Non-monetary assets and habiliies carned at far value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevalling at the date when the far value was determined

On consolidazion the resuits of businesses with non-pound sterling functional currencies are translated into the presentational currency of
the Group at the average exchange rates for the penod where these approximate to the rate at the date of the transactions Assets arnd
liabilities of overseas businesses are translated Into the presentational currency of the Group at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period Exchange differences ansing are recogrised within other comprehensive income Cumulative transiation differences ansing
after the transition to IFRS are taken to the consolidated income statement on disposal of the net Investment

Goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a nen-pound sterling entity are treated as assets and liabiities of that entity
and translated intc the presentational currency of the Group at the period closing rate Where applicable, the Group has elected to treat
goodwil and farr value adjustrments ansing before the date of transition to IFRS as denorminated in the presentational currency of the Group

In the consoldated statemnent of cash flows cash flaws denominated in foreign currencies are translated nto the presentational currency of
the Groug at the average exchange rate for the year or at the rate prevaling at the time of the transacticn where more appropnate

Future accounting developments

At 371 March 2013 anumber of standards and amendments to standards had been issued by the IASB which are not effective for these
consalidated financial staterments In addition to the standards and amendments to standards described below 1A5B 15 also conbinung to work
on projects on Insurance revenue recognition and lease accounting which together with the fellowing could represent significant changes to
accounting requirements in the future

» [FR510 Censoldated financial statemnents requires a parent to present consolidated financial staterments as those of a single economic
entity replacing the requirements previously contained in t1AS27 Consolklated and separate financial statements and SIC-12
Consolidation — special purpose entibes The standard has baen endorsed by the EU for annual penods beginning en or after 1 January
2014

IFRST1 Joint arrangerments replaces 1AS31 interests mn joint ventures and requires a party to a joint arrangerment to determine the type of
jont arrangerment m which it 1 nvolved by assessing its rights and obligations and then account for those nghts and obligations in
accordance with that type of jont arrangement The standard has been endorsed by the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

IFRS12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities requires the extensive disclosure of mformation that enables users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature of and nisks associated with interests i other entities and the effects of those interests on its financial position,
financial performance and cash flows The standard has been endorsed by the EU for annual periads begmning on or after 1 January 2014
« IFRS13 Far value measurement replaces the guidance on far value measurement in existing IFRS accounting iiterature with a single
standard The standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

In June 2011 the IASB 1ssued amendments to 14519 Employee Benefits {1AS19 revised ) The revised standard s effectve for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption permitied |AS19 revised is requrred to be applied retrospectively
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Future accounting developments continued

» In December 2011 the IASB issued amendmenis to IFRS7 Disclosures - Oifsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabiities which requires
the disclosures about the effect or potential effects of offsetting financial assets and financial habilities and refated arrangements on an
entity's financial position The amendments are effective for annual pertods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interm periods
within those annual penods The amendments are required to be applied retrospecively

« InDecember 2011 the IASB issued amendments to1A532 Offsetting Financal Assets and Financial Liabiities which clanfy the
requiremnents for offsetting financial instruments and address inconsistencies in current practice when applying the offsetting crtena
14532 Financial Instrurments Presentation The amendments are effective for annual periods begnning onor after 1 January 2014 and are
required to be apphed retrospectively

* 1AS27 (2011) Separate financil statements carres forward the existing accounting and disclosure requrements of 1IAS27 (2008) for
separate financial statements with some minor clanfications The requirements of 14528 (2008) and 1AS31 for separate financial
statements have been incorporated into IAS27 (2011) The revised standard has been endorsed by the EU for annual periods beginning an
or after 1 January 2014

= 1AS28 (2011) Assocates and Jont Ventures ncludes the requirements for joint ventures and associates to be equity accounted following
the issue of IFRS11 Jont arrangements  The revised standard has been endorsed by the EU for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

The impact on the Group financial statements of adopting IFRS10 IFRS11 IFRS13 1AS19R 14532 1AS27 (2011) and 1AS28 (2011) 15
currently under review However the adoption of these standards is not expected to have a matenal impact

In Novernber 2002 the IASB ssued IFRS9 Financiat Instruments which introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets The IASB 15 in the process of amending the requirements for classification and measurernent to address practice and other
1ssues IFRSG 1s required to be applied retrospectively but pricr peniods need not be restated The final IFRS9 requirements for classification
and measurement and imparrment rernain uncertain and so ICAP remains unable to prowide a date by which it will apply IFRS9 as a whole and
it rernans impracticable to quantify the effect of IFRS9 as at the date of the publication of these financial statements

Ftnancial risk management

The Groug cperates internationally and 1s exposed to a vanety of financiat nsks including currency interest rate market price hiquidity and
credit The Group s overall financial nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictabiity of financial markets and seeks to minmise
potential adverse effects on the Group s financial performance by using dervative nstruments to lower funding costs, alter nterest rate
exposures ansing as a result of mismatches between assets and liabilities or to achieve greater certanty of future costs The use of
derwvatives forms part of the Group s overall nisk management framework as determined by the board through the GRACC

The Group s funding and exposure to nterest rate and FX rate nsk are managed by the Groups treasury function n accordance with a policy
framewaork approved by the GRACC The framework lays out the Group s appetite for nsk and the steps to be taken to manage these nsks
The GRACC recewes bi-monthly reports on the activities of the treasury function and s alse responsible for approving significant transactions
such as new financing arrangements or changes to the Group s hedging strategy The GRACC sets and monitors treasury s counterparty
lirmits in comunction with the nsk team

The Group s exposure to market price nsk anses mainty through counterparties to matched pnincipal and exchange traded transactions faling
to fulfil their obligations or through trade mismatches and other errors Inmatched principal transactions, the Group acts as an intermediary
by serving as counterparty for identified buyers and sellers in matching in whole or in part reciprocal back-to-back trades In order to
facilitate customer fransactions and provide liquidity the Group may participate in certan marketplaces by posting quotations On occasion
the act of posting quotations in pursuit of customer arders can result n the Group becarming principal to unmatched trades inexchange
traded transactions the Group executes the trade as principal and then novates the contract tots chent A falure by the chent to accept the
trade would result in the Group becoming exposed to market price nsk

The market pnce nisk the Group faces in these situations 1s restricted to short-term price movements i the underlying instrument
termpaoranly held by the Group and movernents n FX rates Any such market price nsk anising 15 1dentified momtored and reported to serior
management on a daly basis and to the GRACC Policies and procedures are in place to reduce the likelihood of such trade mismatches and in
the event that they anise the Group s policy 1s to hgudate or hedge and hgundate these pnincipal positions as soon as reasonably practicable

The Company I1s not exposed to market price nisk as it holds no listed investments and has no trading actmaty

Details of the expasure and ways in which the Group and Company manages currency and interest rate nsk are disclosed nnote 11 liquidity
nisk in nate 7 and credit nsk innote 16
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Financial statements

Index to the notes to the financial statements

Note  Page Note  Page
number number number number
Segmental information 1 93 Trade and other recevables 16 120
Earnings per share 2 95 Trade and other payables 17 124
Dwvidends payable 3 96 Provisions 18 126
Exceptional items 4 96 Share capital 19 127
Operating expenses 5 g7 Reserves 20 130
Intangble assets ansing on consolidation 6 98 Share awards 21 13
Borrowings 7 102 Employee information and expense 22 133
Cash 8 105 Acquisitions of subsiciaries 23 134
Tax 9 106 Other ncome 24 135
Net finance expense 10 110 Financial assets and liabilities 25 136
Currency and interest rate nsk management 11 11 Commitments 26 140
Intangitle fixed assets anising from 12 115 Contingant labilities 27 140
development expenditure Related party transactions 28 141
Property and equipment 13 16 Eyentsafter the balance shest date 29 142
fnvestment in asscciates 14 M7 Principal subsidiaries joint ventures and 30 142
Avallable-for-sale mvestments 15 119 associates
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Segmental nformation

The Group has determined its operating segments based on the management nformation reviewed on a regular basis by the Company s
board The Group considers the executive members of the Company s beard to be the Chref Operating Decsion Maker (CODM)

The CODM currently considers the business 10 consist of broking businesses in EMEA, the Amencas anc Asia Pacific a global efectromic
markets business active in fixed Income interest rate denvatwves and FX markets and a giobal post trade risk and information business Each of
these five business areas are managed and reviewed by the CODM on a stand-alone basis and as such are censidered segments The Group
reviews the composition of the operating segments at the beginning of each fiscal year ta determine whether they remain appropriate Any
changes would result in restatement of the figures reported n the prior year for comparative purposes

Revenue cormprses commission from the Group s Global Broking business brokerage or access fees fromis Hectronic Markets business and
fees from the provision of post trade nisk and information

Global Broking

Matched principal and stock lending business

Certan Group companies are involved In a nan-adwvisory capacity as prncipals n the matched purchase and sale of secunties and other
financial INstruments batween our customers Revenve s generated from the difference between the purchase and sale proceeds and s
recognised in full at the time of the commitment by our customers to sell and purchase the secunty of financial instrument The revenue
generated by the stock lending business 1s not matenial to the Group

Agency business (name give-up)

The Group acts in a non-adwisory capacity to match buyers and sellers of financial nstruments and raises invaices for the service provided
The Group does not act as principal in name gve-up transactions and only receives and transmits orders between counterparties Revenue is
statad net of rebates and discounts, value added tax and other sales taxes and 1s recognised in full on the date of the trade Amounts
receivable at the year end are reported as other trade recevables within trade and other recenvables {note 16)

For the shipbroking business the Group acts in a nan-adwisory capacity to match buyers and sellers of services and recognises revenue net
of rebates and discounts value added tax and other sales taxes when the Group has a contractual entitlemnent to commission normally the
paint at which there 1s a completion of contractual terms between the principals of a transaction Amounts recevable at the year end are
reported as other trade recevables wittun trade and other receivables {note 16)

Execution on exchange business

The Group also acts as a broker of exchange listed preducts where the Group executes custorner orders as prncpal and then novates the
trade to the underlying customners respective clearing breker for settlement Revenue 1s generated from either the diiference between the
purchase and sale proceeds or by nvoice depending on the product market and agreements in place with the customer and 1s recognised on
the trade date

Electronic Markets

The Group acts as a broker for FX interest rate dervatwes fixed ncore products and CDS through the Groups elecironic platforms
Revenue 15 generated from brokerage fees which are dependent on the customer’s global coverage and average trading volumes The Group
also charges fees to use the electronic trading platform for access to Iquidity in the FX or precious metal markets

Post Trade Risk and Information

The Group recenves fees from the sale of financial imformation and provision of post trade nsk and information to third parties These are
stated net of value added tax, rebates and other sales taxes and recognised in sevenue on an accruals basis to maich the prowision of the
service Amounts recenvable at the year end are reported as other rade recewables within trade and other receivables (note 16)

The Group continues o disclose an operating segment for the broking business in Asia Pacific even though this segment does not meet the
quantitative thresholds to be mandaiory under IFRS8 'Operating Segments  This 1s ta reflect the importance of the Asia Pacific region to the
Group and the way the Group Is managed
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Segmental information continued

Year ended 31 March 2013

Global Broking e LTt
B T M M M =
Revenue 488 397 112 268 207 1,472
Operating profit before acquisition and disposal costs and
exceptional items 77 34 (6) 113 80 308
Reconciliation to the consohdated income statement
Acqusition and disposal costs (157)
Exceptional items {60)
Operating profit 91
Finance income 11
Finance costs (41)
Share of profit of associates after tax 5
Profit before tax 66
Tax (23)
Profit for the year 43
Yearended 31 March 2012
Global Brokrg Cectrone Post Erade
- W T -
Revenue 562 479 131 301 208 1681
Operating profit before acquisition and disposal costs and
exceptional iterms 105 42 6 127 92 372
Reconciiation to the consohdated income statement
Acquisition and disposal costs (137)
Operating profit 235
Finance ncome 10
Finance costs (34}
Share of profit of associates after tax 6
Profit before tax 217
Tax 77
Profit for the year 140
Revenue earned by asset class is disclosed below
TR T
w13 2012
Rates 586 649
FX and money markets 339 374
Commodities 190 204
Emerging markets 142 167
Credit 108 154
Equities 107 133
Total revenue 1.472 1681

* Dunng the current year the ocabon of asset dass has beer amended to mprove the accuracy of revenue allocated to each asset The pror year asset dasses have been

re-presented to enable comparablity
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1 Segmental information continued
The Group did not earn more than 10% of its total revenue from any ndvidual customer

The Group earned revenue of £523m (2011/12 — £628m) and £507m (2011/12 - £578m) from entities n the UK and US respeciively
The remainder of £442m (2011/12 - £475m} came from vanous entimes outside the UK and US

The amertisation and impairment ansing from development expenditure recogrised by the Group on a segment basis is as follows EMEA
Broking £7m (2011/12 - £7m) Amencas Broking £2m {2011/12 - £5m) Asia Pacific Broking £nd {2011/12 - Enil) Electromic Markets
£11m (2011/12 = £16rm) and Post Trade Risk and Information £6m (2011/12 - £1m)

The depreciation of property and equipment recognised by the Group on a segment basis 1s as follows EMEA Broking £4m (2011/12 -
£6m) Amencas Broking £4m (2011712 - £3m} Asia Pacific Broking £3m (2011712 - £2m), Electronic Markets £7m (2011/12 - £8m)
and Post Trage Risk and Information £2m (2011/12 - £2m)

2 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted EPS data for its ordinary shares Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Cornpany by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted for own
shares held The Group also calculates adjusted EPS from the adusted profit which 1s defined as profit from operations before the effect of
acquisiion and disposal costs and exceptionalitemns The Group believes that this 1s the most appropnate measurement since it better
reflects the business s underlying earnings

The Group 1s required to disclose basic and diuted EPS on the face of the consohdated incorne statement and has further analysed this to
show the adjusted EPS

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue excludes the weighted average number of shares held as Ireasury Shares of 18m
(2011412 - 11m) and those owned by employee share trusts relating to employee share schemeas on which dwvidends have been waved
being 6m shares (2011/12 - 4m)

EPS relating to the Group's operations

Year ended 31 March 2013 Year ended 31 March 2012
Earrangs Larrmge
Basic and diluted Farme: s per share b e pershexe
Basic 43 640 67 137 649 211
Dilutive effect of share options - 10 oM - 9 (03)
Diluted 43 650 66 137 658 208
Yeor ended 31 March 2013 Vear ended 31 Varch 2012
Earrwngs . Larrongs
Adjusted basic and diluted il mﬁwﬁ "“‘;L"’gi s ko “"’m‘ii
Basic 43 640 67 137 649 211
Acquisition and disposal costs 120 - 188 123 - 190
Exceptional items net of tax (note 4) 48 — 75 - - -
Adjusted basic 211 640 330 260 649 401
Dilutive effect of share options - 10 (05} - 9 (06}
Adjusted diluted 711 650 325 260 658 395
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Dividends payable

The Company recognises the final dividend payable only when it has been approved by the shareholders of the Company in 2 general
meeting The intenm dmdend 1s recogmised when the amount due has been paid

Year ended Year ender)

31 March 31 March

Amounts recogrused as distributions to equity holders in the year o3 w2
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of 16 00p per ordinary share (2011 -14 68p) 102 96
Intenm dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of 6 60p per ordinary share (20712 — 6 00p) 43 39
Total dividend recognised in the year 145 135

The final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 201 2 and the ntenm ddend for the year ended 31 March 2013 were both satisfied in full
with cash payments of £102m and £43m respectively

The directors have propased a final dvidend of 15 4p per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 This has not been recognised as a liabihty
of the Group at the year end as 1t has not yet been approved by sharcholders Based on the number of shares inissue at the year end the
total amount payable would be £39m

The nght to receve dividends has been wawed in respect of the shares held in employee share trusts and ne dividend 1s payable on
Treasury Shares

4 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are significant temns of a non-recurnng nature and considered matenial in both size and nature These are disclosed
separately 1o enable a full understanding of the Group s financial performance Transactions which may gve rise to exceptional items are
principally gains and losses on dispasal of investmenis and ather large gains and losses not attributable to the normal course of the Groupss
actvities These are shown as excepticnal items on the face of the consolidated income staterment

Year ended Year ended

£m £
Exceptional items before tax
Staff termination ang property exits 30 -
Information technology 18 -
Legal and professionat fees 12 -
Total exceptional iterns before tax 60 -
Tax 2 -
Total exceptional items after tax 48 -

As a result of the cost reducticn programme announced n May 2012 the Group has recognised staff terminations and property exit costs
of £30m

On 12 March 2012 the Group announced a change in senvor management of ihe Electronic Markets business Dunng the current period a
strategic review of ongoing product and trading platform developments was undertaken leading to an imparment of intangible assets and
property and equiprment of £18m

The Group has incurred £12m of legal fees for advice in responding to requests recerved from and in co-operating with some government
agencies as part of industry-wide Libor-related investigations Further details of the nvestigations are prowded i note 27
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5 Operating expenses

'S eh i
Profit before tax is stated after charging 013 w12
Employee costs (note 22(a)) 824 960
information technology costs* 136 159
Amortisation of ntangible assets ansing on consoldation (note23(c)) 69 70
imparment of intangible assets ansing on consoldation (note23(c)} 81 103
Other acquisition and disposal costs (note23(c)) 7 {23)
Professional and legal fees (including auditers’ rernuneration) 20 6
Amaortisation and impairment of intangible assets ansing from developrment expenditure 3 -
Depreciation and imparrment of property and equipment 7 7
Governance costs™" 13 13
Clearing and settlement fees 14 15
Operating lease rentals — minmum lease paymentis 25 26
Exchange adjustrments (2) (6)
Exceptional items (note 4) 60 -
Other 133 145
Total 1,390 1,485
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for the aucht of the Cornpany s annual financial staterments 07 06
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for other services
- the auditing of any subsidiary of the Company 29 28
- audit-related assurance services 01 -
— taxation complance services 02 02
- taxation advisory services 05 02
- other assurance services o1 12
a5 50

*  Information technology costs Cude depreaaion and amortsaton costs
** Governance costs nclude fees assocated with risk complance internal audit and legal

Contractual arrangements

The Group places reliance on a number of key suppliers to carmy out 1ts business and has procedures to ensure that purchasing decisions

balance cost against other faciors including service quality global reach and resiience

The settlernent of matched principal and exchange traded businesses requires access to clearing houses ether drectly or through third party
providers of deanng and settlerment services In North America the Group s a member of the FICC and NSCC through which it clears US
Treasury products agency mortgage and equity trades for its customer base In Europe and Asia Pacific with the exception of base metal
cleanng on LCH Clearnat Group Ltd, the majonty of the Group s cleaning actrvities are outsourced to third parties where ICAP seeks to partner

with ane of the leading cleanng prowviders in each market

IZAP D
Arrudl Repant 2013
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Fnancial statements
Notes to the financial statements continued

6 Intangible assets arising on consolidation

Intangible assets arsing on consolidation nclude goodwill and other separately identifiable iIntangble assets such as customer relationships
brands and customer contracts that arose on business combinations snce 1 Apnl 2004 The amortisation and any Impawment Is ncluded in
the consolidated income statement within the column ‘acquisition and disposal costs The Group reviews the performance of the businesses
and reassesses the likely penod over which the acquired intangible asset 1s iikely to continue te gencrate cash flows that exceed the carrying
value As a result some businesses will have no impairment in a particular year while otbers will

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill anses cn the acquistiion of subsidaries joint ventures and associates and represents the cost of the acquisition N excess of the far
value of the Groups share of the net assets acquired Fair values are determined based an an assessment of the value of the indwidual assets
and liabiities acquired including reference to market prices, discounting expecied future cash flows to present value or using replacement
cost as appropriate

Where the Group makes an acquisiion and the balances are reported as provisional at the year end the Group has a measurement peniod
of up to 12 months from the date of acqusition to finalse the provisional amounts where new information becomes available about facts
and circumstances that existed at the balance sheet date, which could impact the vatue of goodwill and iIntangble assets arsing on
consokdation The measurement period ends as soon as the nformation requirad is recaved

Goodwil s intially recognised at cost and s subsequently held at cost less any prowision for imparment Goodwill 15 not subject to
arnortisation but 15 tested annually for impairment

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of subsidianes and jont ventures s shown within nan-current assets Geodwill ansing on the acquisition of
associates 5 included within their carnying value

On disposal of a subsidiary jont venture or assocate the attributable goodwallis included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal
except for goodwill wrtten off to reserves prior to 1998 which remanns eliminated

(n) Separately identifiable intangible assets

Fhe Group has recogrised separately identified intangible assets on acquisitions where appropriate These generally include customer
cantracts snd customer relationships Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated minially at far value and adjusted subsequently for
amortisation and any imparment Amortisation and imparment of ntangibles arising on consolidation are recognised in the second colurmn of
the consolidated income statement Where an impairment has taken place the asset 1s reviewed annually for any reversal of the impairment
Any reversals of imparrment are credited to the consohdated incore statement Alfinzangible assets have afnite Iife

Amortisation of separately identifiable Intangible assets 1s charged to the consolidated income staternent on a straight-line basis over therr
estimated useful ves as follows

Custormer relationships 2-10vyears
Custormer contracts Perod of contract
Other intangible assets Penod of contract

A deferred tax hability 1s recognised aganst the asset where the amortisation s non-tax deductible 1he liability unwinds over the same penod
as the asset 1s amortised

(i) Impairment ‘
Goodwill1s not amortised but s tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an ndicator of iImpairment Goodwaill and other

intangible assets ansing on consohdation are aflocated to a cash-generating unig (CGU) at acqusition A CGU is the smallest segment on

which 1t 15 practicable to report each of winch represents one of the Group s businesses Where the carrying value of the asset exceeds its

value-n-use an mparment charge s recognised immediately in the consolidated incorme statement and the asset 15 stated at cost less

accumulated impairment losses For goodwill impairment charges previously recognised are not reversed and imparred intangible assets are

reviewed annually for reversal of previously recogrised imparment

This process requires the exerase of significant judgement by management if the estimates made prove to be ncorrect or performance
does not meet expectations which affect the amount and timing of future cash flows goodwall and intangible assets may become imparred n
future penods
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6 Intangible assets arising on consolidation continued g

(a) Intangible assets ansing on consolidation %
s " " 2

Cost

Asat 1 Apnil 2002 1,041 621 1,662

Additions 5 2 7

Reclassification (4) -

Exchange adjustrments 3 38 g

As at 31 March 2013 1,073 634 1,707 5

Amortisation and impairment 2

As at 1 Apnil 2012 143 3N 474

Amortisation charge for the year - 69 69

Imparment N the year N 50 81

Reclassification - 4 4

Exchange adjustrrents - 4 (M

As at 31 March 2013 174 453 627 E

Net book value E_-

As at 31 March 2013 89S 181 1,080 E"i

Cost §

Asat 1 Apnl 2013 1038 621 1659 3

Additions 4 5 9 )

Exchange adjustments (1) (5) {6)

As at 31 March 2012 1041 621 1662 o

Amortisation and impairment ?

Asat 1 Aprf 201 1 45 256 301 §"

Amortisation charge for the year - 70 70 %

Impatrment In the year a8 5 103

As at 31 March 2012 143 331 474

Net bock value

As at 371 March 2012 898 290 1188
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

& Intangible assets arising on consohdation continued
(b) impairment testing of intang:ble assets arising on consohdation

Analysis of significant intangible assets

The Group recognises £1 0BOm of ntangible assets ansing o consolidation with £89%m relating to goodwil and £181m relating to other
ntangble assets The table below represents all the busmesses with intangible assets ansing on consolidation with residual balances of £25m
or greater after amorisatian and imparment which represents 88% of the total balance

Asat 31 March 2013

% of total Net book

Busines segment ot e o e i

EBS Electronic Markets 39 333 88 421
BrokerTec Electronic Markets 13 145 - 145
Traana Post Trade Risk and Information 13 100 37 137
Reset Post Trade Risk and Information 13 138 - 138
TnOptima Post Trade Risk and Information 10 L] 44 104
Total 88 776 169 345

Asal 31 March 2012

oyt Good s Other i

Business segment other ntangblos im £m im

EBS Electroric Markets 36 317 109 426
BrokerTec Electronic Markets 12 145 - 145
Traiana Post Trade Risk and Information 12 95 43 138
Reset Post Trade Risk and Information 1 130 - 130
TrOptima Post Trade Risk and Information 11 60 65 125
Link EMEA, Amencas and Asia Pacific Broking 7 23 66 89
ICAP Shipping EMEA Broking 2 25 1 26
Total 91 795 284 1079

The remaining 12% {2011/12 - 9%) of goodwill and other ntangible assets of £135m (2011/12 - £109m) ansing on consoldation relates
t0 20 (2011/12 - 16) businesses across the globat broking business

The other intangible assets at 31 March 2013 all represent customer relationships and have remaining amortisation penods of three years
(EBS) four years (Traiana) and two years (TnOptima)

As a resut of the sale of a stake n Traiana during the year the business was subject to a full external valuation which was in excess of the net
book value For this reason, an annual imparment review of Traiana was not conducted

Key assumptions

Discount rates and growth rates

The Group s long-term pre-tax wesghted average cost of capital (WACC) remamnedat 1 1% For broking businesses in Asia Pacific and
businesses outside the core interdealer broker franchise such as ICAP Shipping management has contnued to add a premum to reflect local
country risk based on the differential between local sovereign debt rates and the prevailing rates m the UK o the nsk assocated with the
smaller scale of these businesses The premiums added to the Group WACC for each business are reviewed annually and where these are
deermed to be no longer necessary as businesses grow and integrate further nto the Group these wilt be removed

The long-term growih rates have been reviewed and the rates appled do not exceed the expected growthm the local economy GDP after
the fifth year or for businesses which operate on a global scale the global GDP
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& Intangible assets anising on consolidation continued
{b) impairment testing of tntangible assets arising on consolidation continued

Discount rates and growth rates continued
The pre-tax discount rates and long-term growth rates used for impairment testing are as follows

ds::;-‘;afne 95?’-5;,?;'3‘&'-;

Key budget assumptions 2013 2012 2013 2012
EBS - Macro economic outlock

— New products and markets

- Technology i 11 2 3
BrokerTec - Macro economic outlock

~ Regulation 11 11 3 3
Reset - New products

- Market share 11 119 2 2
TnOptima — Customer base

— Regulation " 1 3 3

Impairment testing

The recoverable amount of 38 CGU s determined based on value-in-use calculations The Group uses a five-year impaiment moedel unless a
fonger penod s justfied With the exception of ICAP Shipping which uses a ten-year model due to its cychcal nature, all the Group s models
are over five years The model uses pre-tax cash flow projections which extend forward to perpetuity using a terminal value calculation and
which take account of the approved budget for the coming year and the following two-year forecast The forecast takes into account both
the actions of the business and impacts associated with its external emirenmment such as regulatory reform Cash flows for years four and
five refy on estimates of growth factors determined by the business The Group applies a suitable discount factor to the future cash flows
based on its pre-tax WACC Lang-term growth rates are used to forecast cash flows and do not exceed the expected growth In the local
economy GDP after the fifth year or for businesses which operate on a global scale the global GOP

As part of the Impairment review management considers current year performance against the budget and assumptions used in the prior
year modet Where results have varied, management has prepared an analys:s to validate resulting differences Where applicable
management has locked to external support in the form of market activity reports to vahdate assumptions used in the models

The value-in-use calculations are sensitrve to changes in assumptions used i cash flow projections and i particular long-term growth rates
Sensitmvity analysis specific to each business has been performed on each of the base case models considenng pessible changes to key
assurnptions used it the model While the models for BrokerTec EBS Reset and TnOptima showed no nisk of impairment under the
sensitvities performed the headroom on the ICAP Shipping and Laink models were either lower or more sensitive to changes in assumptions
and are discussed further below

Link

ICAP acqured Link, a global equity denvatives broker at the begmnning of Aprl 2008 At the time of acquesition, Link held a strong market
positian as the leading global equity denvatives braker in a market which had expanded significantly over the previous five to seven years
Since acquisiiion the business has performed in ine wath the market rmantaned its market leading position and remaned profitable
However since the financial cnsis broke the equity denvatives market has contracted with industry data showing no return to the growth
levels expected on acquisition over the next five years These factors led to the impairment of the remaining goodwall by £23mto £nil A
separate smparment review of the ntangible asset that represents the customer relationships acquired wes also undertaken As a result of
the contraction in the market along with a number of customers leaving the market aitogether these relationships are now considered to
have lrmited prospects for future revenue generation These considerations led to the smpawment of the intangible asset by £49mito a
carrying value of £6m
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

6 Intangtble assets anising on consohdation continued
(b) Impairment testing of intangible assets arising on consolidatton continued

tCAP Shipping

Following the prior year mparment of £4m to the dry chartening operations of the business, market fundamentals continue to be challenging
in ths section of the business with little sndication of prospects for improved freighit rates over the coming perod As aresuli the remaining
goodwilt n the dry chartenng business was imparred by £8m to £nl Within the tanker (wet) operations of the shipping business the outlock
15 more positive with anticipated growth in demand from developing counines such as China and India The wet business 15 expected to
remain profitable over the next three years and beyend and the model for this business is relatively Insensitve to changes in key assumptions
asaresult

Ocean Tomo
During the year the use of the Ocean Tomo brand was discontinued As a result, the Intangible asset relating o this brand has been mpared
by £1mto £nil

7 Borrowings

Long-term borrowings are recognised witially at fair value being their issue praceeds net of transaction costs ncurred At subsequent
reporting dates long-term borrowings are held at amoruised cost using the effective nterest rate methed with changes in value recognised
through the consolidated income statement Transaction costs are recogmsed in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method

(a) Lang-term borrowings

Group Grop Company C
a3 at asatl as at asal
31 March 31 Mach 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
im £ £m £m
Asat 1 April 374 382 - -
New long-term borrowings 124 - 124 -
Exchange adjustment 10 (15) - -
Farr value hedging adjustment (2) 7 - -
As at 31 March 506 374 124 -

Analysis of long-term borrowings

Subordinated loan notes repayable 2015 127 120 - -
Five-year seror notes 255 254 - -
Retall bond repayable 2018 124 - 124 -
As at 31 March 506 374 124 -

Dunng the year the Group ssued a £125m retal bond repayable in July 2018 with a coupon of 5 5% This bond was issued at par value and
Is presented on the balance sheet at amortised cost net of fees of £1m Additionally the Group has in issue $193m of guaranteed
subordinated loan notes repayable n 2015 payng a coupon of Libor plus 1 95% The Group also has in 1ssue €300m of five-year semor
notes {the Notes) repayable in July 2014 with a coupon of 7 5% These Notes are shown net of both therr onginal discount and fees of £1m
(2011/12 - £1m) directly astnbutable to the ssue The carrying value of the Notes of £255m {2011/12 - £255m) indludes a far value
hedging adjustment to Increase the carrying value by £3m (2011712 — £5m ncrease) relating to the mark-to-market of the interest
partion of the Notes

To enable the Group to manage the translational exposure which anises as a resuli of the Notes being denominated n eurcs and to meet ts
risk management objective of minimising both interest cost and the impact of interest volatiity on 1ts consolidated Income statement the
Group entered into a number of cross-currency swaps to convert its obligations over the life of the Notes from euros te pound sterling at
116 €100m of the Notes have been swapped from a fixed euro-denominated coupon of 7 5% to a fixed pound sterling denominated
coupon of 8 58% and the remaining € 200m from a fixed euro-denominated coupon of 7 5% to a flaating pound sterling denominated
coupon of six month Libor plus 4 32% The fxed to fixed swaps have been accounted for as a cash flow hedge and at 31 March 201 3 have
afar market value of £2m hability (2011/12 - £4m liability) These swaps offset the effect of FX on the Notes, and soresulted ina £nil
charge (2011/12 - £nil} beng recognised in the consolidated income statement and a £nil credit (2011712 - £2m credit) n other
comprehensive income dunng the year
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7 Borrowings continued

{a) Long-term borrowings continued

The fixed to floating swaps have been treated as a far value hedge have a fair market value of £2mat 31 March 2013 (2011/12 - £3m)
and resulted ina £nd (2011/12 - £2m charge) being recognised In the consolidated income staterment dunng the year The impact on the
consolidated ncome statement relating to the far value movermnent on the Notesis a £nil (2011/12 - £3m credit)

The far value of the long-term borrowings 15 not matenally dfferent from therr bock values
The retal bond discussed above 1s held in the Company
(b) Short-term borrowings

Group Grouwp Company Cormpany

as at asat as at asal

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2012 2013 202

£m m £m £m

Japanese yen loan 71 - - -
RCF - net of fees - 225 - -
Eurgpean Commercial Paper - 21 - 21
Overdrafts - 9 - -
71 255 - 21

On 4 October 2012 the Group entered nto a short-term loan arrangement with The Tokyo Tanshi Co Lirnited through which it borrowed
JPY¥10bn The loan nitially matured on 27 March 2013 at which bime the matunity was extended to 27 September 2013 The loan carres
interest at a rate of six month Japarese yen Libor pius 0 8% resulting in a weighted average effective interest rate of 11%

The Group has a $880m RCF incorporating up to a $200m swinghine faciity with a matunity date of 31 May 2014 The drawings under

the revolvng credit faciity as at 31 March 2013 were £nl (2011/12 - £225m) The facility carnes a floating interest rate at Libor plus 2%
with an additional 0 5% payable dependent on the debt to earnings ratio The weighted average effective interest rate for the year was 2 2%
(201112 - 22%)

The Group continues to ssue cormmercidl paper under its £500m Curopean Cormmercial Paper (ECP) programme providing a diverse source
of finance dunng the year for the Group s working capital and margin requirements At 31 March 2013 the Group had £nil inissue (2011712
- £21m) The weighted average effective interest rate was 0 6% (2011/12 — 1 4%)

Bank overdrafts are for short-term funding and are repayable on demand, and are generally being repaid within a very short time period

The Group s bank faciities contain a number of customary financial and operational covenants The Group remained in complance with the
terms of these covenants throughout the year ended 31 March 2013

Under the terms of the Group s bank financings the Company 1s required to reman as the ulbmate holding company In the Group A change
in ownershi of the Company could result In the Group s three-year unsecured revolving credit faciity becoming repayable

The farr value of the short-term borrowings 1s not matenally different from their book values
(c) Liquidity risk management

Group
It1s the Group s policy always to ensure that it has sufficent and appropnate financial resources to enable it to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due even under stressed conditions

Under the terms of the investrment firm consclidation waver granted to ICAP by the Financial Services Authority ICAP 1s precluded from
underiaking proprietary trading and consequently has limited exposure to iquidity nsk when compared to a bank or other market nsk taking
financial nstitutions
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

7 Borrowtngs continued

(c) Liquidity risk management continued

ICAP s man iquidity risk 1s in relation to the margin and collateral requirements of clearing houses either directly or wia finanaial institutions
which provide ICAP with access to the clearing houses Of these the most significant margin requirements anse in the US where as part of
its broking business ICAP provides clearing services to customers and 1s required to deposit margin with the MCC and NSCC During the year
to 31 March 2013, these deposits averaged $36m although following the ntroduction of a new clearing arrangernent for US Treasuries at
the start of February balances have been significantly reduced in the last two months of the year Cash held at clearing houses or a financial
institution providing 1CAP with access to a CCP 15 disclosed as restricted funds in the financial statements (see note 8(e)} The Group has no
other matenal margin requirements on a routine basis

Trading entities of the Group use locally held highly hquid assets together with committed and uncommitted credit faciliies to meet their
forecast financial obligations as they fall due

The Group has a centralised approach to the provision of contingency funding for 1ts trading entibes Through the GRACC the board regularly
reviews the hquidity dermands of the Group and the financial resources avalable to meet these demands The GRACC ensures that the Group, n
totalty and by subsichary has sufficent hquidity avallable in order to provide constant access even in periods of market turmol to an appropnate
level of cash other forms of marketable securities and committed funding Ines to enable 1t to finance ts ongoing operations proposed
acquistions and other reascnable unantipated events on cost-effective and atiractive terms  Therefore to meets its lquidity requrements the
Group has mantained minimum core gudity n the form of cash and undrawn debt faciibes of $250m throughout the year

At 31 March 2013 the Group had gross debt of £577m {2011/12 — £629m) and cash and cash equivalents of £602m (2011/12 —
£547m} (see note 8(c)) It1s the Groupss palicy only to hold cash necessary to meet local requlatery commercial settlement and short-term
working capital requirements and for excess cash to be used to reduce gross debt Cash has increased from 31 March 2012 due to funds
raised as 2 result of the 1ssue of the retall bond and Japanese yen loan the Group s cash generation and the fact that the RCF was undrawn

The Group invests its cash balances in a range of capital protected instruments including money market deposits AAA hquidity funds and

government bonds with the objective of optimising the return while having regard to counterparty credit risk and hquidity With the

exception of sorme small local cash managament balances surplus cash s Invested with strong institubions which have an equivalent credit

rating of A or better and are marked-to-market at the end of each reporting period Counterparty limits appled are reviewed by the GRACC

in conjunction with the risk function i

At 31 March 2013 the Group had committed headroam under 1ts core credt faclives of £580m (2011/12 - £324m)

Committed faciities

Group Group Grop Grolp

asat asat asal asal

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2013 202 202

£m Em £rn £m

Drawn Undrawn Lrawn Undrawn

Less than one year 71 - 225 -
Between ane and two years 255 580 - 324
Between two and five years 127 - 374 -
More than five years 124 - - -
577 580 599 324

* The undrawn balance has been classified based on the maturity date of the facility

As at 31 March 2013 the Groups long-term issuer default rating on serior debt was BBB+ by Fitch and Baa2 by Mocdy s On 30 January
2013 Moody s placed the Group on review for possible downgrade There has been no change in Fitch s rating duning the year which
maintains a stable outlock

Company
The Company’s policy 1s to ensure that it has constant access to an appropnate level af hquidity to enable 1t to finance 1ts forecast ongoing
operations proposed acquisitions and other reasonable unanticpated events on cost-effective and attractve terms

If the Company has any cash 1t 1s lsaned intra-group for further investment With the exception of the retal bond of £125m all of the
Company s financial labilities are payable within three months
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8 Cash

Cash and cash equwvalents compnse cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term heghly lquid investments which are subject to

nsignificant nsk of change in fair value and are readily convertible Into a known amount of cash withless than three months matunty

The Group holds money and occasionally financial instruments on behalf of customers (client monies) In accordance with local regulatory
rules Since the Group 1s not beneficially entitled to these amounts they are excluded from the consolidated balance sheet along with the

corresponding labilities to customers

Restricted funds are comprised of cash held with a CCP cleaning house or a financial institution providing ICAP with access toa CCP and
funds set aside for regulatory purposes but excluding client money The funds represent cash for which the Group does not have immediste

and direct access or for which regulatory requirements restnct the use of the cash

{a) Reconciliation of Group profit before tax to net cash flow from operating activities

Group Growp
Y oo S e
20{1'.::‘ 20£1r2‘
Profit before tax 66 217
Cperating exceptional tems 60 -
Share of profit of associates after tax {5) (6)
Amortisation of Intangble assets arising on consolidaticn 69 70
Imparment of Intangible assets arsing on consolidation 81 103
Amortisabion and smparment of intangble assets ansing from development expenditure 26 29
Depreciation and impairment of property and equipment 20 21
Loss on disposal of property and equipment -
Other acquisition and disposal costs 6 (36}
Share-based payments 3
Net finance expense 30 24
Operating cash flows before movernents 0 working capital 356 425
Decrease In trade and cther recenvables 71 18
Decrease in resiricted funds 13 23
Decrease n trade and other payables (53) (41)
Cash generated by operations befare exceptiona! items 387 425
Operating exceptional itermns paid (34) -
Cash generated by operations 353 425
Interest receved 4 6
Interest paid (31) (31}
Tax pad (54) (88)
Net cash flow from operating actvities 272 32

The movement in trade and other receivables and trade and other payables excludes the impact of the gross-up of matched principal trades
as perrmitted by IAS7 Staternent of Cash Flows The gross-up has no impact on the cash flow or net asseis of the Group The cash flow

movement i trade and other recervables includes the net movernent on matched prnncipal transactions and deposits for securitres

borrowed/loaned The movement for the year ended 31 March 2013 after accounuing for acquisitions 15 an outflow of £7m (2011/12 -

inflow of £25m}

ICAR Pl
AmudReport 2013
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

8 Cash continued

(b} Net cash/({debt)
Net cash/{debt) comprises cash and cash equivalents less other debt

Group Group

aat as at

31 March 31 March

20113 2012

£m 5]
Gross debt (note 7(c)) (577 (629}
Cash and cash equivalents 602 547
Net cash/(debt) 25 (82)

(<) Total cash

Group Goup

a3 at as al

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m Im

Cash and cash equivalents 602 547
Overdrafts - (9)
Net cash and cash equivalents 602 538
Restncted funds 37 50
Total cash 639 588

(d) Client money
At 31 March 2013 the Group held dient money of £36m (2011/12 - £43m) Thisamount together with the comresponding liabilies to
customers s not included in the Group s consalidated balance sheet

(e) Restricted funds
Restricted funds comprise cash held at a CCP cleaning house or a financial nstitution provicding ICAP with access to a CCP The balance
fluctuates based on business events around the year end and fell dunng the year by £13mto £37m

9 Tax

Tax on the profit for the year comprises both current and deferred tax as well as adustments in respect of prior years Tax is charged or
credited to the consoiidated income statement except when It relates to iterns charged or credited to other comprehensive ncome or
drrectly to equity, m which case the tax 1s also nduded n other camprehensive incorne or directly within equity respectively

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable incorme for the period using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period

Defarred tax 1s recognised using the kability method in respect of temporary differences between the carrying value of assets and liabiities
for reporting purposes and the amounits charged or credited for tax purposes Deferred tax s calculated at the rate of tax expecied to apply
when the liability 15 settled or the asset Is realised A deferred tax asset is recogrised only to the extent that i 1s probable that future taxable
profits will be avalable aganst which the asset can be utilised

Defarred tax ts provided on temporary differences arsing on investrments in subsidianies joint veniures associates and mtangibles ansing on
consoldation except where the tming of the reversal of the temporary difference is conirolled by the Group and it 1s probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future No prowvision 15 made in respect of any further tax habdity that would anse on
the distnbution of retaned earnings of overseas joint ventures and associates

Deferred tax labilites are offset against deferred tax assets within the same taxable entity or qualifying local tax group where there 1s both
the legal nght and the intention to settle on a net bass or to realise the asset and sette the hablty simultaneously

Significant judgement 1s required In determining the Group s Income tax hatsives In arrving at the current and deferred tax liabiity the Group
has taken account of tax 1ssues that are subject to ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authonties Caculations of these habilities have
been based on management s assessment of legal and professional advice case law and other refevant gudance Where the expected tax
outcome of these matters s different from the amounts that were recorded nitially such differences will mpact the current and deferred
tax amounts in the penod in which such determination 1s made
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9 Tax continued

Tax charged to the consolidated income statement in the year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £rm
Current tax
- current year 76 102
- adjustment to prior years 13) n
63 91
Deferred tax
— current year (44) (16)
- adjustrment to pnor years - 3
—mpact of changes in tax rates 4 {m
{40) (14)
Total tax charged to the consohdated income statement 23 77
Year ended Year ervled
31 March 371 March
2013 2012
£m £
Tax on profit before acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional items comprises
Total tax charged to the consolidated income statement 23 77
Tax credit on acquisition and disposal costs 38 18
Tax credit on exceptional items 12 -
Tax on profit before acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional items 73 95
The Group s share of profit of assocrates in the censolidated income statement 1s shown net of tax of £3m(2011/12 - £2m)
Year ended Year ercied
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before tax 66 217
Tax on profit at the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK of 24% (2011/12 - 26%) 16 56
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 10 21
mpact of foreign profits taxed at higher rates 10 10
Adjustments to current tax in respect of pnor years (13) (1)
Adustments to deferred tax In respect of pnor years - 3
Other - (2)
Tax charge 23 77

The Group s effective tax rate excluding acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional items has decreased by 1% to 26%

IZAPpkc
AnrualReport 2013
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

9 Tax continued

Tax charged to equity in the year

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Current tax charge en share-based payments - 1
Net current tax on items recognised in equity - 1
Deferred tax charge on share-based payments 3 -
Net deferred tax on items recogmsed in equity 3 -

Legislation to reduce the main rate of Corporation Tax from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 201 3 was included in the Finance Act 2012 Further
reductions to the man rate are proposed to reduce the rate to 20% by 1 Apnl 2015 These latter changes had not been substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date and are not included in the tax charge for the penod The reduction to 20% 15 not expected to have a
matenal impact on the deferred tax balances

Deferred tax balances recognised on the balance sheet

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 wm?2

£m £rm

Deferred tax assets 15 12
Deferred tax liabilities (66) (98)
Net balances (51) (86)
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9 Tax continued

Deferred tax ~ movement of Group balances before offset within countries

Deferred

Ietangible nome
oo e xceroed cvred
Goodwill consokdation tems experyes forward Other Tota
£m £m Em im £m Em £m
Net balances at 31 March 2012 (38) (B6) 25 8 8 (3} (86)
Tax (charge)/credit 3 27 - (2) 1 1 40
Reserves - - 3 - - - (3
FX adjustrments 3] (2 - 1 - 1 (2}
Net balances as at 31 March 2013 {37) (61) 22 7 9 9 (51)
Deferred tax assets at 31 March 2013 - - 33 10 9 19 71
Deferred tax liabihties at 31 March 2013 {37) {61) {11 (3) - (10) {(122)
Net balances as at 31 March 2013 {37) (61} 22 7 9 9 (51)
Intangble Deferred
assets i.r-v?aee ncome and Losses.
AT ON related accrued camed
Goodwl ers experses Torward Cthar Total
£m £m m £m £m £m
Net balances at 31 March 2011 (42) (107) 24 7 10 8 {100}
Tax (charge)/credit 4 20 9 1 (2) - i4
Reserves - (1 10 - - (9) -
FX adjustments - 2 - - - (2) -~
Net balances as at 31 March 2012 (38) (86) 25 8 8 (3) (86)
Deferred tax assets at 31 March 2012 13 1 43 1 8 18 94
Deferred tax labihties at 37 March 2012 (51 (87) (18) (3 - 21 {(180)
Net balances as at 31 March 2012 (38) (86) 25 8 8 3) (86)
Deferred tax assets of £19m (2011/12 - £14m) have not been recognised in respect of certan trading losses because it 1 not probable
that future profit will be avalable aganst which the Group can uttise the benefits
The principal movement in deferred tax relates to the ongoing release of the deferred tax bability on the amorgisation and impairment of
intangibles arsing on consolidaticn
rdicpains 109
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

10 Net finance expense

£m £
Finance income
Interest recewvable and similar income
Bank deposiis
Other finance income
Farr value loss on dervative financial instruments (note 7{a)) - (2}
Far value gain of hedged item (note 7(z)) -
Dvidends receved on equity investments
4
Total finance income 11 10
Finance costs
Interest payable and similar charges
Bank loans and overdrafts (40) (34}
(40} (34)
Other finance costs
Upwinding of deferred consideration (1) -
(1) -
Total finance costs (41} (34)
Net finance expense (30 (24)

Detalls of currency and interest rate sk management are disclosed within note 11
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11 Currency and interest rate nsk management

The Group uses vanous financal nstruments as hedges to reduce exposure to FX and interest rate movements These can include forward FX
contracts currency ophions and cross currency swaps All dervative financial nstruments are nitially recognised on the balance sheet at their
far value adusted for transaction costs Where dervative financial instruments do not quakfy for bedge accounting changes in the fair value
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement along with transaction costs Where they do qualify gains and fosses are
recognised according to the nature of the hedge relatenship and the item being hedged Hedges are either classified as far value hedges

cash flow hedges or net Investment hedges

The far values of the Group s dervative financial Instruments are determined using appropriate valuation techniques from observable data
including discounted cash flow analysis as no active markets with quoted prices exists for the instruments held by the Group

The method of recogrusing the movements in the far value of a denvative depends on whether the instrument has been designated as a
hedging instrument and i so the nature of the exposure being hedged To qualfy for hedge accounting, the terms of the hedge must be
documented clearly at nception and there must be an expectation that the dervative will be highly effectivein offsetting changes inthe farr
value or cash flows attnbutable to the hedged nsk Hedge effectiveness is tested througheut the life of the hedge and 1 at any pont 1115
concluded that the relationship can no longer be expected to remain highly effective in achieving its cbjective, the hedge relahonship is
terminated

Fair value hedges dcrivative financial instruments are classified as far value hedges when they hedge an exposure to changes in the far
value of a recognesad asset or hability that s attributable to a particular nisk that could affect the consolidated ncome statement The hedging
instrument 15 recorded at far valug on the balance sheet with changes nits fair value being taken through the consolidated incorme
statement Tar periods in which the hedge 1s shown to be effective the gain or loss on the hedged itern attributable to the hedged nsk
adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognised in the consolidated income staternent The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective porton 1s recognised n the consolidated income statement

Cash flow hedges denvative finanoal nstruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group s exposure to changes in
the cash flows attnbutable to a particular asset or liabiity or a highly probable forecast transaction Gans or losses on designated cash flow
hedges are recognised directly n other comprehensive Income  to the extent that they are determined to be effective Any remaining
neffective portion of the gan or loss 15 recognised immediately 1n the consolidated income statement On recogrition of the hedged asset or
labilty any gains or losses relating to the hedging nstrument that had previously been recogmised directly in other comprehensive incorme are
included in the initial measurement of the farr value of the asset or hiability When a hedging nstrument expwres or 1s sold or when a hedge no
longer meets the critena for hedge accounting any cumulatsve gan or loss in equity remains there and 1s recognised in the consobdated
Income statement when the forecast transaction 1s Wiimately recognised When a forecast transachion 1s no longer expected to occur the
curmulative gan or loss that was reported in other comprehensive income is transferred immediately to the consolidated income statement

Net investment hedges changes in the value of foreign denominated investments due to currency movements are recognised directly in
other comprehensive ncome  The accounting ireatrment for a net investment hedging nstrument whether i 1s a dervaiive financial
nstrurment or a recognised asset or lability on the balance sheet 15 consistent with the aforementioned treatment for a cash flow hedge
Gains and losses accumulated n other comprehensive :ncome are ncluded n the consolidated income statement on the ultimate digposal of
the foreign denominated investment The gain or loss relating to any neffective portion is recogrised in the consokdated income statement

(a) Currency risk management

Group

The Group presents its consolidated financial statements in pound stering and conducts business in a number of other currencies, principally
the dollar and euro Consequently the Group 1s exposed to FX nsk due to exchange rate movements wiich affect the Group’s transactional
revenue and the translation of the earnings and net assets of its non-pound sterling cperations

(1) Transactional exposures

The Group s policy 1s for subsidianies with pound sterbng functional currency to hedge their main transactional exposures. which are the dollar
and the euro through a combination of forward FX contracts and options for up to two years forward A maximumn of 100% of the forecast
exposure s hedged for the first 12 months, 75% for the fallowing six months and thereafier 25% up to a maxmum of two years The
Groups other transactional exposures are monitored and where deemed appropriate hedged for a period of up to 12 months forward
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements contnued

11 Currency and interest rate nsk management continued
(a) Currency nsk management continued

Group continued

The Group has contracts in place, designated as cash flow hedges under IAS39 where appropriate, with a tatal notional value of 75% of its
forecast dollar transactional exposure for the year to 31 March 2014 at an average rate of $1 56/£ Contracts with a total noticnal value of
75% of the Group s euro expasure for the year to 31 March 2014 are in place at an averagerate of €1 21/

{n} Balance sheet translational exposures

The Group 1s exposed to batance sheet translational exposures at the local entity level where the focal consalidated balance sheet may
contain monetary assets or habilities denominated in a currency other than the entity s funcbional currency Itis the Groups policy to hedge up
to 100% of these exposures using a mix of foreign currency swaps and forward FX contracts and these are designated as hedges under
IAS39 where appropnate

Balance sheet translational exposures also arise on consolidation as a result of the retranslation of the balance sheet of the Group s non-
pound sterling operations principally dollar and euro imnto pound stering the Group s presentational currency 1he Group s general policy 1s
not to actively manage these exposures as achive management using Instruments wath a sherter tenure than the underlying net asset can
gve rise 1o anet cash outflow However from time te timeit will use forward FX contracts ¢ross currency swaps or non-pound stering
denorminated borrowings to mitigate this exposure Dunng the finanaial year ended 31 March 2013 the Group designated the subordinated
loan notes, the dollar drawings on the RCF and an element of forward FX contracts swapping dollar receipts from drawing on the RCF

INto euros used 1o settie matunng ECP issuances as a hedging instrument against the underlying dollar exposure As at 31 March 2013

this exposure was $1 0bn (2011712 - $1 3bn) including intangible assets ansing on consolidation but befere $0 3bn

of hedging {2011/12 - 30 6bn)

In accordance with 14521 The Effects of Changes i Foreign Exchange Rates the resulting transtational exchange difference s ncluded
within the £49m exchange gain taken directly to reserves as disclosed in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income The Group
does not have foreign cperations whose functiona! currency 1s considered hyperinflationary and would therefore require adjusting to state 2l
items in the measuring unit current at the reporting date

The table below shows the actual mpact on the Group s 2013 results of the movernent dunng the year of the dollar and eurc exchange
rates in terrms of transactional and translationa! exposure

Dellar Euro Total

£m Em £m

Operating profit 4 - 4
Equity (46) (7) (53)

{m} Earrings translation exposures
The Group does not hedge the translation of those profits or losses earned by its non-pound sterling aperations

The table below shows the anticipated impact on the Groups 2014 results of a 10 cent strengthening which the Group considers to be an
appropriate sensitivity measure in the doflar and euro in terms of transactional and translational expesure

Dodlar Euro Tota

fm Em £m

Operating profit 19 1 18

Equity (5) (2) N
The principal excharge rates which affect the Group expressed in currency per pound sterling are shown below

Closing Closng Aver age Average

rate rate rate rate

asal asat yearended  yaar ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Mach

2012 2012 2013 2012

Dollar 152 160 158 160

Euro 118 120 122 116
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11 Currency and interest rate risk management continued
(a) Currency risk management continued
Group continued

(iv) Derwvative financial instruments

It 1s the Greup's policy to hedge a proportion of its transactional dollar and euro exposures with forward FX contracts Where these are
designated and documented as hedging instruments in the context of 1A539 and are demonstrated to be effective mark-to-market gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive incorne and transferred to the consclidated income staternent on recegniticn of
the underlying item being hedged

As at 3% March 2013 Asat 31 March 200 2

Assets Liabilmes Assets Liabahtress

Em Em £m £

Forward FX contracts — cash flow hedges 1 (6) 8 -
Cross currency swaps — cash flow hedges - (3} - (4)
Cross currency swaps — fair value hedges 2 - 3 -
Other - (2) - (2)
3 (11} 11 (6)

Cross currency swaps relate to hedging the interest rate and FX nsks of the Group in relation to the €300m of five-year senior notes
(note 7(a)}

No amounts {2011/12 — Enll) were recognised n the consolidated incorme statement in the year as a result of ineffective hedges

Company

(1) Balance sheet translational exposures

The Company 1s exposed to balance sheet translational exposures where the balance sheet contains assets or labilities denorminated in a
currency cther than pound sterling While it 1s the Group s policy to hedge up to 100% of these exposures at Group level at Company level
these exposures can affect the Company s profit after tax

At 31 March 2013 the Company had £nil financiat assets or iabilites denominated in foreign currenaies (2011/12 - £nil)
(b) Interest rate risk management

Group

The Group has an exposure to fluctuations in Interest rates on both its cash pesitiens and borrowings which it manages through a
combination of pound sterling and dollar debt drawn on fixed and floating rate terms The Group s objective is to minimise interest cost and
the impact of interest volatility on the Group s consoldated income statement In addition to debt the Groups treasury policies also permit
the use of derwvatives ncluding interest rate swaps interest rate opuons forward rate agreernents and cross currency swaps to meet these
objectives

At 31 March 2013 after taking nto account cross currency and FX swaps of the eurc denominated five-year senior notes the Group had
£269m of cash £171m of floating rate debt and £208m cf fixed rate debt denominated in pound sterling £245m of cash and £127m of
floating rate debt denominatad in dollars (or currencies closely ralated to the dollar) and £88m of cash and £71m of floating rate debt
denominated in cther currencies A 100 basis-points parallel ncrease in pound sterling Libor and Libid rates which the Group considers to be
an appropriate sensitivicy measure would increase profit after tax and other comprehensive income by £1m with a similar mevement in
doliar rates impacting profit after tax and other comprehensive income by £1m In the event that Libor and Libid rates diverge by each
additional 100 basis-points in pound sterling rate profit after tax and other comprehensive income would reduce by £3m An equal impact
would result from the same movernent in dollar rate

The details of the Interest beanng financial liabiities are disclosed in note 7
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

11 Currency and interest rate risk management continued
(b} Interest rate risk management continued
Company

Interest rate profile

Since the £125m retal bond s at a fixed rate of interest the Cornpany is anfy exposed to Interest rate movements as a result of 1Issuance
under its commercial paper programme and a loan from a subsichary of £140m it s estimated that the impact of a 100 basis-points
moverment n mterest rates would not have a sigmificant impact on the profit after tax of the Company

Financial assets
The Company s owed £98m {2011/12 ~ £95m) of non-interest beanng balances at the year end

Financial liabilities
The Company owes £429m (2011/12 - £68m) of non-intarast beanng loans to subsidiaries The European Commercial Paper ability of
£nl {2011/12 - £21m} s carred at a floating rate The £125m retal bond s carned at a fixed rate
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12 Intangible assets anising from development expenditure

Development expenditure on software 15 recogmised as an intangble asset in accordance with the prowisions of 1AS38 Intangble Assets
Capnalsed expenditure 15 recogrised inmally at fair value and 1s presented subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and provisions
for imparment Amortisation of these assets is charged to the consclidated income statement on a straight-Iine basis over the expected
useful economic Iife of the asset of three to five years The Group reviews the useful ecanomec Iives of these assets on a regular basis

Amortisation and impairment of ntangible assets arsing from development expenditure 1s charged within operating expenses in profit before
acquisttion and disposal costs and exceptional tems Amortisation is charged against assets from the date at wiich the asset becomes

avallable for use

et

ansing from
Group d::"d:’z'r“z%
Cost
Asat 1 April 2012 183
Additions 32
Disposals (30
Reclassifications 14
Exchange adjustments 6
As at 31 March 2013 204
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Asat 1 Aprl 2012 115
Amortisation charge for the year 26
Impairment i the year 10
Disposals (29)
Exchange adjustrments (@)
As at 31 March 2013 121
Net book value
As at 31 March 2013 83
Cost
As at 1 Apal 2011 197
Additions 35
Dispasals (48}
Exchange adjustments (1}
As at 31 March 2012 183
Accumulated amortisation and Imgairment
Asat 1 Apnl 2011 134
Amortisation charge for the year 23
Impairment in the year 6
Drsposals (48)
Exchange adjustments -
As at 31 March 2012 115
Net book value
As at 31 March 2012 68
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

13 Property and equipment

Property and equpment 1s recogised nitially at cost including the onginal purchase price of the asset and the costs attnbutable to bringing
the asset to it intended use Property and equipment 1s presented subsequently at niial cost less accumulated depreciation and any
provisions for impairment 10 1ts value It 1s depreciated on a straight-ine basis aver its expected useful economic life as follows

Short leasehold property improvements Pencd of lease

Furmture, fixtures and equipment 3-5years

The Group reviews Its depreciation rates regularly to take account of any changes in orcumstances These rates are determined on
consideration of factors such as the expacted rate of technological develepment and anticipated usage levels

When a leasehcld property beccmes surplus to the Group s foresceable business requirements a provision is made on a discounted basis
for the expected future net cost of the property

Gans and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the asset carnying amount and are included in the consalidated
Income statement

e M tures

property and
Group o
Cost
Asat 1 Aprl 2012 33 205 238
Additions - 7 7
Disposals - (55} (55)
Reclassifications 1 (15} (14)
Exchange adjustments 1 6 7
As at 31 March 2013 35 148 183
Accumulated depreciation and smpairment
As at 1 April 2012 13 143 156
Charge for the year 2 18 20
Impairment in the year - 8 8
Disposals - (55) (55)
Exchange adjustments - 4 4
As at 31 March 2013 15 118 133
Net book value
As at 31 March 2013 20 30 50

No assets are held under finance leases Short leasehold property improvements includes £4m (2011712 - £3m) of property held as
freehold

Cost and accumulated depreciation disposals of £55m relate to the write-off of furniture fixtures and equpment which had a £nil net book
and are no longer in use

Mo




13 Property and equipment continued

castod M

"
Cost
As at 1 Aprit 2011 28 227 255
Additions 5 12 17
Disposals - (33} (33
Exchange adustrments - (1) (m
As at 31 March 2012 33 205 238
Accurnulated deprecation and imparment
Asat 1 Apnl 2011 1" 157 168
Charge for the year 2 18 20
lmparrment i the year - 1 1
Disposals - (33) (33)
Asat 31 March 2012 13 143 156
Net book value
As at 31 March 2012 20 62 B2
14 [nvestment n associates

yeor o yoor ench

fm £m

Cost
Asat 1 April 61 38
Additions 7 26
Disposals (3) -
Transfer to jont venture (2) -
Transfer to nvestrment i subsidiary - (3)
Share of profit for the year 5 6
Dwvidends receved (n (5)
Exchange adjustments (1 (1)
As at 31 March 66 61
Amortisation and impairment
As at 1 April 7
As at 31 March 7
Net book value
As at 31 March 59 54

ok
ArnudRepont 2013
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

14 Investment in assoctates continued

Summary financial information for associates
The Group s share of associates assets habilties and prefit 15 given below

Group Grop

as at asal

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£fm m

Assets 38 35
Liabilites N (8)
Net assets kX 27
Goodwill and intangible assets ansing on consolidation 28 27
Net investment in associates 59 54
Group Gioup

year ended year ended

3% March 31 March

2013 2012

Em £r

Ravenue 34 32
Operating expenses (26} (24)
Profit before tax 8 8
Tax (3) {(2)
Share of profit of associates after tax 5 6

On 2 August 2012 the Group acquired 14 6% of OpenGarnmaInc the creators of the first open-source analytics and nsk management
platform for the financial services industry for a cash consideration of $9 Sm (£6m) with the investment classified as an associate The
Group has significant influence through 1ts representation on the board of directors of OpenGarnima Inc
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15 Available-for-sale investments

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are debt and equity non-dervative financial assets and are intially recognised at far value Any subsequent

changes in far value are recogrised drrectly in other comprehensive income When an investment 1s disposed of or 1s determined to be

impaired any cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised previously in other comprehensive income is transferred to the consolidated
incorne statement These assets are generally expected to be held for the long term and are included n non-current assets Assets such as
shares or seats in exchanges cash-related mstruments, and long-term equity nvestrments that do not qualify as associates or joint ventures,

are classified as avalable-for-sale

your o e s
Ak S
£m m
As at 1 Apnil 31 31
Additions 2 -
Disposals (5) (2}
Imparrment - (1}
Revaluation in the year recognised in other comprehensive income - 4
Exchange adjustments 1 (1)
As at 31 March 29 3%
Non-current
- listed 2 4
- unlisted 27 27
Total 29 31
Avallable-for-sale nvestrments include the following
Listed securities
Equities histed in US 1 3
Equities hsted in the rest of the world 1 4
Total listed securities 2 4
Unlisted secunities
Equity mvestments 25 26
Other 2 1
Total unhsted securities 27 27
Total 29 31
Avalable-for-sale nvestments are dencrminated in the following currencies
Pound Other
Group cados ook e o e o
As at 31 March 2013 8 3 9 6 3 29
As at 31 March 2012 6 7 9 7 2 31
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

16 Trade and other recewvables

Trade recervables are recognised initially at farr value less any provisien for recoverabilty A prowision for imparment of trade recevables 1s
established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group wi not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginat terms of
recenvables Signficant financial difficulties of the debtor probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or fnanaal reorganisation and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade recevable is mpaired The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset s carnyng amount and the present value of the future cash flows The carryingamount of the asset 1s reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the arount of the loss 1s recogrused in the consclidated income staternent within operating
expenses When a trade recevable 5 determined to be uncollectable it is written off against the aflowance account for trade recevables
Subseqguent recoveries of amourits previously written off are credited against operating expenses in the consoldated incormne statement

toans and recevables are non-dervative financial instruments which have a fixed or determinable value They are recognised at cost less any
provisions for imparment In thewr value

Fair value through profit or loss assets are designated as such where they meet the conditions of IA539 Financial Instruments Recogrition
and Measurement  They are recognised ninally at far value and any subsequent changes in fair value are recognised directly in the
consolidated ncome statement | hese assets are usually held for shert-term gain or are financial nstruments not designated as hedges The
accounting policy for fair value hedges 1s included in note 11

Matched pringipal transactions are those where the Group acts in a non-adwvisory capacity as principal in the comrmitment to purchase and
sell secunves and other financial instruments through two or more transactions between our customers Such trades have no contractual
settlerment date and are complete only when all sides of the ransaction are settled, and therefore an aged analysis of matched prinaipat trade
receivables 1s not appropriate Substantially all matched prnoipal recervables and payables settle within a short period of tme usually within
three days of the trade date All amounts due to and payable by counterparties in respect of matched prinopal business are shown gross as
matched pnnaipal trade recevables and matched pnncipat trade payables (note 17} except where a netting agreement which 1s legafly
enforceable at all imes exists and the asset and habity are erther settled net or simultaneously if, duning the course of trading {e g as a
result of an error} any unmatched trades remain outstanding the asset or liability 15 held within matched prinopal trade recevables or
payables as appropnate and farr valued through the consolidated income statement until the trade 15 completed

Depesits pad for securities borrowed represents the cash paid as collateral n a stock lending transaction The Group acts as an intermediary
between our customers for collateralised stock lending transactions Such trades are complete only when both the collateral and stock for
each side of the transaction are returned The gross amounts of collateral due to and recervable are disclosed in the balance sheet as deposits
paid for secunties borrowed and deposits received for secunties loaned (note 17)

The accounting policy for denvative financial instrurments s ncluded in the interest rate and currency nsk management section (note 113

Financial nstruments not held at farr value are mparred where there is objective ewidence that the value may be smpaired The amount of the
sparment is calculated as the difference between the carrying value and the present value of any expected future cash flows with any
imparrment being recognised in the consclidated income statement Subsequent recovery of amounts previously imparred are credited to the
consohdated income statement
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16 Trade and other recevables continued

o s e Seat
£m £ Em im

Non-current receivables
Dervatie financial Instruments - 3 - -
Other recevables 6 8 124 -
6 M 124 -

Current recervables

Matched prinaipal trade recenvables 15,614 77997 - -
Deposits paid for securities borrowed 919 794 - -
Other trade recevables 201 247 - -
Imparment of cther trade recenables (3) (3} - -
Dervatwve financal nstruments 3 8 - -
Amounts owed by subsidianes - - 97 93
Amounts owed by associates 4 5 - -
Other recevables 66 86 1 2
Prepayments 94 120 - -
16,898 79254 98 35

As at 31 March 2013 the far valug of trade and other recevables is not matenally different from their book values

Dunng the year the Group introduced a new cleaning arrangement for certan US miatched prinaipal transactions on a fully disclosed dleanng
basis, which provided the Group with the legally enforceable nght to set off the recogrised amounts and settfe on a net basis As such certan
matched principal trade receivables and payables (note 17} were recorded on a net basis which resulted in the significant downward
movement from the 201 2 position

(a} Credit nsk management

The Group 1s exposed to credit nsk in the event of non-performance by counterparties in respect of its name give-up matched princpal
exchange traded and corporate treasury cperations the Group does not bear any significant concentration nsk to either counterparties
or markets

The nsk in respect of name gve-up post trade nsk and information services busingsses 1s hmited 1o the collection of outstanding commssion
and transaction fees and this 1s managed proactvely by the Group s credit control function the exposure to credit loss s imited to the value
of the recevable

The matched pnncipat business involves the Group acting as a counterparty on trades wiich are undertaken on a delivery versus payment
basis The Group manages its credit risk in these transactions through appropriate policies and procedures in order to mitigate this sk
including setting appropriate credit imits for all counterparts which are staingently monitored by the regional credit nsk teams to restrict any
potentwal loss through counterparty default

The credit nsk on core cash cash equivalents and denvative financial instruments are monitored on a dady basis All financial nstitutions that
are transacted with are approved by GRACC and internal imits are assigned to each ane based on a combination of factors including external
credit ratings The mgonty of cash and cash equvalents 1s deposited with financial nstitutions rated ‘A or better by the major credit rating
agencies

81% of the Group s counterparty exposure at any given paint throughout the year is to investment grade counterparts (rated BBB-/Baa3
or above)

The Group's potential stressed counterparty credit risk calculated in the ICAAP is less than 5% of the total Group capital
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

16 Trade and other receivables continued

() Credit risk management contimnued

The maxumum exposure to credit nsk for the Group 15 represented by the total far value of the financiat assets plus other of f-balance sheet

iterns as disclosed below

Group Growp

as at a4 at

31 March 1 March

2013 2012

£m m

Financial assets of the Group 17,473 79770
Guarantees given to counterparties 354 249
17,827 80019

Company

The Company 15 exposed to credit nsk in the event of non-performance by counterparties This nisk 1s considered rminmial as all counterparties

are Group companies and the nsk of non-payment 1s viewed as low

(b) Impairment of trade and other recevables

Other trace recevables represent amounts receivable in respect of agency business and nfermation seraces As at 31 March 2013 the

following trade and recevables were past ther normal settlement date but had not been impaired

Group Group

asat as at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

Em im

Less than 30 days overdue 66 104
Over 30 days but less than 90 days overdue 36 44
Over 90 days overdue 21 21
123 169

The mparirrnent provision 1s based on historical data for the trade receivables of the Group and represents the expected reduction in the
amount recevable as a result of Invorcing errors and other disputes and specific provisions for doubtfuf debis As at 31 March 2013 the

provision ¢n other trade recewvables is disclosed below

e o

y‘;i'llr March wiﬂirmm

2013 2012

£m fm

Asat 1 April 3 5
Transfer to other trade recevables - (2}
As at 31 March 3 3
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16 Trade and other receivables continued

(<) Trade recervables by currency

The table below shows the concentration of the Group s trade recevables by currency

As at 31 March 2013

Trade recervables
Pourd Other
Group ""‘2’; Ddrc}ﬁ Elg'rﬁ Yﬁ T IoEtr:
Matched prinaipal trade recenvables 3,866 7.474 330 - 973 15,614
Deposits paid for secunties borrowed - 919 - - - 919
Other trade recevables (net) 37 119 20 3 19 198
3,903 8512 3321 992 16,731
As at 31 March 2012
Trade recanzbles
Pound Other
Group e o e T =
Matched principal trade recevables 4401 66 439 5713 3 1,441 77997
Deposits pad for securities borrowed - 794 - - - 794
Other trade recenvables (net) 39 17 18 3 67 244
4440 67350 5731 6 1508 79035
1TAPpic

ArudReport 2013
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

17 Trade and other payables
Accounts payable are recognised initially at far value based on the armounts exchanged

The accounting pelcies for matched prncipal transactions and collateralised stock lending are ncluded within the trade and other recevables
note (note 16)

Letails of the accounting policy relating to denvative financial Instruments 15 ncluded within the interest rate and currency risk managernent
section (note 11)

e e o ey
e g 2 i
im fm fm £m
Current payables

Matched principal trade payables 15,587 77 997 - -
Deposits received for secunties loaned 922 795 - -
Gther trade payables 20 16 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiznes - - 429 68
Amounts owed o associates 6 6 - -
Dervative financiat nstruments 10 1 - -
Accruals 285 273 - -
Other tax and social security 15 29 - -
Deferred income 2 - - -
Other payables 29 65 - -
Contingent deferred consideration (note 23(b}) 1 1 - -
Deferred consideration 3 1 - -
16,880 79184 429 68

Non-current payables
Accruals 9 12 - -
Contingent deferred consideration (note 23(b)) 8 8 - -
Amounts owed to subsidianes - - - 140
Denvative financial instruments 1 5 - -
Deferred income 11 8 - -
Total 29 33 - 140

As at 31 March 201 3 the far value of trade and other payables s not matenally different from therr book values
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17 Trade and other payables continued

Maturity of trade and other payables and provisions

The table below shows the matunty profite of the Group's financial habiities included within trade and other payables and prowvisions based on

the contractual amount payable on the date of repayment

Matunty of trade and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2013

Three

Less than thiee menths to Oneto Greater than

Group g - ks
Matched principal trade payables 15,587 - - - 15,587
Deposits recaived for securities loaned 922 - - - 922
Other trade payables 2 18 - - 20
Dervative financial nstrurnents 10 - 1 - 11
Amounts owed to associates 3 3 - - 6
Other payables 24 5 - - 29
Contingent deferred consideration - 1 8 - 9
Deferred consideration - 3 - - 3
Accruals 67 218 9 - 294

16,615 248 18 - 16,881
Maturity of trace and other payables and provisions as at 31 March 2012

Less than Three mle:i: Creto Greater than

Group m”g?\ i M? fre g 1?::
Matched principal trade payables 77748 249 - - 77997
Deposits receved for secunties loaned 795 - - - 795
Other trade payables 13 3 - - 16
Denvative financial instruments - 1 5 - 6
Amounts owed to associates 6 - - - &
Qther payables 34 29 - - 63
Contingent deferred consideration - 1 8 - 9
Deferred consideration - - 1 - 1
Accruals 60 222 3 - 285
Provisions - - - 3

78656 505 17 3 79181

The gross amounts payable have been disclosed above rather than the net present value used in determining trade and other payables
Based on therr size and nature there 1s no materiat difference between the net present value and gross amount of the balances disclosed

above
Company

The current partion of trade and other payables of £429m (2011712 — £68m) are all due within 80 days The non-current balance owed 1

Enl{2011/12 - £140m)

"

s
Al Report 201 3
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

18 Provisions

A provision s recogmsed where there s a present obligation exther legal or constructive as aresult of a past event for which it 15 probable
there will be a transfer of economic benefits to settle the obligation A provision is only recognised where a reliable estimate can be made of

the value of the obligation

Group e n o
As at 1 Aprl 2012 3 10 6 19
Amounts recogrised in the income statement - - 1 1
Released to the consolidated income staternent (3) (3) - (6)
As at 31 March 2013 - 7 7 14
Group e B om
As at 1 April 2011 3 45 7 55
Amounts recognised in the sncome statement 1 - ) (1)
Released/(charged) to the consoldated income statement (1) (33) 1 (33)
Exchange adjustment - (2} - (2)
As at 31 March 201 2 3 10 6 19
e el

v

£m £r

Included in current liabiities 1 1
Included in non-current hiabilities 13 18
14 19

Leqgal provisions represent amounts for certan clams brought against subsidianes of the Group n relation to certan tax matters The

provisions were those that have been acquired by the Group on the acquisiton of subsidiary undertakings At the present time the timing of
any payment 15 uncertan and the matter s reviewed by the Group on a regular basis In the directors opinion after taking legal advice the
outcome of these legal daims will not give rise te any significant loss beyond the amounts provided at 31 March 2013

Other provisions include obligations for certain employee-related costs which are expected to be discharged over the next three to

four years
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19 Share caprtal

Ordinary shares are recognised in equity as share capital at their nominal value The difference between consideration receved and the
nominal value 15 recognised in the share premwm account

MFAND) FSRUISNG

Company shares held in trust n connection with the Group s employee share schemes are deducted from consalidated shareholders equity
Purchases, sales and transfers of the Company s shares are disclosed as ¢hanges in the consalidated sharehalders equity The assets and
liabilities of the trusts are consolidated in full into the Group s consolidated financizl statements

Treasury Shares are recognised in equity and are measured at cost Consideration receved for the sale of such shares is also recognised in
equity with any dfference between the proceeds from the sale and onginal cost being taken to retained earnings

oY
(a) Authorised share capital of the Company 2
As at 31 March 2013 Asat 31 March 2012 4
Number of Normenal Nurer of Normyral §
shares value shares vilue
mdhions £m rdborn, fm
Equity share capital
Ordinary shares of 10p each 1,100 110 1100 110
1,100 110 1100 110
(b) Issued share capital
Year ended 31 Mwch 2013 Year erded 31 March 2012 r
Number of Norrund Nurber of o P
Allotted, called up and fully paid res vae e vee H
[
Asat 1 Apnl 664 66 664 66 E-‘
Issued during the year L - 1 - s
Cancebed during the year - - (M - 2
As at 31 March 665 66 664 66

Dunng the year 217 263 (2011/12 — 597 062) ardinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of options held under employee share
schemes for a consideration of £1m (2011712 - £1m) wath no shares cancelled n the year (2011712 - 500 000)

The number of ordinary shares i issue at 31 March 2013 was 664 537 006 (2011712 - 664 365 322)with 18 346181 (2011/12 -
18 294 235} held as Treasury Shares and 6 193 738 (2011/12 — 4,252 550) held in employee share trusts The cost of Treasury Shares i
deducted from retaned earmings 1 he cost of shares held n employee share trusts 15 loaned to the trusts by the Company and 1s treated as
other recewvables
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

19 Share capital continued

(c) Potential issues of share capital
Certan employees hold options over the Company s shares which are potentially 1ssuable as fallows

Number of shares mdions

at
Year of grant i peipsst rercse pencd from e penca (0 n M;%;'; e} u%:za
2003 1885 31/05/2005 19/01/2013 0o 01
2004 2700 31/08/2006 26/11/2013 04 04
2006 2970 01/0772008 30/06/2015 10 10
2007 4860 01/06/2009 06/09/2016 13 13
2010 3230 01/08/2012 31/03/2013 oo 10
2011 2880 01/08/2013 31/03/2014 12 14
2012 3460 01/08/2014 231172021 04 06
2013 285 4 24/05/2015 26/06/2022 16 -
Total potential issues of share capital 59 58

Shares that have been issued but are held in employee share trusts for employee share awards are not included in the above Full details of
share aption schernes are given in note 21

(d) Shares held in trust for employee share schemes

The Company has established employee share trusts in respect of the Serior Executive Equity Participation Plan {SEEPP) the Bonus Share
Matching Plan {BSMP} the Tralana Plan and the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} (note 21) which are funded by the Company and have the
power to acquire shares in the open market to meet the Company s future obligations under these schemes As at 31 March 2013 these
trusts owned 6 193 738 ordinary shares in the Company (2011712 - 4 252 550) with a market value of £18m (2011/12 - £17m)

Number of shares mebions.

Year ended Year ended

EE
Asat 1 April 4 5
Acquved dunng the year 3 -
Exercised by employees during the year M (1)
As at 31 March 6 4

{e) Treasury Shares

Dunng the year the Company purchased 97 523 (2011/12 ~ 14 266 081) of its own shares for £03m (2011/12 - £56m) to be held as
Treasury Shares and re-issued 45 577 (2011/12 - none) As at 31 March 2013 the number of shares held as Treasury Shares was
18346 181 (2011/12 - 18 294 235)

Number of shares miions

Year ended Year ended

21 March 31 March

013 2012

As at 1 April 18 4
Acquired dunng the year - 14
As at 31 March 18 i8

128 ifwinn




19 Share capital continued

(f) Capital management
ICAP maintains an efficent and strong capital base which maximuses the return 1o its shareholders while also maintaining flexibilty and
ensunng comphance with supervisory regulatory requrements

The Group has a centrabsed approach to capital management The GRACC reviews the capital structure onaregular basis and, as part of this
review the committee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital Based on the recommendations
presented by the committee to the board the Group balances its overall captal structure through the payment of dwvidends, new share
1ssues and share buybacks as well as teking on new debt or refinancing existing debt

The capital structure of the Group consisis of debt which includes borrowings (note 7} cash and cash equivalents (note 8(c)} and equity,
including share capital share prermium other reserves (nate 20(a)) and retained earmings At 31 March 2013 the Group s net cash was
£25m (2011/12 - net debt of £82m} (note 8(b))

ICAP 5 global business 1s subject to consolidated supervision by the FCA under the terms of the CRD in addiion to a number of the Group s
trading cormpanies being subject to regulation in the junsdiction in which they operate pnncpally by the FCAn the UK and the SEC/FINRA in
the US

ICAP benefits from a BIPRU Investrment Firm Consolidation waiver from the consolidated capital adequacy tests which has the effect of
excluding goodwill from the capital computation and i so doing allows the Group to undertake acquisitions using debt rather than equity
finance The terms of the waver which wil fall due for renewal in Apnl 2016, brmits the Group s ability to ncur rarket nsk and in effect
prohibits the Group from undertaking proprietary trading activities

The Group s Pillar 7 regulatory capital headroom represents the difference between the capital rescurces of the Company, on a stand-alone
basis and the regulatory capital requirements of the Group calculated in accordance with the requirements of the waiver on an aggregate
basis Pilar 1 headroom 1s approximately £0 9bn (2011712 - £0 8bn) and 1s relatively stable due te the low amount of market and credit
risk in the Group but may fluctuate due to the tirming of dividends

ICAP also evaluates at a Group and indvidual legal entity level the nisks facing the business, to determine whether its capital 1s sufficient 1o
cover any expected losses The Group uses a scenario-based model which utiises data prowided by the business to assess the economic
capital required to cover the expected risks The process followed at Group level 15 consistent with the CRD requirement for ICAPs FCA
regulated entities to perfarm an ICAAP under Pillar 2 The results for both are documented, updated and approved annually by the board and
the UK regulated entity boards respectively As at 31 March 2013 the Group and each of its UK regufated entities had sufficient Pilar 1
capiid to cover thewr identified nsks

All of the Group s regulated trading cornparies have comphed with therr requlatory capital requirements throughout the year The regulatory
ervironment continues to change and while it will mpact how the markets work and who operates them the Group does not expect based
on draft rules currently avalable a materat change to result inits capitaf structure

In general higher levels of market volatiity resuit (i increased demand for the Group s brokerage and post trade risk and information services
From a requlatory capital perspective however the mpact s significantly dampened by the fact that much of this iIncremental business
occurs n markets which operate on a name gve-up basis or are cleared through a central counterparty Therefore we would expect any
INcrease n actvty to have limited impact on the Groups capital resource requirement and as such absent 2 matenal acquisition loss of the
warver or 3 change in the basis of computation existing capital resources are viewed as sufficient to both operate and grow the business
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Finangal statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

20 Reserves

(a) Analysis of conschdated other reserves

Capital Total

Merger redemption Revaluation other

Group fﬂe‘é\: f&m fm?r: I'ESQE: leservf-ﬁ
Asat 1 Apnl 2012 28 1 7 55 91

Loss unrealised in the year - - (13) - (13}
As at 31 March 2013 28 1 (6) 55 78
Caprta Tota

Merger rederpiion Hedgng Revahuation other

Group - -
Asat 1 April 2011 28 1 (5) 51 75
Gain unrealised n the year - - 12 4 16
As at 31 March 2012 28 1 7 55 91

The merger reserve was created on the merger of Garban and Intercapital n 1999 and also includes goodwilt ansing before 1 January 1998

written off to reserves This amount remains elirminated

The capital redemption reserve was created as a result of shares cancelled in 1998 and 2005 The revaluation reserve represents

revaluations of avallable-for-sale mvestrments The hedging reserve anses as a result of recognising the fair value of dervative financial

nstrurments designated as hedging instrurents on the balance sheet

The cost of shares held by employee share trusts of £31m (2011712 - £31m) and Treasury Shares E71m (2011/12 - £77m) has been
deducted from retaned earnings The share-based payment reserve of £20m (2011/12 - £20m) has been mcluded n retaned earnings

(b) Company reserves

The Company has retaned earnings of £1 184m (2011712 - £1 336m) of which £512m (2011/12 - £657m) 15 not distributable
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21 Share awards
Employee share schemes

The Group awards share opions and other share-based payments as part of empleyee incentive schemes The Group has applied IFRS2
“Share-based paymentis for all such awards granted since 7 Novernber 2002 The far value of services acqured is measured by the fair value
of the shares or share options awarded at the tirne of granting and are charged to staff costs over the penod the service 1s receved on a
straight-line basis A corresponding amount has been recognised in equity

The fair value of share options awarded 1s calculated using the Black - Schales option pricing model and takes into account vanous parameters
including the exercise price current share price, risk free rate of return and the volatility of ICAP s share price The expected hves used in the
fair value calculations are adjusted for the estimated effect of non-transferability and exercise restnctions

A cancellation of a share award by the Group or an employee Is treated consistently resulting in an acceleration of the remaining charge
within the consolidated income statement i the year of cancellation

The total charge te the consolidated income statement in respect of employee share options in the year was £1m {2011/12 - £3m)
The farr value of options granted durnng the year was £7m (2011/12 - £8m)

At the ciose of business on 37 March 2013 the market price of the Company s crdinary shares was 290 4p (2011712 — 392 8p) per share
and during the year fluctuated in the range 281 4p and 396 5p per share

Options outstanding aver the Company s ordinary shares under the Company s employee share schemes were as follows

Al W, ;:J;,‘tled W;qe?r ned quh?ed Asat W::ngEd
E?SES eae;%;e: G;nﬁ EXEI:J?E UEE rll"aliﬁ% ex%%i% n hé\ar;); exe;{llgg
gy pence pence pence mdions pence
2009 SAYE 11 3230 - - (03) 0a 3230 - 3230
2010 SAYE 14 2880 - - - (02) - 12 2880
2011 SAYE 03 3790 - - - 02 - c1 3790
2012 SAYE - - 15 2740 - (02) - 13 2740
SEEPP UK 04 - 01 - - - - 05 -
ucsor 36 3933 03 3432 - - - 39 3894
BSMP 66 - 25 - ©on an - 79 -
Traana Plan 03 1600 - - - - - 03 1600
LTIP 07 - 10 - (05) (03} ~ 09 -
144 54 (09) (28} 161
PO i i o v
Lo pence meois pence mons pence oo pence
UESOP 01 2338 - - 1) - 2630 - -
2009 SAYE 12 3230 - - - (01 - 11 3230
2010 5AYE 16 2880 - - - (02) - 14 2880
2011 SAYE - - 03 3790 - - - 03 3790
SEEPP UK 05 - - - (01 - - 04 -
ucsor 33 3555 08 4144 05 - 1785 36 3833
BSMP 47 - 24 - ©3) (02) - 66 -
Traana Plan 04 1485 - - on - 900 03 1600
LTIP 08 - 04 - (05) - - 07 -
126 39 (16) {05) 144

The SEEPP UK and the BSMP awards/prorises have a nominal exeraise price of £1 for each basic award/promise and £1 for each matching
award Options granted under the SAYE are issued with a 20% discount on the market price as permitted by HMRC and those granted under
the Traiana Plan were granted at the equsvalent price to the onginal Traiana option The awards under the LTIP have no exerase pnce
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

21 Share awards continued

Employee share schemes coninued

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the far value of the equity mstruments at the
date at which they are granted Determining the value of a grant of equity Instruments requires selecting an appropriate valuation model and
estimating the required INputs to that model Including the expected Iife of the option volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions
about them The following assumptions have been applied when calculating the farr value of the options granted in the year

Waghted weghted Probb: ty of

2verage Expexted average Averane
rartet share dwdend sk free Dxpected perforrance Vestng
prce vy yeid rate e concthions pencd
pence % % % years % years
2012 SAYE 3400 39 608 076 31 100 3
SEEPP LK 3390 39 608 076 50 100 3
BSMP 3390 39 - 076 50 80 3
LTIP 3390 39 - 076 50 90 3
UCSoP 3410 39 508 076 70 100 3

Estmated share volatihty 1s a measure of the amount by which the Company s shares are expected to fluctuate dunng the Iife of an option The
expected volatiity 1s estimated based on the histong volatilty of the share price over the past three years to the date of grant of the option On
options where the employee receves a cash bonus in leu of the dividend foregone the dvidend yield 1s treated as nit and the fair value of the
option 1s equal to the market value of the share

(N BSMmP

The BSMP 15 not approved by HMRC The BSMP 15 2 long-term incentive plan where for years up to 2011 /12 executive directors of the
Company were required to wanve 50% of therr cash bonus s return for nghts over the number of shares that could be acquired with the
foregone bonus (a basic award} In 201 2/13 the executive directors are required to use half of thew cash bonus after tax to acquire
nvestment shares A matching award of shares will also be granted with a value equal to haif therr pre-tax cash bonus The matching award
will usually be refeased after three years iIf tha executive director 15 still employed and has retained the investrment shares purchased and to
the extent the performance candition has been met

BSMP awards/promises were outstanding over 7 928 959 (2011/12 - 6 567 521) orcinary shares These shares are exercisable between
2013 and 2020 Acredt of £1m (2011/12 - £1m charge) has been taken to the consolidated Income statement in respect of these
options in the year which includes a £2m credit relating to the 2010 and 2011 schemes as the performance conditions are not expected to
be met

{u} Sharesave scheme (SAYE)

The Save-As-You-Earn {SAYE) scheme s approved by HMRC The scheme enables directors and eligible employees to acquire options over
ordinary shares of the Company at a discount of up to 20% of thew market price using the proceeds of a related SAYE coniract All UK
employees who have worked for the minimum qualifying penod on an invitation date are ehgible to join the scheme Options granted under
the SAYE scheme are not subject to performance conditions These options are all equity settled

SAYE options were outstanding over 1 234 208 (2011/12 - 2 460 915) ordinary shares for the 2010 and 2011 three-year grants at
exercise prices of 288 Op and 379 Op per share respectively Subject to the participants remaining in the employment of the Group and
making 36 monthly contributions these options will normally be exeraisable in the immediate six months post completion of the vesting
peniod which 1s between August and January each year A charge of £1m (2011/12 - £1m) was made to the conselidated ncome
staternent in respect of these options in the year

SAYE options were granted over 1520 692 ordinary shares on 14 June 2012 for the 201 2 three-year grant at an exercise price of 274 Op
per share Subject to the participants remaining in the employment of the Group and making 36 monthly contributions, these options will
normally be exercisable between August 2015 and January 2016 A charge of £nil was made to the consolidated income staternent n
respect of these options in the year As at 31 March 2013 options over 1 322 547 shares remained outstanding
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21 Share awards continued

Employee share schemes continued

MIAI) SSBUISNY

{m) Other share schemes

Other includes a number of smaller share schermes unapproved by HMRC operated througheut the Group which compnses the SEEPP
Unapproved Company Share Option Plan (UCSOP) Traana and LTIP plans Vesting penods range between three to five years with some of the
schemes including vesting conditions linked to the performanice of the Group These options are exerasable between January 2006 and June
2022 vath an exercise price range of 166 Op to 611 Op under UCSOP and 16 Op to 648 Op under the Traiana plan At 31 March 2013 the total
number of shares exercisable was 3 2971 700 under UCSOP (2011712 - 2 7971 700) and 311 096 under the Traiana plan {2011/12 -

311 096) with weighted average exercise prices of 387 2p (2011/12 - 387 2p)and 160 2p (2011/12 - 160 2p) respectvely

A charge of £1m (2011712 — £1m) was made to the consolidated income staternent in respect of these schemes

0URUIAACY

22 Employee iInformation and expense

Payrments to defined contnbution schemes are recognised as an expense In the consoldated ncome staterment as they fall due Any
difference between the payments and the charge 1s recogrised as a short-term asset or liability

(a) Analysis of employee costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March r
2043 202
£m £m 'S"
Salaries (including bonuses) 761 889 §
8
Seaial secunty costs 56 62 &
Share-based payments 1 3 §
Defined contribution pension costs 6 6 z
824 960
{b) Number of employees analysed by business segment
Average Yaar and -oz;_
Year ended Year ended Asat As at g
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 2
2013 202 2013 2012 g
3
Global Broking %
2
- EMEA 1.550 1543 1,562 1569
~ Americas 1,660 1,801 1,545 1725
- Asia Pacific 827 773 836 828
Electronic Markets 519 508 512 542
Post Trade Risk and Information 491 455 521 459
5,047 5 080 4,976 5123

Key management consists of the members of the GEMG The aggregate remuneration for key management was £19m (2011/12 - £23m)
Key management remunerabion 1s wholly attributable te continuing operations

A charge of £1m {2011/12 - £1m} was recognised in the censobidated income staternent relating to share options held by key
management

Retirement benefits are accruing to seven (2011712 - seven) members of the GEMG under defined contribution schemes and during the
year key management receved £04m (2011/12 - £0 1m) in post-retrement benefits
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Financial staterments

Notes to the financial statements continued

23 Acquisitions of subsidiaries

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisiion of subsidianes by the Group The cost of acquisiiion 1s measured at
farr value of the assets gven, equty mstruments issued and liabliies incurred or assumed at the date of exchange Identfiable assets acquired
and liabiliies and contingent habiities assurmed in the business combination are measured inially at therr far values at the acquisition date
wrespective of the extent of any minonty interest The excess of the cost of acquisition over the farr value of the Group s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired 15 recorded as goodwll If the costs of the acquisition are less than the fair value of the nct assets acquired

the difference 1s recognised drectly n the consolidased income statement Fees associated with an acquisition are expensed as incurred
When the Group ncreases its nvestment in an entity resulting in an associate becorning a subsidiary the intangibles refated to the acquisition
are valued and the element of those not previously recognised as a share of net assets are recorded as revaluation gains reafised In the year in
other comprehensive Income A change of ownership that does not result in a loss of controt is classified as an equity transaction with the
difference between the amount by which the non-controling nterest is recorded and the fair value of the consideration receved recogrised
dractly n equity

Where the Group has 1ssued a put optien over shares held by a non-contreling interest the Group derecognises the non-controlling interests
and nstead recognises a contingent deferred consideration kability for the estimated amount likely to be pad to the non-controling interest
on exercise of those options The residual amount representing the difference between any consideration pad/payable and the non-
controling interests share of net assets 15 recognised N equity Movemnents :n the estimated liabiity after niial recognition are recogrised
withun the consolidated income statement Where the Group has a call option over shares held by a non-controlling interest the Group
continues to recognise the non-controlling interest until 1t 1s certain that the option will be called At that pont the accounting treatment (s
the same as for a put option

(a) Acquisitions in the year
During the year the Group acquired the following businesses with the pravisional numbers booked at 31 March 2013 disclosed below

On 21 June 201 2 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital n ICAP Securibies and Dervatives Exchange Limited (formerly Plus Stock
Exchange plc (Plus)) the smaller compary equity exchange based in the UK for consideranion of £0 5m The farr value of net identifisble
assets and labilities acquired on acquisition totalled £1 2m of net labilities The difference between the fair value of consideration paid and
net hiabilities acquired of £1 7m represents goodwill relating to the acquisibon Since acquisition the Group has consolidated £1m of loss
after tax

On 28 Novernber 2012 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital in Global Research and Consulting Limited known as ClientKnowledge
the leading optimisation firm specialising n FX for consideration of £3 5m The farr value of net dentifiable assets and labiinies acquired on
acquisition totalled £ 1m of net assets The difference between the far value of consideration paid and et liabilities acquired of £3 4m
represents goodwill relating to the acquisition Since acquisibon ChentKnowledge has been integrated nto the EBS business

(b) Contingent deferred consideration in respect of acquisitions

A nurnber of acquisitions made by the Group are satssfied in part by contingent deferred consideration The Group has re-estmated the
amounts due where necessary, with any corresponding adiustments being made to goodwill for acquisition made prior to the adoption of
IFRS3 (revised) Business Combinations For acquisitions made since the adoption of IFRS3 (revised) any adustments made to the
cont:ngent deferred consideration are made through the acquisiion and disposals cosis calumn of the conselidated ncome statement

Incluced within contingent deferred consideration are amounts which are exercisable at certain dates in the future on put options written
over shares held by non-controlling nterests where the Group considers it highly likely that these options will be exerased

At 31 March 2013 a deferred contingent consideration of £9m (2011/12 - £9m) was outstanding
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23 Acquisittons of subsidiaries continued

(c) Acquisttion and disposal costs before tax

Acguisition and disposal costs before tax comprises e e
Arnortisation of intangibles recognised on consolidation (69} (70)
Imparment of Intangible assets arsing on consolidation (81) (103
Release of provisions recognised on acquisition - 37

Impairment of avaatle-for-sale assets - (m
Other (7} (7
Recogrised in operating expenses {157) (150)
Ganon sale of business - 13

Impact on operating profit (157) (137)
Finance cost (1) -

Tax 38 18
Acquisition and disposal costs (120) (119)

24 Other income

Revenue grants receved are credited to the consolidated income statement on an accruals basis over the penod the related expenditure

15 charged
Year ended Yaar endesd
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Em m
Incorne from government grants 6 12
Other 3 14
Other income before acquisition and disposal costs and exceptional iterms 9 26
Gain on sale of business - 13
Total other iIncome 9 39

lncome from government grants ncludes amounts relating to a BEIP grant recewable in the US from the state of New Jersey Income from
the grant s recognisable until 2014 and expected to be received by the Group by 2017 The Group 15 requrred to maintain its operations in
the state of New Jersey until 2017 and the grant 1s based on the amount of employee tax paid over to the state authoniyies

AP
Arrud Repant 2013
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

25 Financial assets and habilities

(a) Financial assets and habilities

The carrying value less impairmenit of current trade recetvables and payables are assumed to approximate to their fair values due to therr

short-term nature

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012 the farr values of finanaal assets are not materally different from their book values

Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2013

mﬂ.m A‘;ﬂi r:cuea:ahﬁ Total
£m Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents - - 602 602
Restricted funds - - 37 37
Avallable-for-sale investments - 29 - 29
Matched principal trade recevables - - 15,614 15,614
Deposits paid for secunities borrowed - - 919 39
Other trade recenvables (net) - - 198 198
Dervative financial Instruments 3 - - 3
Amounts owed by assocates - - 4 4
Other recenvables - - 67 67
3 29 17,441 17473

Classification of financial assets as at 31 March 2012
iy Arson recovss Tota
£ & £m £
Cash and cash equivalents - - 547 547
Restricted funds - - 50 50
Avalable-for-sale financal assets - N - 31
Matched principal trade recevables - - 77997 77997
Deposits paid for securities borrowed - - 794 794
Other trade recevables {net) - - 244 244
Dervatrve financial nstruments H - - 11
Amounts owed by associates - - 5 5
Other recewvables - - 91 N
i1 Ky 79728 79770
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25 Financial assets and habiities continued

{a) Financial assets and habilities continued
Financial assets can be reconcled to the balance sheet as foliows

oy ]
3 h;g%‘ 31 r\;g]dzn
£m £m
Trade and other recervables
- current recevables (note 16) 16.898 79254
- non-current receivables (note 16) 6 11
Avallable-for-sale finanaial assets (note 15) 29 31
Restricted funds 37 50
Cash and cash equivalents (note 8(c)) 602 547
Excluded
- non-financal other recevables (5) {3}
- prepayrments (94) (120}
17,473 79770
Prepayments and certan tems included within other recevables are not defined as financial assets under 1AS39
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the fair values of financial liabilitres are not matenally different from their book values
Classification of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2013
et AT e o
Em £m £m
Matched principal trade payables - 15,587 15,587
Depasits recaved for securities loaned - Q22 922
Other trade payables - 20 20
Derwvatwve financial Instruments " - 11
Amounts owed 10 assaciates - 6 6
Other payables - 30 30
Contingent deferred consideration - 9 9
Deferred consideration - 3 3
Accruals - 292 292
Borrowings and overdrafts - 577 S77
11 17,446 17,457

AP
Amrud Report 2015
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

25 Financial assets and habiities continued

{a) Financial assets and habilities continued
Classification of financial habilties as at 31 March 2012

ml::”g‘? Anmgg Totd
i} £ fay)
Matched principal trade payables - 77997 77997
Deposits received for securities loaned - 795 795
Other trade payables - 16 16
Dervatwe financial nstruments 6 - 6
Amounts owed to associates - 6 6
Other payables - 63 63
Contingent deferred consideration - 9 9
Deferred consideration - 1 1
Accruals - 285 285
Borrowings and overdrafts - 629 629
Provisions - 3 3
6 79804 79810
Financial liabiliies can be reconciled to the balance sheet as follows
Em tm
Trade and other payables
- current payables 16,881 79184
- non-current payables 29 33
- borrowings and overdrafts {note 7) 577 629
- provisions (note 18) 13 19
Excluded
- non-financial other provisions (1a) (16)
- non-financial other payables - (2)
- other tax and social secunty (15) 29
- deferred income (14) (8)
17,457 79810

Taxes payable deferred incorme and certan provisions are not classdfied as financial iabilities under IAS39
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o
25 Financeal assets and habilities continued &
[
(b} Fair value estimation 2
The Group s assets and hiabilities that are measured at fair value are financial assets at fair value through profit or loss avalable-for-sale §
investrments and dervative financial nstruments
Instrurnents ncluded in level 1 are traded in active markets and valued at quoted market pnces available n open markets The far value of a
financial instrument that is not traded in an active market 1s determined using a valuation technique, for example denvative financial
nstruments These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where avalable and rely as little as possible on entity
speaific terns If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable the instrument s included inlevel 2 If one or more of
the significant inputs are not based on observable market data the instrument 1s ncluded in level 3 Both level 2 and level 3 valuations require o
sigruficant management Judgements 2
3
The following table presents the Group s assets and habiities that are measured at far value as at 31 March 2013 2
"
As at 31 March 2013
Level1 Levd 2 Level 3 Tota
£m im Em £m
Assets
Avalable-for-sale-investment 2 25 2 29
Derrvative financial nstruments - 3 - 3
Total assets 2 28 2 32 r
Liabilities g
o
Dervative financial nstruments - (1) - (11) 2
Total iabilities - (1) - (1) 2
3
]
As at 31 March 2012 a
Level 1 Levd 2 Leval 3 Total
fin £m £m £m
Assets
Avalable-for-sale-imvestrent 4 26 1 31 g
Derwative financial instrurments - 19 - 11 §
s
Total assets 4 37 1 42 3
Labilities g
Dervatve financial nstrurments - {6) - )]
Total habilities - 6 - (6)
Company

Financtal assets and habihties

All of the Company s financial assets are classified as loans and recewables and the financial habilities are held at amortsed cost The far value
of these assets and habilites 1s not materally different from their book values
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

26 Commitments
Operating lease rentals are charged to the consolidated iIncome statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term
Operating fease commitments

At the end of the financial year the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-canceflable
operating leases which fall due as follows

As at As at

31 March 31 March

oo g 202

fm £m

Within one year 16 14
Between one and five years 83 83
After five years a1 27
140 118

No amounts were expected to be receved under non-cancellable sub-leases as at 31 March 2013 (2011/12 - £nil)

Operating lease commitments relate to the rental of prermises for office space in the UK US and Asia Pacific in the locations that the Group
operates Duning the year the lease on the Group s UK headquarters was extended to June 2019 with an option to extend for a further
30 months

27 Contingent habilities

Group

(a) Several government agencies in North Amenca and Europe, ncluding the US CFTC the US Department of Justice the FCA (formerly the
Financial Senvices Authority) and the European Cornmission continue to conduct investigations n to past submissions made by panel
mernbers to the bodies that set vancus interbank reference rates (notably Libor) The conclusions of enforcement action by certain
regulators against three banks that were members of the relevant panels and therefore set Libor have been publicly reported  Such action
included significant financial penatties and undertakings to improve the methadology by which Libor submissicns are derved

Netther ICAP, nor any of its subsidiaries erther were at the relevant time or are now mernbers of the panels that subrit data used to set
Libor nor does any ICAP braking company itself trade in any Libor-referencing product that it brokers However certan subsichanes of 1CAP's
Global Broking division are involved in broking cash deposits and the fixed price component of dervatives that refer to Libor between banks
including members of the relevant panels andin the course of doing so may receive and communicate information te banks about Libor and
Libor-related nstrurnents and trading actmty In certan of the enforcemant actions taken against the banks regulators have included
allegations that certain employees of up to six interdealer brokers which are not named may have acted improperly with regard te Libor-
related informaticn shared waith banks One of the Group s Glebal Breking subsidianies has been formally notified that it 1s the subject of an
FCA investigation and 10 additicn ICAP companies have been requested to provide regulators and other government agencies with a vanety
of information connected to the investgaticns referred to above ICAP 1s co-operating fully with such regulators and government agencies
including the FCA the US Department of Justice and the US CFTC

It 1s not practicable to predict the scope and uibmate outcomes of any INvestigations or to provide an estimate of any potential financal
impact on the Group

Inaddition 1CAP pic has recently been added as a named defendant to an existing evil higation engnally filad n Apri 2012 aganst certain
yen Libor and euro-yen Tibor panel banks in the Urited States District Court for the Southern District of New York The complant alleges the
plantiff was inured as a result of purported manpulation of yen Liber and/or euro-yen Tibor by trading euro-yen Tibor futures contracts one
component of the undertying calculation of which refers to yen Libor or euro-yen Tibor

it 15 not practicable to determine the final outcome of this ltigation or to provide an estimate of any potential financal iImpact on the Group
but ICAP intends to defend it wigorously

(b) From time to time the Group 1s engaged n itigation in relation te a variety of matters and is also frequently required to provide
information to regulators and other government agencies as part of nformat and formal nquines or market reviews It 1s not practicable to
quantify the extent of any potential kabiliies but currently there are none expected to have a matenal adversa iImpact on the Group s
consolidated results or net assets

() in the normal course of business certain Group companies enter INto guarantees and indemnities to cover deanng and setdement
arrangements and/or the use of third party services or software
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27 Contingent hiabilities continued

Company

The Company has provided a subordinated guaraniee {0 2 subsidiary company in respect of the $193m subordinated loan notes repayable i
2015 which has a fair value of £nil as at 31 March 2013 (2011712 - £nil) The Company has also provided guaraniees to a subsidiary
company in respect of credit ines of E8m which have a fair value of £nil at 31 March 2013 {2011/12 - £nl)

28 Related party transactions
Group

(a) IPGL
IPGL 15 a company controlled by Michael Spencer the Group Chief Executive Officer of ICAP plc A number of transactions take place
between IPGL and its subsidianes and the Group and these are detalled below

IPGL

The Group collected revenue on behalf of IPGL of £39 252 (2011/12 - £nil) Dunng the year the Group charged IPGL £nil (2011/12 ~
£37,163) in respect of employees of the Group who provided services to IPGL and its investments and £1 466 (2011/12 - £6 573) in
respect of other services As at 31 March 2013 IPGL owed the Group £771 (2011/12 - £38,556)

Exotex Holdings Ltd (Exotix)

As part of the disposal of Exatix Holdings Ltet to IPGL in 2007 the Group loaned employees of Exotix Ltd - asubsidiary of Exotix, £1 5mito
enable them to purchase a shareholding Interest of £2 606 (2011712 - £6 793) has been charged on these loans during the year The
Group collected revenue of £11 6m (2011/12 - £8 5m) on behalf of Exotix and recharged Exotix £270 707 (2011/12 - £225000) for
clearing-related services and £237 845 (2011/12 - £30 000) for other services provided during the year As at 31 March 2013 there
was a balance due to Exotix from the Group of £1 6m (2011/12 - £50m) The Group holds £1 9mas collaterat from Exotx on deposit

Oty index Ltd
Duning the year the Group has charged FXSolutions (an ndirect subsidiary of IPGL) £0 4m (2011/12 - £0 4m) for the provision of FX data

from its EBS platform As at 31 March 2013 there was no balance outstanding with the Group (2011/12 - £nd)

(b) TFS-ICAP LLC, TFS-ICAP Australia, TFS-ICAP Japan, TFS-ICAP Ltd and TF5-ICAP Singapore

The Group invoices and collects revenue on behalf of TFS-ICAP LLC Dunng the year, the Group wvoiced and collected £03m (2011/12 -
£6 2m) for which it did not receve a fee During the year the Group recharged the vanous jont ventures a fee as corpensation for
averheads and T support costs as follows TFS-ICAP LLC - £nil (2011/12 - £5 610} TFS-ICAPLid - £16 750 (2011/12 - £849 907}
TFS-ICAP Singapore £nil (2011/12 ~ £20311) As at 31 March 201 3 the outstanding balance from all the joint ventures to the Group was
£29m(2011/12 - £2 6m due from the Group)

(c) BSN Capital Partners Ltd (BSN)

The Group prowides BSN Capital Partners Ltd (BSN) an associate undertaking wiith office space and faciiy services Duning the year the
Group charged BSN £159 147 (2011712 — £95 462) for these services The Group also has a preferred brokerage agreement with BSN
and has recognised revenue of £0 1m (2011/12 - £1 1m} dunng the year As at 31 March 2013 the outstanding balance was £136,994
(2011/12 - £64,616)

(d) Shanghai CFETS-ICAP International Money Broking Co Ltd (CFETS-ICAP)

The Group provides CFETS-ICAP an associate cormpany based n China with office space and fachities senvices Dunng the year the Group
charged the company £19,131 {2011/12 - £131 091} for these services The Group also invoiced and collected revenue of £696 561
far CFETS-ICAP in the year (2011/12 - £489 652} As at 31 March 2013 there was a balance due to CFETS-ICAP from the Group of
£1520569(2011/12 - £790159)

{e) Capital Shupbrokers Ltd

The Group collected revenue on behalf of Capital Shipbrokers Lid an associate based in Hong Kong of £27m{2011/12 - £2 0m} The
Group also recharged Capital Shipbrokers Ltd £395 278 (2017/12 - £214 965) for overheads The total outstanding balances due from
the Group was £19m (2011/12 - £1 2m)
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

28 Related party transactions continued
Group continued

(f) FCB Harlow Butler Pty Ltd

The Group loaned some minonty shareholders of FCB Harlow Butler Pty Ltd a subsidiary company 1n South Africa £629 558 in order to
acquire 140 800 shares in the company from the Group Interest of £nil (2011/12 - £22,061) was charged on the loan dunng the year As
at 31 March 2013 the outstanding balance due on the loanwas £132 376 (2011/12 - £217 349)

{g) CLS Aggregation Services LLC {CLSAS)

The Group recharged CLSAS an associste company £4 4m (2011712 - £2 8m) as compensation for techmical services durng the year As
at 31 March 2013 the total outstanding balance due to the Group was £1 3m (2011/12 — £1 8m) The Group recewed £5 2m (2011/12
- £3 5m) from CLSAS during the year

Related party transactions are made on an arm's length basis

Company
ICAP ple is the Group s ultimate parent company and 1s incorporated and domiciled in the UK

During the year the Company entered into the following transactions with subsidianes

Year ended Year ended

31 March 3% March

2073 2012

Management services expenses - (15)
Net interest from related parties 10 (41)

Amounts owed to the Company from subsidiaries are disclosed in note 18 and amounts owed by the Company to subsidianes are disciosed in
note 17 In March 2009, the Company novated the Group s bank facilities to its immediate subsidiary ICAP Group Holdings ple {IGHP) and
simplified its intra-Group lending and borrowing with 1ts subsichanes

29 Events after the balance sheet date
There are no matenal events subsequent to the balance sheet date

30 Prninapal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investment i subsidiaries
An entity 15 regarded as a subsidiary if the Company has control over its strategic operating and financial policies and intends to hold the
investrent on a long-term basis for the purpose of secunng a contribution to the Group s activities

The Company recogrises nvestrments in subsihanies nialy at far value and subsequent changes n value as a result of imparrment are
recognised in the mcome statement
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30 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

(a) Investment in subsidharies — Company

The Company s immediate subsidiary compares are ICAP Group Holdings plc Intercapital Limited and Garban Group Holdings Limited afl of
which are incorporated in England and Wales and are 100% owned by the Company At 31 March 2073 these nvestments had a cost and
net book value of £2 036m (2011712 - £1 989m) All of the Company s other subsidianes are increctly owned The Company has taken
advantage of the exemption under section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing informatian only n refation to subsidiary
undertakings whose results or financial position i the opinion of the directors principally affect the financial statements A complete list of
subsidianies and associates will be ncluded n the Corpany s next annual return and filed with Companies House The Company s principal
subsidiaries ther country of incorporation and the Group s ownership are listed below

MBIADI SS3UISNY

% hekd §
Australia ICAP Australia Pty Limited 100 %
ICAP Brokers Pty Limited 100 »
Braz! ICAP do Brasil Corretora de Titulos e Valores Mobihanos Lida 100
England EBS Dealing Resources international Limited 100
ICAP Electronic Broking Limited 100
ICAP Energy Limited 100
ICAP Europe Limited 100
ICAP Holdings Limited 100 r._,.
ICAP Management Services Limited 100 g
ICAP Securities Limited 100 :‘-
ISwap Limited 501 g
The Link Asset and Secunties Company Limited 100 S
Japan ICAP Totan Secunties Co Lirmited 60
Singapare Reset Private Limited 100
Sweden TriOptna AB 100 Q
Swiizerland EBS Service Co Limited 100 g
United States EBS Dealing Resources Inc 100 S“
First Brokers Secunties LLC 100 §'
ICAP Capiial Markets LLC 100
ICAP Corporates LLC 100
ICAP Electrontc Broking LLC 100
ICAP Energy LLC 100
ICAP Securities USA LLC 100
ICAP Senvices North Amenca LLC 100
Traiana Inc 88

The percentage held represents the percentage of ssued ordinary share capital held (all classes) and also represents the voting nghts
of the Company

ICAP do Brasi Corretora de Titulos e Valores Mobihanos Ltda has a 31 December year end as required as part of local regulatory
requirements All ather subsidianies have a 31 March year end

All companies operate In therr country of iIncorporation except ICAP Securities USA LLC and ICAP Corporates LLC which also operate in the
UK and £BS Dealing Resources International Limited which operates worldwide

Al subsidianes are invalved in Global Broking Electromic Markets ar Pest Trade Risk and Information activities
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

30 Principal subsidianes, joint ventures and associates continued

(b) Joint ventures — Group
The Group s principal jont ventures and their country of incorporation are listed below

% heid Procpdl acimty
Austraha TFS-ICAP 250 Broking
England TFS-ICAP Holdings Limited 450 Broking
Germany TFS-{CAP GmbH 333 Broking
Japan TFS-ICAP 250 Broking
Mexico SIFICAP SAdeCV 500 Broking

BCIL - ICAP Capitat Markets SA de CV 500 Breking
Sthgapore TFS-ICAP 250 Breking
United States TFS-ICAP LLC 450 Broking

All joint ventures have a 31 Dacember year end

Summary financial information of joint ventures

The Group s share of joint ventures assets and habilities ncluded in the conschdated balance sheet and therr results included n the

conscldated income statement 1s given below

Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2013 02
£m £m
Assets 15 11
Liabilities (7) (5}
Net assets 8 6
Goodwill included in the Group s balance sheet 2 1
Net investment in joint ventures 10 7
Yeor ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Em £m
Reverue 15 15
Admnistrative expenses (1) 9}
Profit before tax 4 6
Tax (1) (m
Profit for the year 3 5
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 3 5
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3C Prinaipal subsidianes, joint ventures and associates continued

(c) Associates - Group
The Group s principal assoaates and ther country of incorporation are listed below

% hetd Prncpa actrrty

England BSN Capital Partners Limited 251 Broking
China Capital Shipbrokers Limited 490 Broking
Shanghar CFETS-ICAP International Money Broking Co Limited 330 Broking

Japan Totan ICAP Co Limited 400 Broking
Central Totan Securities Co Limited 200 Broking

Malaysia Amanah Butler Malaysia Sdn Bhd 321 Broking
United States CLS Aggregation Services LLC 480  Post Trade Risk and
Information

CpenGamma Inc 146  Post Trade Risk and

Information

All share holdings are in ordinary shares except the investment in BSN Capital Partrers Limited which is non-voting shares and the
investment n Capital Shipbrokers Limited which 1s a combination of voting and non-voting shares

BSN Caprtal Partners Umited Shanghai CFETS-ICAP International Money Broking Ce Lmited CLS Aggregation Services LLC and
OpenGamma Inc have 31 December year ends The difference in these associates year ends to the Group s year end 1s not considered to
have a matenal impact on therr results Al other associates have a 31 March year end
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Other information

Information for shareholders

Information on ICAP ple (Company No 3611426) can be found
on the Company’s website, www cap com

Financial calendar

2013

14 May Results for year ended 31 March 2013 announced

26 june Ex-dividend date for final dvidend

28 June Recard date for final dwvidend

10 july Annual general meeting, London

19 july Finat dividend payment

November Results for half year to 30 September 2013
announced

2014

January Ex-dividend date for interim dvidend

January Record date for interim dividend

February Intenm dvidend payment

May Results for year ending 31 March 2014 announced

July Annual general meeting, London

July Final dvidend payment

November Results for half year to 30 September 2014
announced

Registrar

Capita Regrstrars (Capita) mamtans the ICAP share register
Ther contact detalls are

ICAP Share Register

Capita The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Telephone OB71 664 0565* or
+44 8§00 280 2584

www Capitaregistrars com

Information about current holdings 1s available at

www icap-shares com Shareholders will need their investor
code {account number) and postcode to view information
on therr own holding

Frequent shareholder enquirtes

Nobfying the Company of a change of address

Sharehoiders should notify the Company s registrar by caling the
ICAP shareholder helpline G871 664 0565* or +44 800 280 2584
via the website www 1cap-shares com, or in wnting, of any change
If shares are held in joint names  the notification musi be signed by
the first named shareholder

Notifying the Company of a change of name

Toensure the detals of a shareholding are correct notification of a
change of name should be made in wring to Capita A copy of any
marriage certificate or change of name deed should be provided as
evidence of the name change

Dividend payments directly into bank/building
society accounts

Dwdends for shareholders are paid through BACS and can be
paid directly into a UK bank or bulldrg society account with
the tax voucher sent direct to the shareholder's registered
address A dvidend mandate form s avalable from Capita

or from the website www icap-shares com, under the forms
and booklets section

Scrip dividend

The scrp dvidend alternative 15 not currently being offered in
relation to ICAP plc dvidends which will be satisfied in cash until
further notice

Transferring ICAP shares

Transferring shares to someane eke requires the completion of a
stock transfer form These forms are avallable by calling the ICAP
shareholder helpline 0871 664 (565* or +44 800 280 2584
or from the Capita website www capitaregistrars com

Lost ICAP share certificate(s)

Shareholders who have lost therr share certificate(s) or have had
therr certificate(s) stolen should inform Capita immediately by
calling the ICAP shareholder helpline 0871 664 0565* or

+44 800 280 2584

Following the share split enly the ICAP ordinary 10p share
certificates are vald

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares the value of which
makes it unaconormic to sell them may wish to consider donating
them to chanity through ShareGift a registered chanty administered
by The Orr Mackintosh Foundation Further information about
ShareGift 1s avalable at www sharegft org or by telephone
02079303737

Disability helpline
For shareholders with hearing difficuities a text phone number s
avallable, 0871 664 0532~ or +44 20 8639 2062

Depositary for ICAP plc Level 1 ADR Program

The Company has a Level 1 American Depositary Recerpt (ADR)
program The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation acts as the
depositary bank for the program ICAP s ADRs trade on the OTC
market under the symbol IAPLY and its CUSIP number 1s
450936109 Each ADR represents two ordinary shares

* Cas to these numbers are charged at 10p per meoute plus network extras Lnes are
open 8 30am - 5 30pm Monday to Frday
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Definitions and glossary

In this Annual Report the following words shall have the
following meanings

Basel Il

an international regulatery framewaork, developed by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision to strengthen the requlation,
supervision and nsk management of the banking sector

BEIP grant
Business Ernployment Incentrve Program a grant run by the
New Jersey Economic Development Authonty

BrokerTec
see [CAP Electromic Broking below

BSMP
the JCAP 2003 and 201 3 Bonus Share Matching Plan

CCP
central counterparty

CcDS
crecht default swaps

CFETS
Shangha CFETS-ICAP International Money Broking Co Lumited

CFTC
Commuodity Futures Trading Commission

Clearing house

a central nsk-bearing and adrministrative facility in certain exchange-
based markets which acts as the counterparty to both the buyer and
the seller of a contract protectng each party from the nsk of the
other party defaulting on the trade Trades are also processed and
settled through the cleanng house

CLSAS
CLS Aggregation Services LLC a joint venture between Traana Inc
and CLS Group

CNH
represents the exchange rate of renminbi that trades offshore
in Hong Kong

Code
FRC s UK Corporate Governance Code (2010}

Companies Act
Companies Act 2006 (as amended)

Company or ICAP
ICAP ple {formerty Garban-intercapital pic and Garban plc)

Compression

a multdateral process enabling a group of financial institutions to
both identify multiple offsetting denvative contracts and to cancel
them n order to reduce their overall {rade count and notional
outstanding thus reducing systermic nsk and freeng up capital

ta be deployed elsewhere

CRD
Capital Requiwernents Directive

Demerger
the demerger of Garban from United Business Media plc on
17 November 1998

Dervatives

financial Instruments whose vatue s derved from the value of an
undertying asset including interest rates, bonds currencies equities
and commadities Credit denvatives are based on bonds loans and
cther types of credit

Dodd-Frank Act
The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
a federal statute in the US

dollaror §
unless otherwise speciied all references to dollars or $ symbol are
ta the currency of the LIS

EBS
EBS Group Limited and its subsichares

EMEA
Europe the Middle East and Africa

EMIR
European Market Infrastructure Requlation

EPS
earnings per share

EU
European Union

Exco
Excople which changed its name {o Intercapitat plc on
26 October 1998

Exco/Intercapital merger
the acquisition of the intercapital companies by Exco on
26 October 1998

Exotix or Exotix business
Exotix Holdings Limited and its subsidianes

FCA
Financial Conduct Authonty a successor to the Financial
Services Authority

FICC
Fixed Income Clearing Corporation

FINRA
Financial Industry Requdatory Authority a US regulator

First Brokers
First Brokers Securiies Inc

Frtch
Fitch Ratings Limited

Fixing

the process of setting an offical price for a financial Instrument
on aregular basis Involving market partiipants and sometimes
central banks or other requlatory bodies
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Other Information

Definitions and glossary continued

FRC
Financial Reporting Council

FTSE 100
index comprised of the 100 largest companies histed on the
London Stock Exchange in terms of thewr market capitalisation

FTSE 250
index comprised of medium-capitalised companies listed on the
Landon Stock Exchange not includad in the FTSE 100 index

FTSE All-Share
the aggregation of the FTSE 100, FTSE 250 and
FTSE Small Cap Indices

FX
foreign exchange

Garban

Garban plc

Garban Trust

Garban Ermployee Share Ownership Trust

GEMG
Global Executive Management Group

GOC
Global Cperating Committee

GRACC
Group Risk and Capital Committee

Group
the Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings

Group CEQ
Group Chief Executive Officer

HMRC
Her Majesty s Revenue & Customs

{CAAP
internal capital adequacy assessment process

{CAP Electronic Broking

the businesses of ICAP Electronic Broking LLC (formerly BrokerTec
USA LLC} and ICAP Electromic Broking Limited

(formerty BrokerTec Europe Limited)

ICAP shares
ICAP plc ordinary shares of 10p each

ICAP Shipping
ICAP Shipping Limited (formerly ICAP Hyde & Company Limited)
and refated companies

ICAP Trust
ICAP Employee Share Trust

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards

INFBV
INCAP Finance BY

Intercapital
Intercapital Limited (formerly Intercapital plc)

Intercapital companies
those companies acquired from IPGL at the time of ther merger
with Exco in October 1998

IPGL
IPGL Limited

IRS

interest rate swap a finanaial transaction in which two parties
typically exchange payments based on a fixed interest rate for
payments based on a floating rate or alternatively both based

on different floating rates Swaps are typically used by companies
to hedge against interest rate exposure or to speculate on future
Interest rate movernents

ISDA
International Swaps and Dervatives Assccation

ISDX
ICAP Securities & Denvatives Exchange Limited formerly Plus Stock
Exchange plc

ISMA
Internationat Secunities Market Association

Libid
London interbank bid rate

Libor
London interbank offered rate

Link

the businesses of The Link Asset and Secunties Company Limited
Link Securtties Hong kang Limited and Link Brokers Denvatives
Corporation

Liquidity

hequid markets are those with enough buyers and sellers for financial
instruments to be traded quickly in significant volumes without
sudden major shifts in price

Margin call

brokers and diearing houses require thew chents to deposit a8 margin
with them This 1s generally in the form of assets (usually cash or
secunties) as a safeguard against the nsk of defaulting on trades

A margin call 1s a requirement for aclent to Increase the amount

of margin held on its account If the value of secunties purchased

on margn falls befow a certan level

Mark-to-market
revaluation of a market position or portfolio based on the current
market pnce rather than the original purchase price

Merger
the merger of Garban and Intercapital on @ September 1999
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MIFID

Markets in Financial Instrument Directve this proposes the concept
of an organised trading facility The European Commission has
proposed in its revision to MIFID a new type of trading venue known
as the organised trading faciity These are organised platforms which
are currently not reguiated as a Regulated Market or multlateral
trading faciity The precise defimition remains subject to negotiation
in Brussels

MMFs
Money market funds

Moody's
Maody s Investors Services

Multitateral trading facility (MTF)

an electronic system used to facilitate trading in financial nstruments
between multiple parties, rather than salely on a one buyer/one
seller basis

NBI
new busness Nitiative

NDF
non-deliverable forwards

Non-bank
encompassing the professional trading community including hedge
funds, trading houses and corporates

NSCC
National Securities Cleaning Corporation

Off-the-run secunties

instruments that were issued earlier i1 a sequence of periodically
1ssued secunsties They generally trade at a discount to on-the-
run securities

On-the-run securities

the most recently issued instruments in a sequence of periodically
1ssued secunties They are generally more liquid than older secunties
in the sequence and trade at a premium

oT1C

aver-the-counter markets n which nstruments are traded directly
between participants by telephone and/cr electronically rather than
via an exchange

OTF

organsed trading faciity a category of trading revenue proposed
by MIFID

Pillar 1

sets out the rules by which regulatory capital can be calcutated for
the three maor components of nsk that a bank faces credi rsk,
operational nsk and market risk

Pillar 2

a SUPErvISory review process

RCF

revolving credit facility

ReMatch

ReMatch Holdings Limited and its subsidianes
Reset

Reset Holdings Private Limited and its subsidiaries
RIE

Recognised Investment Exchange

RSE

Recognised Stock Exchange

RPI

retal pnce index

SEC

Securities and Exchange Commussion a US regulator
SEF

swap execution faclity atype of organised trading venue in the US

Share spht

at an extraordinary general meeting hetd on 4 February 2004
shareholders approved a five for one share subdivisicn which divided
the Group s ordinary shares of 50p each nto five ordinary shares of
10p each The subdivision was effective from 9 February 2004

Spot FX
a currency trade which is settled immediately (usually within two
working days)

Straight through processing

the abiity for trades to be processed electronically from the paint of
execution through to settlement on chents administration systems
with rimmal or ne human interventicn

Tibor
Tokyo nterbank offered rate

Tratana
Traizgna Inc and subsidiaries

Treasury Shares
shares as defined by the Companies Acquisition of Cwn Shares
(Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 which came into force on
1 Decernber 2003

TriOptima
TriOptima AB and its subsidiaries

In this document according to context the expressions ICAP and
the Group are also used to rmean the ICAP plc Group as a whole or
ICAP ple and/or 1ts relevant subsidanes The business of ICAP plcis
solely that of a holding company 1CAP ple itself conducts no broking
or other activities
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T +44 (0) 20 7000 5000
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